El Tejon Unified School District

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

4337 Lebec Road, Lebec, CA 93243
PH: 248-6247 FAX: 248-6714

Stephanie Pope, President
Patrice Barnes, Clerk, Deborah Turner, Trustee,
Cindy McNatt, Trustee, Tommy Hastings, Trustee

BOARD OF TRUSTEES
REGULAR BOARD MEETING
Wednesday, October 8, 2025
Frazier Park School Room 1
3149 San Carlos Trail, Frazier Park, CA 93225

CLOSED SESSION: 6:15 p.m. FPS Room 1
OPEN SESSION: 6:30 p.m. FPS Room 1
AGENDA

Agendas are posted at the El Tejon Unified School district at least 72 hours prior to each meeting as well as at each
school site. Any materials required by law to be made available to the public prior to the meeting of the Board of
Trustees of the El Tejon Unified School District can be inspected at the following address between the hours of 7:30
a.m. to 3:30 p.m., Monday through Friday: El Tejon Unified School District, 4337 Lebec Road, Lebec, CA 93243.

SPECIAL NEEDS ACCOMMODATIONS

Assistive listening devices, agenda in Braille and/or alternate formats are available upon request. American Sign
Language (ASL) interpreters, other auxiliary aids and services, or reasonable modifications to Board meeting policies
and/or procedures, such as to assist members of the disability community who would like to request a disability-related
accommodation in addressing the Board, are available if requested at least three business days prior to the Board
meeting. Later requests will be accommodated to the extent feasible. Please contact the Superintendent’s Office, El
Tejon Unified School District at 661-248-6247 from 7:30 a.m. to 3:30 p.m., Monday through Friday (Government Code
54954.2).

HEARING OF INDIVIDUALS ON AGENDA ITEMS

Members of the public shall have an opportunity to address the Board of Trustees either before or during the Board’s
consideration of each item of business to be discussed at regular or special board meetings. Each member of the public
wishing to speak must fill out a “Request to Address the Board Regarding Items on the Agenda” (blue card) prior to the
start of the meeting. The presiding officer must first recognize each person who addresses the Board.

Call to Order — Time:
MOTION SECOND AYES NAYES ABSENT

ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION - Time
MOTION SECOND AYES NAYES ABSENT




AGENDA — Page 2
Board of Trustees Regular Meeting
October 8, 2025

1. Consideration and Approval of Inter-district Transfer #26-26.
MOTION SECOND AYES NAYES ABSENT

2. Consideration and Approval of Inter-district Transfer #26-27.
MOTION SECOND AYES NAYES ABSENT

3. Employment Recommendations Classified:
A. Employ Special Education Aide, El Tejon School.
B. Employe School Secretary, part-time, Frazier Park School.
C. Accept Resignation of Custodian, Part time, Frazier Mountain High School.
D. Accept Resignation of School Secretary, Part time, Frazier Park School.
MOTION SECOND AYES NAYES ABSENT

4. Employment Recommendations Certificated:
A. Employ Special Education Teacher, Mild/Mod, Frazier Mountain High School.
MOTION SECOND AYES NAYES ABSENT

ADJOURNMENT FROM CLOSED SESSION - Time
MOTION SECOND AYES NAYES ABSENT

RECONVENING IN OPEN SESSION — Time

MOTION SECOND AYES NAYES ABSENT
FLAG SALUTE
PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS

Members of the public shall have an opportunity to address the Board of Trustees either before or during the Board’s
consideration of each item of business to be discussed at regular or special board meetings. The time allotted shall be
limited to 3 minutes. This time may be used to address any item on the agenda, or any matter of concern

within the jurisdiction of the El Tejon Unified School District. Each person who addresses the Board must be first
recognized by the presiding officer.

If a member of the public initiates specific complaints or charges against an employee(s), the Board president shall
inform the complainant of the appropriate complaint procedure.

The Board and staff are not obligated to comment on, or respond to, addresses by the public.

REVISION/ADOPTION/ORDERING OF AGENDA
MOTION SECOND AYES NAYES ABSENT

REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION

Closed session report, if required.

PUBLIC COMMENT




AGENDA — Page 3
Board of Trustees Regular Meeting
October 8, 2025

REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS

A. Teaching Assignment Monitoring Outcomes — (Sara Haflich)

B. El Tejon Teachers Association (ETTA) — (Ann Coyle, President)

C. California School Employee Association #552 — (Darla Davis, President)
D. Trustee’s Reports

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
Approval of Minutes from Regular Board Meeting of September 10, 2025.
MOTION SECOND AYES NAYES ABSENT

SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT

1. District Enrollment — in packet

2. Field Trips 40 Approved

3. Staff of the Month — FPS —, ETS -, FMHS —, ETUSD -.
4. Other Items

ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND ACTION

Business Items

A. Consideration and Approval of Agreement between and El Tejon Unified School District, ETUSD and
Marin County Office of Education for California Collaborative for Educational Excellence, CCEE, 2025-26
Community Engagement Initiative .

MOTION SECOND AYES NAYES ABSENT

B. Consideration and Approval of Agreement between El Tejon Unified School District, ETUSD and Kern
County Superintendent of Schoos, KCSOS and for 2025-26 Contract Number 26258635 for English
Language Arts, ELA Services.

MOTION SECOND AYES NAYES ABSENT

C. Consideration and Approval of Agreement between and El Tejon Unified School District, ETUSD and
Gorman Joint School District for Transportation Services for up to 12 high school students attending
ETUSD programs or schools.

MOTION SECOND AYES NAYES ABSENT

D. Consideration and Approval of Agreement between El Tejon Unified School District, ETUSD and Pacific
Gas and Electric Company, PG & E for EV charger rebate.
MOTION SECOND AYES NAYES ABSENT

E. Consideration and Approval of Agreement between El Tejon Unified School District, ETUSD Kristin
Ericsson, licensed Speech Language Pathologist for speech language services and mentoring the new
SLPA.

MOTION SECOND AYES NAYES ABSENT

F. Consideration and Approval of 2024-2025 Arts and Music in Schools (AMS) Annual Report.
MOTION SECOND AYES NAYES ABSENT



AGENDA — Page 4
Board of Trustees Regular Meeting
October 8, 2025

G. Consideration and Approval of Agreement between El Tejon Unified School District, ETUSD and
Telehealthdocs Medical Corporation for Telehealth services being offered to ETUSD students and
families.

MOTION SECOND AYES NAYES ABSENT

H. Consideration and Approval to dispose of Surplus Property.
MOTION SECOND AYES NAYES ABSENT

Personnel Items

I. Receive El Tejon Teachers Association, ETTA Sunshine Reopener Initial Proposal to El Tejon Unified
School District, ETUSD for the 2025-2026 Fiscal Year.
MOTION SECOND AYES NAYES ABSENT

J. Receive El Tejon Unified School District, ETUSD Sunshine Reopener Initial Proposal to Chapter 552 of
the California School Employees Association, CSEA for the 2025-2026 Fiscal Year.
MOTION SECOND AYES NAYES ABSENT

K. Receive El Tejon Unified School District, ETUSD Sunshine Reopener Initial Proposal to El Tejon Teachers
Association, ETTA for the 2025-2026 Fiscal Year.
MOTION SECOND AYES NAYES ABSENT

Board Items

L. September Board Policy Updates: BP/AR 3515 Campus Security, BP/AR 3515.4 Recovery for Property
Loss or Damage, AR 3516.1 Fire Drills and Fires, BP/AR 5113 Absences and Excuses, AR 5113.11
Attendance Supervision, BP/AR 5113.12 District School Attendance Review Board, BP/AR 5113.2 Work
Permits, BP/AR 5141 Health Care and Emergencies, BP/AR 5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention and
Reporting, BP/AR 5142 Safety, BP 6141.4 International Baccalaureate Program, BP/AR 6178.1 Work-
Based Learning, BB 9005 Governance Standards, First Reading.

CONSENT AGENDA
Items required by law and/or items in Accordance.
With the District Administrative Code and/or Education Code
Items M-S

M. August Special Board Policy Updates: BP/AR 6141.2 Recognition Of Religious Beliefs And Customs,
BP/AR 6142.1 Sexual Health And HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction, BP/AR 6142.8 Comprehensive
Health Education, Second Reading

N. Approval of Renewal of Agreement between ETUSD and KCSOS and California Department of
Education, CDE for the District WiFi.



AGENDA — Page 5
Board of Trustees Regular Meeting
October 8, 2025

0.

Approval of Renewal of Memorandum of Understanding, MOU between ETUSD and Perseverance
Educational Consulting for support of students who experience trauma and other difficulties in adjusting
to classroom and school decorum at El Tejon School each Tuesday and Thursday.

Approval of Renewal Memorandum of Understanding, MOU between ETUSD and Perseverance
Educational Consulting for support of students who experience trauma and other difficulties in adjusting
to classroom and school decorum at El Tejon School each Wednesday.

Approval of Renewal of Agreement between ETUSD and KCSOS Division of Special Education and
Kern County Consortium for SELPA, Agreement #26-261075.

Approval of Renewal of Service Agreement between ETUSD and KCSOS for El Tejon Enhanced
Firewall.

Approval of Renewal Agreement between ETUSD and KCSOS for County Level Educational Services K-
6 Students, Contract Number 26264418.

Approval of B warrant batches #0018 for $55,523.40, #0019 for $101,458.65, #0020 for $104,408.83, #0021
for $53,639.66, #0022 for $24,061.66 #0023 for $810.30, #0024 for $51,198.33,

Approval of Consent Agenda.
MOTION SECOND AYES NAYES ABSENT

ADJOURNMENT - Time:

MOTION SECOND AYES NAYES ABSENT



El Tejon Unified School District

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

4337 Lebec Road, Lebec, CA 93243
PH: 248-6247 FAX: 248-6714

Stephanie Pope, President
Patrice Barnes, Clerk, Deborah Turner, Trustee,
Cindy McNatt, Trustee, Tommy Hastings

BOARD OF TRUSTEES
REGULAR BOARD MEETING
Wednesday, September 10, 2025

Frazier Park School Room 1

3149 San Carlos Trail, Frazier Park, CA 93225

CLOSED SESSION: 6:15 p.m. FPS Room 1
OPEN SESSION: 6:30 p.m. FPS Room 1
OFFICIAL MINUTES

The September 10, 2025, Regular Board Meeting of the Board of Trustees of the El Tejon Unified School District was
called to order at 6:15 p.m. by Trustee Pope. Trustee Turner moved, seconded by Trustee McNatt, in Room 1 at 3149
San Carlos Trail, Frazier Park, CA 93225.

VOTE: 4 AYES, 0 NAYES, 0 ABSENT

PUBLIC COMMENT

No Blue Cards were presented for Closed Session.

ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION

Trustee Barnes moved, Trustee McNatt seconded adjournment to closed session at 6:15 p.m.
VOTE: 4 AYES, 0 NAYES, 1 ABSENT (Hastings)

ADJOURNMENT FROM CLOSED SESSION

Trustee Turner moved, Trustee Barnes seconded adjournment from Closed session at 6:24 p.m.
VOTE: 4 AYES, 0 NAYES, 1 ABSENT (Hastings)

RECONVENING IN OPEN SESSION

Trustee McNatt moved, Trustee Barnes seconded, reconvening in open session at 6:30 p.m.
VOTE: 4 AYES, 0 NAYES, 1 ABSENT (Hastings)

REVISION/ADOPTION/ORDERING OF AGENDA

Trustee Barnes moved, Trustee Turner seconded adoption of the agenda as presented.
VOTE: 4 AYES, 0 NAYES, 1 ABSENT (Hastings)




MINUTES — Page 2
Board of Trustees Regular Meeting
September 10, 2025

REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION — All approved

1. Consideration and Approval of Inter-district Transfer #26-23.
Trustee Barnes moved, Trustee Turner seconded, approval of inter-district transfer #26-23.
VOTE: 4 AYES, 0 NAYES, 1 ABSENT (Hastings)

2. Consideration and Approval of Inter-district Transfer #26-24.
Trustee Turner moved, Trustee Barnes seconded, approval of inter-district transfer #26-24.
VOTE: 4 AYES, 0 NAYES, 1 ABSENT (Hastings)

3. Consideration and Approval of Inter-district Transfer #26-25.
Trustee McNatt moved, Trustee Barnes seconded, approval of inter-district transfer #26-25.
VOTE: 4 AYES, 0 NAYES, 1 ABSENT (Hastings)

4. Employment Recommendations, Classified:

A. Employ Instructional Aide TK, Frazier Park School. Esther Medellin

B. Employ Instructional Aide TK, Frazier Park School. Angelyna Lopez

C. Employ Special Education Aide II, Elementary, El Tejon School. Silvia Landaverde

D. Employ Special Education Aide (RSP), Frazier Mountain High School. Heidi Van Otten
E. Employ Cafeteria Worker II, Frazier Park School. Dulce Rodriguez

Trustee McNatt moved, Trustee Turner seconded, approval of Employment Recommendations, Classified.
VOTE: 4 AYES, 0 NAYES, 1 ABSENT (Hastings)

5. Employment Recommendations, Certificated:

A. Employ Math Teacher, Frazier Mountain High School. Rodrigo Del Cid, Jr.

Trustee Barnes moved, Trustee Turner seconded, approval of Employment Recommendations, Certificated.
VOTE: 4 AYES, 0 NAYES, 1 ABSENT (Hastings)

6. Review and Possible Action, Public Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Reassignment Per (G. C. § 54957)
Trustee McNatt moved, Trustee Bames seconded approval of Possible Action, Public Employee
Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Reassignment Per (G. C. § 54957).

VOTE: 4 AYES, 0 NAYES, 1 ABSENT (Hastings)

PUBLIC COMMENT

No Blue Cards were presented.

Trustee Hastings arrived at 6:38 p.m.

REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS

A. Transitional Kindergarten Classroom (Sara Haflich) — Sara spoke briefly about TK.

B.

C.

2024-2025 Unaudited Actuals (Misty Johnston) — handed out a summary chart of unaudited actuals and explained
how the numbers fit together.

El Tejon Teachers Association (ETTA) — (Ann Coyle, President) — spoke about a disability program through CTA
called Standard that has open enrollment through September. 6 teachers have signed up. She also talked about
monthly meetings with Sara and stated that Laura Baker is the ETTA secretary.

California School Employee Association #552 — (Darla Davis, President) — Johnny McNatt said that CSEA Chapter

552, ETUSD, had a vote and ratified the MOU regarding Suzanne Regan.



MINUTES — Page 3
Board of Trustees Regular Meeting
September 10, 2025

E. Trustee’s Reports — Trustee Hastings spoke about Jackie Ryan’s work with T-Mobile and how $5000 has already
been raised.
Trustee Turner spoke about the Chamber’s upcoming 3™ Annual Casino Night and then mentioned that she is now
the Law Enforcement Academy Leadership Advisor. She has already set up a tour of Forensics at KCSO and then a
tour of the Crime Lab in March.
Trustee Pope spoke about teachers all doing “2" jobs™ like coaching, FFA, AVID, etc., and how they all support each
other. She mentioned ELOP starting, and that it used to be the only options for sports were AYSO and Little League.
She also stated that ETS Flag Football games will be at the high school this year.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Trustee Turner moved, Trustee Barnes seconded. Approval of Regular Board Meeting Minutes, August 13, 2025.
VOTE: 5 AYES, 0 NAYES, 0 ABSENT

Trustee McNatt moved, Trustee Barnes seconded. Approval of Special Board Meeting Minutes, August 21, 2025.
VOTE: 5 AYES, 0 NAYES, 0 ABSENT

SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT

1.

(98]

District Enrollment — Sara talked about ETUSD’s enrollment is up 7 students, and that our district is one of the few
with increasing enrollment in Kern County.

Field Trips 00 Approved

Staff of the Month FPS — Mari Dominguez, ETS — Kari Castanon, FMHS Lee Bizzini, ETUSD Jackie Ryan

Other Items —Sara described the district’s quarterly newsletter. She said her goal is to send these out every 2 months
during the school year. She said that ELOP included Frazier Park School this year. She stated this is Attendance
Awareness Month. She went on to explain that ETUSD will no longer be using A2A for attendance tracking and that
it will be handled internally. The first Saturday School will be on September 13, 2025. Lastly, she talked about FMHS
football home games.

ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND ACTION

Business Items

A. Approval of Unaudited Actuals 2024-2025.
Trustee McNatt moved, Trustee Turner seconded to approve Unaudited Actuals 2024-2025.
VOTE: 5 AYES, 0 NAYES, 0 ABSENT

B. Memorandum of Understanding, MOU between El Tejon Unified School District, ETUSD, and California
School Employees Association, CSEA, and its El Tejon Chapter 552 regarding Suzanne Regan to fill the two
(2) vacant 3.75-hour Special Education Aide II, Elementary positions within the SDC classroom at Frazier
Park School, as well as continuing to transport students before and/or after school.

Trustee Turner moved, Trustee Barnes seconded to approve Memorandum of Understanding, MOU between El Tejon
Unified School District, ETUSD and California School Employees Association, CSEA and its El Tejon Chapter 552
regarding Suzanne Regan to fill the two (2) vacant 3.75 hour Special Education Aide II, Elementary positions within
the SDC classroom at Frazier Park School as well as continuing to transport students before and/or after school.
VOTE: 5 AYES, 0 NAYES, 0 ABSENT

B. Approval of Resolution # 26-02, Establishing Appropriation Limitation (GANN) for 2025-2026.



MINUTES — Page 4
Board of Trustees Regular Meeting
September 10, 2025

Trustee Barnes moved, Trustee Turner seconded to approve Resolution # 26-02, Establishing Appropriation
Limitation (GANN) for 2025-2026.
VOTE: 5 AYES, 0 NAYES, 0 ABSENT

C. Approval of Resolution #26-03, Education Protection Account.
Trustee McNatt moved, Trustee Barnes seconded to approve Resolution #26-03, Education Protection Account.

VOTE: 5 AYES, 0 NAYES, 0 ABSENT

Personnel Items

D. Approval of Resolution #26-04 Teaching Outside of Credential Area, EC 44258.7 (c) (d), Frazier
Mountain High School.

Trustee McNatt moved, Trustee Barnes seconded to approve Resolution #26-04 Teaching Outside of Credential Area,
EC 44258.7 (¢) (d), Frazier Mountain High School.

VOTE: 5 AYES, 0 NAYES, 0 ABSENT

E. Approval of Resolution #26-05 Teaching Outside of Credential Area, EC 44258.3, Frazier Mountain High
School.

Trustee Turner moved, Trustee Barnes seconded to approve Resolution #26-05 Teaching Outside of Credential Area,
EC 44258.3, Frazier Mountain High School.

VOTE: 5 AYES, 0 NAYES, 0 ABSENT

F. Approval of Resolution #26-06 Teaching Outside of Credential Area, EC 44258.7 (c) (d), El Tejon School.
Trustee McNatt moved, Trustee Barnes seconded to approve Resolution #26-06 Teaching Outside of Credential Area,
EC 44258.7 (¢) (d), El Tejon School.

VOTE: 5 AYES, 0 NAYES, 0 ABSENT

G. Consideration and Approval of Memorandum of Understanding, MOU, between El Tejon Unified School
District, ETUSD, and Veronica Sanchez for Video Editing Instruction to students at Frazier Mountain High
School.

Trustee Turner moved, Trustee Barnes seconded to approve the Memorandum of Understanding, MOU, between El
Tejon Unified School District, ETUSD, and Veronica Sanchez for Video Editing Instruction to students at Frazier
Mountain High School.

VOTE: 5 AYES, 0 NAYES, 0 ABSENT

H. Consideration and Approval of Memorandum of Understanding, MOU, between El Tejon Unified School
District, ETUSD, and Maggie Velasco for Culinary Skills Education to students at Frazier Park School.
Trustee Barnes moved, Trustee Turner seconded to approve the Memorandum of Understanding, MOU, between El
Tejon Unified School District, ETUSD, and Maggie Velasco for Culinary Skills Education to students at Frazier Park
School.

VOTE: 5 AYES, 0 NAYES, 0 ABSENT

I. Consideration and Approval of Memorandum of Understanding, MOU, between El Tejon Unified School
District, ETUSD, and Amanda Santillan to provide physical education, school spirit, and choreography skills,
as well as safety procedures and Cheerleading instruction to students at Frazier Park School.

Trustee McNatt moved, Trustee Barnes seconded to approve the Memorandum of Understanding, MOU, between El
Tejon Unified School District, ETUSD, and Amanda Santillan to provide physical education, school spirit, and
choreography skills, as well as safety procedures and Cheerleading instruction to students at Frazier Park School.
VOTE: 5 AYES, 0 NAYES, 0 ABSENT



MINUTES — Page 5
Board of Trustees Regular Meeting
September 10, 2025

J. Consideration and Approval of Memorandum of Understanding, MOU, between El Tejon Unified School
District, ETUSD, and Christy Gomez to provide physical education and weight training instruction to students
at El Tejon School.

Trustee McNatt moved, Trustee Hastings seconded to approve the Memorandum of Understanding, MOU, between
El Tejon Unified School District, ETUSD, and Christy Gomez to provide physical education and weight training
instruction to students at El Tejon School.

VOTE: 4 AYES, 0 NAYES, 0 ABSENT, 1 ABSTAINED (Turner)

K. Consideration and Approval of Memorandum of Understanding, MOU, between El Tejon Unified School
District, ETUSD, and Maggie Velasco for Fitness Training Education to students and Families at El Tejon
School.

Trustee Barnes moved, Trustee McNatt seconded to approve the Memorandum of Understanding, MOU, between El
Tejon Unified School District, ETUSD, and Maggie Velasco for Fitness Training Education to students and Families
at El Tejon School.

VOTE: 5 AYES, 0 NAYES, 0 ABSENT

L. Consideration and Approval of Memorandum of Understanding, MOU, between El Tejon Unified School
District, ETUSD, and Jessica Brown to provide physical education, school spirit, and choreography skills, as
well as safety procedures and Cheerleading instruction to students at El Tejon School.

Trustee Barnes moved, Trustee McNatt seconded to approve the Memorandum of Understanding, MOU, between El
Tejon Unified School District, ETUSD, and Jessica Brown to provide physical education, school spirit, and
choreography skills, as well as safety procedures and Cheerleading instruction to students at El Tejon School.
VOTE: 5 AYES, 0 NAYES, 0 ABSENT

M. Consideration and Approval of Memorandum of Understanding, MOU, between El Tejon Unified School
District, ETUSD, and Sean Ridgway to provide journalism instruction to students at El Tejon School.

Trustee Turner moved, Trustee Hastings seconded to approve the Memorandum of Understanding, MOU, between
El Tejon Unified School District, ETUSD, and Sean Ridgway for journalism instruction to students at El Tejon
School.

VOTE: 5 AYES, 0 NAYES, 0 ABSENT

N. Consideration and Approval of Memorandum of Understanding, MOU, between El Tejon Unified School
District, ETUSD, and Raegan Gray to Provide Arts and Crafts instruction to students at Frazier Park School.
Trustee McNatt moved, Trustee Barnes seconded to approve the Memorandum of Understanding, MOU, between El
Tejon Unified School District, ETUSD, and Raegan Gray to Provide Arts and Crafts instruction to students at Frazier
Park School.

VOTE: 5 AYES, 0 NAYES, 0 ABSENT

0. Consideration and Approval of Memorandum of Understanding, MOU, between El Tejon Unified School
District, ETUSD, and Zaria Kimbrough to provide physical education, school spirit, and choreography skills,
as well as safety procedures and Cheerleading instruction to students at Frazier Park School.

Trustee Turner moved, Trustee Barnes seconded to approve the Memorandum of Understanding, MOU, between El
Tejon Unified School District, ETUSD, and Zaria Kimbrough to provide physical education, school spirit, and
choreography skills, as well as safety procedures and Cheerleading instruction to students at Frazier Park School.
VOTE: 5 AYES, 0 NAYES, 0 ABSENT

Board Items
P. Designate Wednesday, December 10, 2025, as the Annual Organizational Meeting at Frazier Park School
Room 1, 3149 San Carlos Trail, Frazier Park, CA 93225 at 6:00 p.m.



MINUTES — Page 6
Board of Trustees Regular Meeting
September 10, 2025

Trustee Barnes moved, Trustee Turner seconded to approve to designate Wednesday, December 10, 2025, as the
Annual Organizational Meeting at Frazier Park School Room 1, 3149 San Carlos Trail, Frazier Park, CA 93225 at
6:00 p.m.

VOTE: 5 AYES, 0 NAYES, 0 ABSENT

Q. August Special Board Policy Updates: BP/AR 6141.2 Recognition of Religious Beliefs and Customs,
BP/AR 6142.1 Sexual Health And HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction, BP/AR 6142.8 Comprehensive Health
Education, First Reading.

Trustee McNatt moved, Trustee Barnes seconded to approve August Special Board Policy Updates: BP/AR 6141.2
Recognition of Religious Beliefs and Customs, BP/AR 6142.1 Sexual Health and HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction,
BP/AR 6142.8 Comprehensive Health Education, First Reading.

VOTE: 5 AYES, 0 NAYES, 0 ABSENT

CONSENT AGENDA
Items required by law and/or items in Accordance.
With the District Administrative Code and/or Education Code
Items S-X

R. Approval of Renewal of MOU between ETUSD and KCSOS for AVID Consortium Transfer of Funds for
AVID Coordinator, KCSOS Agt. # 26-255015.

S. Approval of Renewal of MOU between ETUSD and KCSOS for Kern County Consortium SELPA KCSOS
Agt. # 26-254241.

T. Approval of Renewal of MOU between ETUSD and Kern Community College District for Dual Enrollment
classes.

U. Approval of Renewal of Memorandum of Understanding, MOU, between El Tejon Unified School District,
ETUSD, and Jackie Ryan for Fitness Training Education to students and Families at Frazier Mountain
High School.

V. June Board Policy Updates: BP 0410 Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities, BP/AR 0420.4
Charter School Authorization, BP/E(1) 0420.41 Charter School Oversight, BP/AR 0440 District
Technology Plan, BP 0441 Artificial Intelligence, BP/AR 0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan, BP/AR/E(1)
1113 District and School Websites, BP/AR/E(1)/E(2) 1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures, AR/E(1) 3512
Equipment, AR 3542 School Bus Drivers, BP/AR 4030 Nondiscrimination in Employment, BP 4033
Lactation Accommodation, BP/E(1) 4112.9 Employee Notifications, BP/E(1) 4212.9 Employee
Notifications, BP/E(1) 4312.9 Employee Notifications, BP/AR 4119.11 Sexual Harassment, BP/AR 4219.11
Sexual Harassment, BP/AR 4319.11 Sexual Harassment, AR/E(1) 4119.12 Title IX Sexual Harassment
Complaint Procedures. AR/E(1) 4219.12 Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures. AR/E(1)
4319.12 Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures, BP/AR/E(1) 5125.1 Release of Director
Information, AR 5131.41 Use of Seclusion and Restraint, BP/AR 5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment,
BP/E(1) 5145.6 Parent/Guardian Notifications, BP/AR 5145.7 Sexual Harassment, AR/E(1) 5145.71 Title
IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures, BP 5146 Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students, BP 6142.91
Reading/Language Arts Instruction, BP/AR 6145.2 Athletic Competition, AR 6159.4 Behavioral




MINUTES — Page 7
Board of Trustees Regular Meeting
September 10, 2025

Interventions for Special Education Students, BB 9011 Disclosure of Confidential /Privileged Information,
Second Reading.

W. Approval of B warrant batches #0014 for $41,728.70, #0015 for $1,620.60, #0016 for $62,457.10, #0017 for
$86,417.36.

Approval of Consent Agenda.
Trustee Barnes moved, Trustee Turner seconded the approval Consent Agenda.
VOTE: 5 AYES, 0 NAYES, 0 ABSENT

ADJOURNMENT — Time: 7:12 p.m.
Trustee McNatt moved, Trustee Barnes seconded approval of Adjournment at 7:12 p.m.
VOTE: 5 AYES, 0 NAYES, 0 ABSENT

The minutes are an unofficial draft until reviewed, modified, and approved by the ETUSD Governing Board on
October 8, 2025.

Clerk of the Board




0. €Ll 0¢.
|eloL lejoL lejoL
Jesp | Yoy
jsen IseT
VAZA 96¢ 09¢ 4 6¥ 6% 99 99 9 ybiH ureyuno|y Jaizel
(4 1414 yAYA 4 o1 S (514 61 8 uole] |3
9ee eve eve 0 8¢ 1% 1S 1974 (974 44 L Jjed Jsizel
dvIA HINOW TVIOL ‘d3aNI (4} " or 6 8 z 9 5 v € 4 T 5aM AL 0as JOOHDS
Isv1 ISV
Ggcoe/LiolL
ININTIOENIT

10141S1d TOOHOS
a31dINN NOr3L 13




EL TEJON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
2025-26 OCTOBER BOARD MEETING APPROVED FIELD TRIPS

Field Trip Date # of Students School Location City Event Contact Person Approved  Board Mtg
1 8/26/2025 6|FMHS [Regional Occupationa Center Bakersfield Gr 10-12 FFA Officers, Leadership C{Bizzini 8/22/2025 9/10/2025|
2 8/28/2025) 30|FMHS |Taft High School Taft Volleyball Raymond 8/22/2025 9/10/2025]
3 8/29/2025| ~Unk™~ [FMHS |Lancaster Baptist HS Lancaster Football Raymond 8/22/2025 9/10/2025
4 8/26/2025) 6|FMHS |Regional Occupationa Center Bakersfield Gr 10-12 FFA Officers, Leadership C{Bizzini 8/22/2025] 9/10/2025
5 8/28/2025 30|FMHS |[Taft High School Taft Volleyball Raymond 8/22/2025 9/10/2025|
6 8/29/2025 ~ Unk~ FMHS [Lancaster Baptist HS Lancaster Football Raymond 8/22/2025 9/10/2025
7 9/2/2025) 30|FMHS [Tehachapi High School Tehachapi Volleyball Raymond 8/22/2025) 9/10/2025
8 9/4/2025) 30|FMHS |Valley Oaks CES Sun Valley Football Raymond 8/22/2025 9/10/2025
9 9/5/2025 30|FMHS [Legacy Christian HS Bakersfield Volleyball Raymond 8/22/2025 9/10/2025
10| 9/10/2025) ~50|FMHS |Pasadena Civic Auditorium Pasadena Art & Media Crane 8/22/2025 10/8/2025
11 9/8/2025| ~60|FMHS [Carpinteria State Beach Carpinteria VIVA Spanish Club Hughes 8/22/2025 10/8/2025
12 9/12 & 9/13] 12|FMHS |California City HS California City Volleyball Raymond 9/5/2025| 10/8/2025
13| 9/9/2025) 30|FMHS |Mammoth HS Mammoth Lakes |Volleyball Raymond 8/22/2025) 10/8/2025
14 9/10/2025 ~16|FMHS |Freedom School Bakersfield Volleyball Stewart 9/5/2025| 10/8/2029
15| 9/16/2025) 30[FMHS |Bishop High School Bishop Volleyball Raymond 8/22/2025) 10/8/2025
16 9/17/2025 ~|FMHS [Boron High School Boron Cross Country Zimm 8/22/2025 10/8/2029
17 9/18/2025 30|FMHS |Rosamond HS Rosamond Volleyball Raymond 8/22/2025) 10/8/2025
18| 9/19/2025) 25|FMHS [Lone Pine HS Lone Pine Football Raymond 8/22/2025 10/8/2025
19 9/19/2025 31|ETS [Kern County Fairgrounds Bakersfield FFA Oliver 9/12/2025 10/8/2029
20 9/23/2025) 40|FMHS |Kern County Fairgrounds Bakersfield Gr 9-12 Ag Students Bizzini 8/22/2025 10/8/2025
21 9/24/2025 51|FPS  |Kern County Fairgrounds Bakersfield Gr 2 Social Studies Coyle 9/5/2025| 10/8/2029
22 9/24/2025 18|ETS  |Beardsley JH Bakersfield Gr 6-8 Volleyball Stewart 9/5/2025| 10/8/2029
23 9/25/2025) 30[FMHS |Kern Valley HS Lake Isabella Volleyball Raymond 8/22/2025 10/8/2025
24 10/1/2025) 20|ETS  |Jacobsen JS Tehachapi Volleyball Stewart 9/25/2025| 10/8/2025
25 10/1/2025 ~ FMHS [By Pet Cemetary Bishop Cross Country Raymond 9/25/2025 10/8/2025
26 10/2/2025) 25[eTs  |Taft College Taft AVID Farewell 9/25/2029] 10/8/2025
27 9/30/2025 ~32|ETS  |McKee School Bakersfield Gr 6, 7 & 8 Sports Stewart 9/25/2025 10/8/2029
28 10/3/2025 42|FMHS [Tejon Outlets Bird Dog Gallery Arvin Art & Media Ellis 9/25/2025 10/8/2025
29 10/3/2025) ~ FMHS [Immanuel Christian Ridgecrest Football Raymond 9/25/2025 10/8/2025
30 10/3/2025) 9|ETS  [Warner Bros Studio Tour Burbank ELOP Creative Writing Jensen 9/25/2025 10/8/2029
31 10/6/2025) 25|FMHS |Moorpark College Moorpark Academy Seniors Chapman 9/29/2025 10/8/2025
32 10/7/2025) 30|FMHS [Desert High Edwards AFB Volleyball Raymond 10/2/2025) 10/8/2025
33 10/2/2025| 18|ETS |Mooncrest Ranch Frazier Park All Academics Hansen 10/2/2025| 10/8/2025
34 10/7/2025) 18|FMHS [Mooncrest Ranch Frazier Park All Academics Vogenthaler 10/2/2025) 10/8/2029
35 10/8/2025) 24[ETS  |CSuB Bakersfield Soccer Stewart 10/2/2025| 10/8/2025
36 10/8/2025) 30|ETS  |Buttonwillow School Buttonwillow Football Jansen 10/2/2025| 10/8/2025
37 10/9/2025) 20|ETS  |Wallace School & Southfork Lake Isabella/Weld|Sports Stewart 10/2/2025] 10/8/2025)
38 10/9/2025| 25|FMHS [Mojave High Mojave Football Raymond 10/2/2025 10/8/2025
39 10/9/2025 9|FMHS |Kern County Ag Center Bakersfield FFA Leadership Bizzini 10/2/2025| 10/8/2025
40 10/10/2025| ~ FMHS [Bakersfield College Bakersfield Ag Career Bizzini 10/2/2025) 10/8/2029
41
42
43
44,




45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64|




Location may change to Ag Pavillion



ccee MARIN COUNTY

Califarnle Callaborative
far Educational Excellenc OFFICE OF EDUCATION

2025-26 CommMuUNITY ENGAGEMENT INimiaTive (CEI)
PEER LEADING AND LEARNING NETWORK (PLLN) DisTRICT/LEA AGREEMENT
CoHort V anp/for ConorT VI

This AGREEMEMNT is made by and among the Marin County Superintendent of Schools and the Marin County
Office of Education [collectively, "Administrative Agent"), acting an behalf of the California Collaborative for
Educational Excellence ("CCEE™], and El Tejon Unified ("DISTRICT™). Hereinafter, the Administrative Agent jon
behalf of the CCEE) and DISTRICT shall be referred to collectively as “PARTIES.”

Background
The Community Engagement Initiative ["CEI"] was established by the California State Legislature and the

Gevernar on June 27, 2018 (Section 140 of Assembly Bill Mo. 1808 ("AB 18087}, Chapter 32 of the Statutes of
2018) for the purpose of all of the following:

1] Building capacity In communities and school districts to have difficult conversations with each ather
and build trust, with a focus on improving outccmes for pupdls.

{2} Identifying effective models of community engagement and metrics to evaluate those madels.

{3} Developing effective peer-to-peer partnerships between school districts and county offices of
education, utilizing the existing professional learning networks structure administered by the CCEE,
to deepen community engagement using lessons learned from the work identified in paragraph (1)
and the models identified in paragraph (2.

[4) Scaling up the work identified in paragraphs (1), [2), and (3] to improve community engagement
statewide and Incorporate practices that prove effective towards school district and county office
af education continuous improvement efforts.

Pursuant to AB 1808 and the resulting Request for Applications ["RFA"), the California Department of Education
{("CDE") and the CCEE, with approval from the executive director of the State Board of Education (“SBE”)
selected the San Bernarding Caunty Superintendent of Schoals ["SBCSSY), Families In Schools ("FIS™), and the
California Association for Bilingual Education ["CABE") as the expert Lead Agency Consorthumn, consistent with
Section 52073.1 of the Education Code, to co-administer the CEl with the CCEE,

The CCEE and the Lead Agency Consortium were charged with soliciting teams to participate in the CEI and
inchuded professional learning networks. For the first professional leaming network, they were required (o
select four to six geographically diverss teams that represent different regions of the state and include
community members, pupils, school site staff and leadership, school district staff and leadership, and county
office of education staff and leadership affiliated with a commaon single school district. In the selection process,
AB 1B0B required positive consideration be given to teams that are engaging in activitles conslstent with
building capacity in communities and school districts to have difficult conmversations with each other and build
trust, with a focus on improving outcomes for puplls, and teams that have been swccessful in engaging
community members that hawve not historicafly bean engaged with their school district.

2025-26 CEl District/LEA Stiperd Agreement, Cohort ¥ andfor Cohart Vi
Fage 1of 8



The 2022-23 Education Omnibus Budget Traller BIll (Assembily Bill 181, Chapter 52 of the Statutes of 2022)
funded and established an expansion of the CEl {now known as CEI 2.0). The Initiative's next phase will be led
by the Cafifornia Collaborative for Educational Excellence (CCEE) in partnership with the San Diego County
Office of Education [SDCOE), the University of San Diego (USD), and Eskalta School Research and Dasign, as the
Lead Agency Consartium, The expansion will build on CEI 1.0¥s foundation §o reach mare California districts,
schools, county offices, cornmunity partners, families, and students,

The PARTIES hereby agree as follows:

SECTION I: Privileges and Obligations of DISTRICT and DISTRICT TEAM MEMBERS, to be enforced by

DISTRICT

A. Peer Leading and Learning Network. DISTRICT agrees to participate in Cohart V and/ar Cohort VI PLLN In
pursuit of the statutority-defined goals set forth above. Participating in the PLLN includes, but is not limited
to, the following:

Organizing a team to participate in the Cohort V and/for Cohort VI PLLN through June 30, 2026,
with a minimum of eight meetings per year, DISTRICT shall provide CCEE and LEAD AGENCY
CONSORTIUM with a list of all 2025-26 DISTRICT TEAM MEMBERS no later than September 1,
2025, All DISTRICT TEAM MEMBERS shall participate in all PLLN meetings,

o If @ DISTRICT TEAM MEMBER has a reasonable and irreconcilable conflict that prevents
attendance at a meeting, the DISTRICT shall inform the CCEE (info@califarniaengage org)
and LEAD AGENCY CONSORTIUM Immediately and seek a replacement who can fill the
vacated role. DISTRICT shall secure a replacament for any DISTRICT TEAM MEMBER who
Is unable to continue participating In the PLLN within one month of the TEAM MEMBER
providing notice of withdrawal, and, in such a circumstance, shall notify the CCEE and
LEAD AGENCY CONSORTIUM of any proposed replacement with sufficlent time for them
to ensure the proposed replacement meets all participant requirements.

o I a DISTRICT TEAM misses a meeting, the DISTRICT shall confer with the CCEE and LEAD
AGEMCY CONSORTIUM to determine whether continued participation in the PLLN is
appropriate or if this AGREEMENT should be terminated. If a DISTRICT TEAM misses two
mestings, this AGREEMENT shall be terminated pursuant to Section lILE below unless the
CCEE and LEAD AGEMCY COMSORTIUM determines an exception & warranted,

Communicating regularly with the CCEE and LEAD AGEMNCY CONSORTIUM regarding the PLLM,
including reading, and responding promptly to, all PLLN-related communications from the CCEE
and LEAD AGENCY COMSORTILIA.

Responding to all research inquiries regarding the CEl and the PLLN from, or facilitated by, the
CCEE, the LEAD AGEMCY CONSORTIUM, or anyone conducting an evaluation on behalf of the CCEE
and/or LEAD AGENCY COMSORTIUM. Inquirkes may Include, but are not limited to, surveys, focus
groups, and end-cf-year reflection documents.

Permitting any CCEE or LEAD AGENCY CONSORTIUM staff member or representative to attend all
or part of anmy DISTRICT tearm mesting.

Sharing resources developed through engagement in the PLLN with the CCEE, LEAD AGENCY
CONSORTIUM and future CEl PLLNs.

12526 CE| District/LEA Stipend Agreerment, Cohart W and for Cahort V1
Page 2 af 8



E

S

® Engaging in open diabogue on issues related to improving local pupdl outcomes. Individual DISTRECT
TEAM MEMBERS will be expected to share professional and personal experiences reélated to topics
within the scope of the CEl and its goals to support the success of the PLLN.

s Partnering with ether communitles and school districts on improving community engagement.
# Actively supporting the goals and objecthves of the PLLN.

# Keeping DISTRICT's governing board regularly infarmed of the DISTRICT's engagement in the PLLN
as needed.

® Providing meeting space at a DISTRICT school site {or a nearby locatlon accessible to all TEAM
MEMBERS) for PLLN meetings that is video-conference capable at no cost for any participant,
when necessany.

# Pursuant to Educaotion Code Section 52073.3 (f{3A), the CEI shall support the districts/LEA's
Community Engagement,/Community School efforts, and team members’ participation in the CEI
(including internal staff, family/caregivers, community-based organizations, etc.)

Content License. DISTRICT agrees to grant CCEE, LEAD AGENCY CONSORTIUM, and all participants in
current and future CEl PLLMs a free, transferable, non-exclusive license to use, reproduce, and distribute
all information and content ereated by the DISTRICT or DISTRICT TEAM MEMBERS and presented or
distributed at a PLLN meeting or as part of communications with or between PLLN participants provided
() the use, reproduction, and distribution i limited to educational and training purposes, (i) the
infarmation and content is not sold, reproduced, or used, in whaole or in part, as part of any fee-generating
activity or product, and (Iil) the DISTRICT or TEAM MEMBER, as appropriate, |s kdentified as the creator
andfor owner of the inforrmation and content by incleding the apgropriate narme or koga on the information
ar content. The information and content produced, either in whole or in part, by & DISTRICT or TEAM
MEMBER and presented or distributed at a PLLN meeting or as part of communications with or between
PLLN participants shall not be copyrighted or patented by amyone other than the owner,

Assignment. Meither this AGREEMENT nor any duties or obligations under this AGREEMENT may be
assigned by DISTRICT without the prior written consent of CCEE. Any assignment or purported assignment
of this AGREEMENT by DISTRICT without prioe written consent of CCEE will be deamed void and of no farce
or effect.

Conflict of Interest. DISTRICT covenants, by itself and on behalf of its officers and directors, that it presently
has no financial interest, including but nat limited to, other projects or independent contracts, and shall
not acquire any such interest, direet of indirect, which waould conflict In any manner of degrae with the
satksfaction of the obligations under this AGREEMENT, DISTRICT further covenants, by itself and on behalf
of its officers and directors, that in satisfying this AGREEMENT, no person having amy such interest shall
knowingly be employed or retained by it under this AGREEMENT.

Mon-Discriminathan. Neither DISTRICT, nor amy officer, agent, employees, or subcontractor of DISTRICT shall
discriminate in the provision of services, allocation of benefits, accommodation in facilithes, or employment
of persannel on the basis of ethnic group identification, race, religious creed, color, national origin,
ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, genetic information, marital status, sex,
gender, gender identity, gender expression, age, sexual orientation, military and veteran status, or any
ather characteristic protectad by law, in the performance of this AGREEMENT. To the extent they shall be
found to be applicable hereto, DISTRICT and any officer, agent, employee, or subcontractor of DISTRICT
shall comply with the provisions of Section 508 of the federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the Federal Civil

2025-26 CEl District/LEA Stipend Agreement, Cohart V' and for Cohort Vi
Page 1of 8



Rights Act of 1964 [P.L. BB-352], the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 UL.5.C. §1210 at seq.], and
the Fair Employment and Housing Act {Gov. Code §12900 et seq.), the regulations promulgated thereunder
(Cal, Code Regs., tit. 2, 11000 et seq.), the provitions of Articke 9.5, Chapter 1, Part 1, Division 3, Title 2 of
the Government Code [Gowv. Code §511135-11139.5), and the regulations or standards adopted by the
awarding state agency to implement such article.

F. Ingurance Requirements. DISTRICT shall, at DISTRICT'S expense, procure and maintain for the duration of
this AGREEMENT general llability, workers' compensation, if required by applicable law, automobile
liability and other insurance to protect agalnst claims for injuries to persans or damages to property which
may arise from or in connection with the performance of the Services or this AGREEMENT by DISTRICT and
DISTRICT'S Subcontractors, officers, employess, agents, or representatives. MCOE/CCEE in no way
represents of warrants that the insurance required under this Section F is sufficient to protect DISTRICT
for liabilities that may arise from or relate to this AGREEMENT,

The general liability Insurance shall have a per-occurrence limit of not less than Two Million Dollars
($2,000,000). All such insurance will be equivalent to coverage offered by 2 commercial general liability
form, Including, without implied limitation, personal injury and contractual liability coverage for the
performance by Provider of the indemnity provisions set forth in this AGREEMENT.

The workers' compensation insurance, if required by applicable law, shall insure DISTRICT'S obligations and
liabilities under the workers' compensation laws of California, Including, without implied limitation,
emplayer's liability insurance in the imits required by the laws of Callfornia,

G. |nvgicing. To defray some of the costs of DISTRICT TEAM MEMBERS, including family/caregivers, students,
community partners, and ather nan-district employees on the TEAM, participating in the Cohort V and/or
Cohort W1 PLLN meetings, DISTRICT may submit a guarterly invoice, along with supporting documentation,
pursuant to activities outlined in Section LA, of this AGREEMENT, which include the following:

# Participation in Cohort W and/for Cohort Vi PLLN Meetings

& Provide resources and compensation for team members' participation in the CEl {including
internal staff, family/caregivers, community-based organizations, etc.) pursuant to
Education Code Section 52073.3 (f){3A]

The sum of all inveices submitted by DISTRICT under this AGREEMENT shall not exceed $70,000 for the
2025-2026 fiscal year, CCEE will provide an involce template aligned with the following participation rate
structure, applicable to eight meeting days total:

In Person and Virtwal Rate per Cohort V and/for Rate Description
Participation Level Cohort V1 PLLM Meeting Day
Full Participation [70-100%) $8,750 A least 70% attendance and

engagement with tools, resources,
and activities (e, note catcher, end-
of year tracking]

Prorated Participation [<70%] 56,125 Partial attendance of team members
per meeting and limited engagement

Imioices may be submitted at any time, but no later than 30 days after each guarter. The final invoice must be
submitted within 20 calendar days aftar the termination date of this AGREEMENT and must be marked “FINAL®

(03526 CEI Disarict/LEA Stipend Agreement, Cohort W and for Cohort Wl
Page 4 of B




by the DISTRICT, Mo payments will be made to the DISTRICT after this period. All invoices shall state the total
amount for the invoice and be submitted via emall to OCEE Accounts Payable at ap_ccee@coee-ca.org. If
requestad by the Administrative Agent, DISTRICT shall provide additional documentation supperting an

invaice.

SECTION li: Privileges and Obligations of CCEE/Administrative Agent

A

Funding. In accordance with the imvoicing provisions and requirements set forth in Section 1.G. abave,
CCEE/Administrative Agent shall provide DISTRICT up to 570,000, for satisfactory participation in the
2025-26 Cohort V and/for Cohort VI PLLN meetings.

Assoclated costs of services (e, copying and printing) shall be borne by DISTRICT or DISTRICT TEARM
BMEMBERS within the existing contract budget will not relmburse DISTRECT or DISTRICT TEAM
MEMBERS for such expenses. Neither the Administrative Agent, nor the CCEE, nor the LEAD AGENCY
CONSORTIUM has any financial obligation to DISTRICT or DISTRICT TEAM MEMBERS other than those
detailed in this AGREEMENT. It Is agreed between the PARTIES that this total amount may only be
amended in writing by mutual agreement of the PARTIES. DISTRICT will be responsible for any costs
related to satisfying this AGREEMENT beyond this sum,

Content License. CCEE agrees to grant DISTRICT a free, mon-transferable, nen-assignable, non-
exclusive license with respect to all information and content CCEE develops with or for use by LEAD
AGENCY CONSORTIUM MEMBERS and/or PLLN participants provided (i) the use, reproduction, and
distribution is limited to educational and training purposes and (i} the information and content ks not
sold, reproduced, or used, in whale or in part, as part of any fee-generating activity or product,

SECTION III; Further agreement by all PARTIES

A

Term. The term of this AGREEMENT shall be from Sgptember 1, 2025 through June 30, 2026

Partial Satisfaction. Acceptance by all PARTIES of some obligations to be satisfied under this
AGREEMENT does not operate as a release from any remaining obligations under this AGREEMENT.

Independant Contractor. It s agreed that DISTRICT and all afficers, employees and agents of DISTRICT
are acting as an independent contractor of CCEEfAdministrative Agent and not as a partner, joint
venturer, agent or emploves of Administrative Agent or CCEE. Personnel tasked by each DISTRICT with
ensuring satisfaction of the obligations under this AGREEMENT shall at all times be under the
DISTRICT'S exclusive direction and control. DISTRICT shall pay all the wages, salaries and other
amounts due such personnel in connection with satishying its obligations under this AGREEMENT and
as required by law. DISTRICT shall be responsible for all reports and obligations respecting such
personnel, including but not limited to, social security taxes, income tax withholdings, unemployment
insurance, and workers' compensation insurance, It i further understood and agreed by the PARTIES
hereto that DISTRICT in the satisfaction of its obligations hereunder is subject to the control or
direction of CCEE/Administrative Agent merely as to the result to be accomplished by the obligations
hereunder agreed to be rendered, performed, and satisfied, and not a3 to the means and methods for
accomplishing the resufts. 1t is agreed that Administrative Agent,/CCEE will not withhold any federal or
state income tax from payment made pursuant to this AGREEMENT but will provide DISTRICT with a
statement of payments upon request if necessary,

Mo Third Party Beneficiarigs. Mathing contained in this AGREEMENT shall create a contractual
relationship with or a cause of action in faver of any third party against one or more of the PARTIES,

202%5-26 CEI District/LEA Stipend Agreement, Cohort W andfor Cohort Wi
Page 5 of 8



Termination. Any of the PARTIES may terminate this AGREEMENT without cause upon 30 days written
netlce served upan all other PARTIES stating the effective date of termination. A notloe of termination
shall be effective when received.

Walver of Default. Any wakver by any of the PARTIES of any breach of any one of more of the terms of
this AGREEMENT shall not be construed to be a waiver of any subsequent or other breach of the same
or of any other term hereaf, Fallure on the part of any of the PARTIES to require exact, full and
complete compliance with any terms of this AGREEMENT shall not be construed as in any mannes
changing the terms hereof, or stopping CCEE from enfarcement hereof.,

. Force bajeure.

1. Inthe event any DISTRICT is unable to comply with any provision of this AGREEMENT due to
causes beyond its control such as acts of God, acts of war, civil disorders, flu pandemics, or
other similar acts, no DISTRICT shall be held liable to CCEE far such failure to comply.

2. In the event CCEE/Administrative Agent is unable to comply with any provision of this
AGREEMENT due to causes beyond its control relating to acts of God, acts of war, chil
disorders, flu pandermics, or ather similar acts, CCEE shall not be held liable ta ary DISTRICT
for such failure to comply.

Hold Harmbess, Administrative Agent/CCEE shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless DISTRICT, its
Directors, officers, emplovees, agents, volunteers and authorized representatives from and against
any and all liability, loss, damage or claims for injury or damages arising out of NSTRICT'S performance
of this AGREEMENT but only to the extent such Hability, loss or claims for injury or damages are caused
by or resudt from the negligent or intentional acts or omissions of Administrative Agent andfor CCEE,

DISTRICT shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Administrative Agent and CCEE, their Directors,
officers, employees, agents, volunteers and authorized representatives from and against any and all
liability, loss, damage or claims for injury or damages arlsing out of DISTRICT's performance af this
AGREEMENT but only to the extent such liability, loss or claims for injury or damages are caused by or
result from the negligent or intentional acts or omissions of DISTRICT,

Motices, All correspondence and notices required or contemplated by this AGREEMENT shall be
defivered in electronlc form to the respective PARTIES at the e-mail addresses set forth below and shall
be delivered in physical form to the respective PFARTIES at the addresses set forth below. Amy notioe
or ather document shall be deemed to have been duly given on the date of personal service on the
Parties or on the second business day after mailing if the document is mailed by registered or certified
miall, addressed to the Parties at the addresses listed below, or at the most recent address specified
by the addressee through written notice under this provision, Failure to conform to the requirement
that mailings be registered or certified mall shall not defeat the effectiveness of notice actually
received by the addressee. Any notice te CCEE shall also be made to Administrative Agent, and any
notice to Administrative Agent shall also be made to CCEE, The address to which correspondence or
matices may be given to any Party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with this
Paragraph. Any notice to the DISTRICT shall be made ko the following individual:

1025-26 CE| District'LEA Stipend Agreement, Cohort V¥ andfor Cahort W
Fage G of g



DISTRICT CCER Administrative Agent

El Tejon Unified California Coltabarative for barin County Offlce of Educathon
Attn: Coray Hansen Educational Excellence Attn: lishwara Ryaru

4337 Lebec Ad Attn: Emma Oh 1111 Las Gallinas Avenmsa

Lebec, CA 93243 10249 J Street, Suite 450 San Rafael, TA 94503
chansen@el-tejon k12 caus Sacramenta, C& 95814 injaru@marnschosls org

ap_ccee@ccen-ca.nrg

Review by Legal Counsel, Each of the PARTIES has had the opportunity ta, and have, to the extent each
deermed appropriate, obtained legal counsel concerning the content and meaning of this AGREEMENT,
Each of the PARTIES agrees and represents that no promise, inducement or agreement not henaen
expressed has been made to effectuate this AGREEMENT.

Litigation Costs. Except a5 otherwise provided in this AGREEMENT, if any PARTY becomes imohved in
litigation arising out of this AGREEMENT or the performance thereof, sach PARTY shall bear its own
litigation costs and expenses, Including reasonable attorney’s fees.

Governing Law: Jurisdiction; Venue; Interpretation; Severability. This AGREEMENT shall be governed
by the laws of the State of California, Any legal action related to the satisfaction, performance, or

Interpretation of this Contract shall be filed only in the Superior Court of Marin County, and the
PARTIES walve any provision of law, including Califernia Code of Civil Procedure, § 394, subdivision (a],
providing far a change of venue to another location. Prior to the filing of any legal action, the PARTIES
shall be obligated to attend a mediation session with a third party mediator in an attempt to resolve
the dispute, with each PARTY to bear its own costs of mediation and the costs of the medistor to be
evenly divided between CCEE/Administrative Agent and each DISTRICT involved in the dispute. In the
event any provision in this AGREEMENT I35 held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void,
or unenforceable, the remaining provisions will nevertheless continue in full force without being
impaired or invalidated in any way.

Autharity to Enter into Agreement. Each Party to this AGREEMENT warrants that it has the full power
and authority to enter into this AGREEMENT and to carry out the transactions contemplated by it and

has takem all action necessary to authorize the execution, delivery, and performance of this
AGREEMEMNT,

Entire_Agregment/Amendment. This AGREEMENT, Including any Attachments to which it refers,
constitutes the final, complete, and exclusive statement of the terms of this AGREEMENT between the
PARTIES pertaining to the subject matter of this AGREEMEMNT. It supersedes all prior and
contemparaneous understandings or agreements of the PARTIES. Mo PARTY has been induced to enter
into this AGREEMENT by, nor is any PARTY relying on, any representation or warranty outside those
expresshy set forth in this AGREEMENT. The provisions of this AGREEMENT may be modified only by
mutual agreement of the PARTIES. No modification shall be binding unless it is in writing and signed
by the PARTY against whom enforcement of the modification is sought.

Counterparts and Electronic Signatyres. This AGREEMENT may be executed in two or more
counterparts, Including coples and signatures sent by facsimile, electronic mail, or other electronic
means, each of which shall be deemed an original, and together will constitute a binding and
enforceable agreement as if all PARTIES had executed the same copy hereof, consistent with the
provisions of the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act (Civil Code § 11633.1 et 2eq.].

{SIGMATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE)

H0i25-26 CE| District/LEA Stipend Agreement, Cohort W and for Cabart VI
Page Fol B



IM WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agresment as of the date herecf.

Administrative Agent

Signature: Date:

Printed Name and Title: lishwara Ryaru, Asslstant Superintendent - CCEE Liakson

Clty: __San Rafael State: _CA Zip Code: 34303

Signatura: Date:

Printed Name and Title: _Matthew Mawvo, Expcutive Director

Address: 1029 | Street, Suite 450
City: __Sacramento State: _CA Zip Code: 95814
Signature: Diate:

Printed Name and Tithe: _Mindy Fattig, Deputy Executive Directar
Address: 1019 ) Street, uite 450

City: _ Sacramants State: _CA Tip Code: 95814
DISTRICT/LEA
Hmmtum:mﬁéL Mo - oate: 18- AS

Printed Name and Title: ﬁ‘;;mﬁ Jchh hom CAYd
address: {335 Leber Boad

aty,_Lehee state: (A4 zpcode: Q3L43

2025-16 CEl District/LEA Stipend Agreement, Cohort W and for Cohort Vi
Page B of 8




MKCSOS

Kern County Superintendent of Schools
Oifice of Johw 5. Mancibury, £4.0, — Advecates For Children

September 9, 2025
El Tejon Unified School District

4337 Lebec Rd,
Labes Ca 93243

RE: EL TEJON (GENTRY) 25-26 CONTRACT NUMBER 26258635
Dear Sara Halflich,
Submitted for your signature is the above reference contracts! agreements! amendments.

* Please e-sign or have the appropriate authorized person e-sign the enclosed agreement,
* Please respond and return the executed agreement no later than 10/8/2025.

For gquastions or concerns regarding this agreement please contact, Jamie Mock at BE16364425,
or jamockikerm.org.

Sincerely,

Michael Gumapac
District Fiscal Anatyst
Division of Fiscal Support

JEGM:MG:gr
Enc.

1200 17th Street, CITY CENTRE - Bakersfleld, CA 933004533 - (661) 6364000 « FAX (861 8384130 - kern.org



Customer Mo. 42 KCS0S Agt# 26 -
258635
OFFICE OF JOHN G. MENDIBURU
KERN COUNTY SUPERINTEMDENT OF SCHOOLS
Advocates for Chitdren

KCS05 SERVICE PROVIDER AGREEMENT
iProfessional Development)

This Service Provider Agreement ("Agreement”) is between THE KERN COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF
SCHOOLS, a California public education agency ("Contractor™), and the party whose legal name and status
are described in the signature block below (“Principal”).

RECITALS
This Agreament iz based on the following facts and understandings of the parties:

A County Superintendent iz qualified and has recent successful experience providing professional
development.

B. The Kemn County Superintendent of Schools (KCS0S) Instructional Services Division is uniquely
posifioned to support the scope of work outlined within this agreement. Through the relationships that have
been established with our staff, our first-hand experience working within their unique community, and an
extensive understanding of their student achievement data through the Kemn Integrated Data System (RIDS),
our county office of education is providing a customized professional learning experience for this LEA.

. Principal has requested mutually agreed upon professional development training.

D. This Agreement is intended to be the written agreement between the paries related to the services
and/or products to be provided during the referenced term,

TERMS

Based upon the Recitals and the promises exchanged by the parties in this Agreement, the parties agree as
follows:

1. Scope of Services. The nature and scope of services under this Agreement are set forth in Attachment A
and are incorporated by reference into this Agreement.

2. Tem. The initial term of this Agreement shall begin effective July 1, 2025 and shall end on June 30,
2028. The parties may extend the Agreamant beyond its initial term as mutually agraed in writing.

3, Price. Contractor shall provide all labor, equipment, materials, and supplies to furmish the services called for
under this Agreament in exchange for payment in the amcunt of $37,392.00 (Yotal Mat feel.

Contractor shall be paid for services satisfactorily rendered based upon invoices submitted no more fraquently than
monthly or SUPERINTENDENT is authorizedto transfer the amounts for the services from DISTRICT Account Code:

Sara Haflich

The total amount payable to Contractor under this Agreement shiall not exceed $31,382.00,

4. Additional Provisions. The attached additional provisions are part of this Agreement and fully
incorporated by reference.

PRINCIPAL JOHN G. MENDIBURL, Ed.D.

S AE-SIGNED by Sam Haltich g ED by Michasl Gumapss
By I35 8010 17:54:55 GMT By H025-00-08 21:17:26 ST
Entity Mame: El Tejon Unified Signatory Mame: Michael Gumapac
Entity Type: Schoogl Disirict Tithe: Disirict Fiscal Analyst
Authorized Signatory Mame: Sara Haflich 1300 17 Street, Bakersfiedd, CA 53301

Professicnal Devedopmant
KCS0S Ref #2367E cpb



Address: 4337 Lebec Rd, Lebac CA, Accouni Code: 01-T09-0000-0-867 7 .00-0000-2 1 30-00-0000-000
Data: Dt

September 10, 2025 September 09, 2025

Professional Deve
KCS0S Ref #2387 cpb Page 1



ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS OF THIS AGREEMENT

5 Indemnification. Contractor agrees to defend, hold
harmiess, and Indemnify Principal (and Principal's
officers, employees, trustees, agents, successors, and
assigns) against all claims, suits, expenses (including
reascnable attormey fees), loases, penalties, fines, costs,
and liability whether in contract, fo, or sirict liability
{including but not limited to personal injury, death at amy
tima, and propery damage) arsing out of or mada
necassary by (A) Contractor's breach of the terms of this
Agreement, (B) the act or omission of Contractor, its
employeas, officers, agents, and assigns in connection
with performance of this Agreement, and (C) the
prasence of Confracior, its officers, employees, agents,
assigns, of invibees on Principal’s premises,

In the event that any aclion or proceeding is brought
against Principal by reason of any clalm or demand
discussed in this section, upon nolice from Principal,
Contractor shall defend the aclion or proceeding af
Contractor's expense through counsel reasonably
salisfactory to Principal. The obligation o indemnify sel
forth in this seclion shall include reasonable attormey
fees and investigation costs and all other reasonabla
cosls, expenses, and lisbilities from the first notice that
any claim or demand is to be mada.

Contractor's obligations under this seclion shall apply
regardless of whether Principal {or any of is officers,
employess, irustees, or agens) are activedy o passivedy
neghigent, but shall not apply 1o any koss, liability, fine,
penalty, forfeiture, cost, or damage determined by an
arbitrator or courd of compelent jurisdiclion to be caused
solely by the active negligence or wiliful misconduct of
Frincipal, its officers, employees, trustees, or agents,

6. [Inswrance Reguirements. Contracior shall obtain,
pay for, and maintain in effect during the life of this
Agrasmant the following policies ssued by an insurance
company rated not less than “A-V1I" in Bast Insurance
Rating Guide and admitted to flransact insurance
business in Californéa: (1) commencial general Habaity
(including contractual, products, and completed
ocperations  coverages, bodily Injury, and properdy
darnage labiity) with combined single limits not kess than
31,000,000 per occurrence and not less than 2,000,000
in the aggregate; {2) commercial automobile liability for
"any auto” with combined single limits not less than
$1,000,000 per coowmence; (3) professional labilfity
({errors and omissions) with a lmit of liability not less than
$1,000,000 per occurrence, and (4) workers'
compensation insurance as required under siate law,

Each policy shall contain an endorsement naming
Principal as an additional insured inscfar as this
Agreamant is concerned, and provide that written notice
shall be given to Principal at least 30 days prior 1o
cancellation or material change in the form of the policy
of reduction i covarage,

Professional Developement
KCS05 Ref #23678 cpb

Mothing in this section conceming minimum insurance
requirements shall reduce Contractor's liability or
obligations wunder the indemnification provisions of this
Agreamant.

The parties acknowledge that Confracior is permissibly
self-insured undar California law.

7. Status of Paries The parties agree thal in
performing the services specified In this Agreemant,
Confractor shall act as an independent contractor.
Excapt as speciied in this Agreement, Confractor shail
determing the means and methods for cammying oul the
work to achieve the result required by Principal, The
parties shall be free to contract for simiar sarvices to be
performed while under contract with each other,
Contractor will nof accept such engagements which
interfere with performance under this Agreement,
Contractor ia not enlifled fo paricipate in any pension
plan, insurance, bonuws, or similar benefits Principal
providas for #s employees,

Any employeas or assistants retained by Contractar shall
be the responsibility of Contractor and not of Principal.
Contractor shall determine the hours during which the
senrvices shall be performed and the sequance of tasks,

8, Terminabion, One parly may terminate fhis
Agreement prior to its expiration as follows:

A, If the other party fails o comply with any insurance
ar indemnification requirements of this Agreement,

B. If the other parly commits 8 malerial breach of this
Agreameant and fails to cure the breach within 20 days
aftar written demand.

C. Withowt cause, on &0 days' written notice, im which
casa Contractor shall be paid for all services rendered up
wrtil the effective date of the notice of tarmination.

9. Mcellaneous Provisions.

& Entire Agreement. This Agreement, including any
exhibits or schedules to which it refers, constiutes tha
final, complete, and axclisive statement of the terms of
agreement bebween the parties pertaining to the subject
matter of the Agreement |t supersedes all prior and
comemporaneous understandings or agreements of the
parties, No party has been induced to enter into this
Agreement by, nor 5 any parly relving on, any
representation or wamranty culside those expressly set
forth in this Agreement.

B. Amendment. The provisions of this Agreement
may be modified only by mulual agreement of the
parties. Mo modification shall be binding undess it 8 in
writing and signed by the party agaeinst whom
affarcamant of tha modification is sought.

Page 2



C. Waiver, Any of the terms or condidions of this
Agreement may be waived at any time by the party
entitled to the benefit of the term or condition, but no
such waiver shall affect or impair the right of the waiving
party lo require chservance, performance, or satisfaction
either of thal term or condition as it applies on a
subsequent occasion or any other term or condition of
this Agreament.

D. Assignment MNeither party may assign any rights
or benefits or delegate any duties under this Agreement
without the written consent of the other party. Any
purparted assignment without written consent shall be
void.

E. Padies in Interest. Mothing in this Agresment,
whather express or implied, i intended o confer any
rights or remedies under or by reason of this Agreement
on any person other than the paries to it and their
ragpactive succassors and assigns, nor B8 anyihing in
this Agresment intended to relieve or dischargae the
abligation or liabildy of any thind person to any party to
this Agresment, nor shall any provision give any third
person any right of subrogation or action against any
party 1o this Agreameant.

F. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is
held by an arbitrator or court of competant jurisdiction 1o
be invalid or unenforceabls, the remainder of the
Agreement shall continue in full force and effect and
shall in no way be impaired or invalidated.

G, Governing Law, The rights and obligations of the
parties and the Intespretation and performance of ihis
Agreement ghall be governed by the laws of California,
excluding any statute which directs application of the
laws of another jurisdiction,

H. Motices. Any notice under this Agreamant shall be
in writing, and any written notice or other documeant shall
be desmed fo have been duly given on the date of
persanal service on the parties or on the second
business day after mailing if the decument is mailed by
registered or certified mail, addressed fo the paries at
the addresses listed on the signature page, or at the

Professional Developement
K505 Ref #23878 cpb

mast recant address specified by the addresses through
written nodice under this provision. Failure to conform to
the regquirement that mailings be regstered or cerifed
shall not defeat the effectivensss of notice actually
received by the addressee.

. Authorily i Enter into Agreement. Each parly o
this Agreement represenis and warrants that it has the
full power and authority to enfer into this Agreement and
io carmy out the transactions contemplated by i, and has
faken all action necessary to authorize the execution,
delivery, and performance of the Agreement.

4. Conflict of Interesi, The paries to this Agreement
have read and are aware of the provisions of Seclion
1080 and following and 87100 and following of the
California  Government Code relating o conflict of
interest of public officers and employees. Each pary
represents that it is aware of no financial or economic
interest of any officer or employes of Contractor relating
to this Agreamant.

K.  Nondiscrimination. Meither party, nor any officer,
agent, emplyes, or subcontracior of a parly, shall
discriminate in the treatment or employment of any
individual or groups of individuals on any ground
prohibited by law, nor shall any of them harass any
parson in the course of padforming this Agreament based
on gender or any oiher basis prohib#ed by applicabla
E0S

L. Counterpards. This Agreement may be executed in
any number of counterparts with the same affect as if the
parties had all signed the same document. Al
counterpants shall be construed together and shall
constitute one agresment.

M. Pupil Salety Requirements Contractor centifies that
neither Contractor nor any of its employees or
subcondractors who may come in contact with pupils has
been convicled of a felony as defined in Education Code
Section 451321,

Page 3



ATTACHMENT A
SCOPE OF SERVICES
KCS0S SERVICE PROVIDER AGREEMENT
(Professional Development)

Scope of Work;

Goal 1; Understanding of ELA/ELD Standards
Goal 2: Create a Connection Betwean State Assessments and Classroom Assessments
Gaoal 3; Learn High Leverage Strategies

Activities

. Professional Leaming sessions
*  Modeling

. Obsarvatons

" Feadback Sessions

Fiscal:

Consultant Fees:

31,500 Full Day x Number of Full Days 20
Additional Fees;

Mileage # Miles 1560 x Rate 0.70
Materials

30,000.00

5

5 1.082.00
3 200.00
$

Total Contract Amouwnt (summary of all faes)

a1, 38200

To be imvoiced in three aqual instaliments over the first three quaners.

KCS0E Senvice Provider Agreernant
KCS03 Ral #0807

Page 4



GORMAN JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
49847 Gorman School Rd
Gorman, CA 93243
Telephone 661-248-6441
Fax 661-243-0604

AGREEMENT FOR TRANSPORTATION SERVICES

This Agreement is made between Gorman Joint School District (“GISD"™) and El Tejon Unified
School District (“ETUSD"™) and is dated for reference August 20 , 2025,

RECITALS

1. ETUSD requires transportation services for up to 12 high schoal students attending ETUSD
programs or schools.

2. GISD owns and operates transportation vehicles for student transportation needs,

3. GIJSD and ETUSD desire to enter into this Agresment for GISD to provide transportation
services for ETUSD students under the terma set forth below,

4. This Agreement is intended to be the written agreement between the parties related to the
transportation sarvices to be provided during the referenced term.

5. Al students and parents are required to sign the GISD transportation contract, and students must
adhere to the nalea cutlined in the contract.

6. ETUSD students must sit in their assigned seats and follow the seating roles.,

TERMS
L w
GISD will provide transportation services for ETUSD students according to mutually
agreed-upon schedules and routes,

II, Services inclode morning home-to-school transportation from the Neenach bus stop to
ETUSD, and afterncon transportation from Gorman S to Meenach.

IOI.  Ifthe scheduled transportation date falls on a non-school day for GISD, or if GISD
cancels school or transportation due to weather, emergencics, or other operational
reascns, ETUSD shall be responsible for providing its own transportation for ETUSD

students oo those days.
IV. Thisagreement shall remain ineffect through the 2025-26 school year.
1. Term and Cost

1. This Agreement shall be effective for the 2025-2026 school year, beginning July
1, 2025 and ending June 30, 2026 (180 School Days).
IL  The cost for services under this Agreement shall be $5,500 per school year.

3. Billing and Pavment

GISD will submit invoices to ETUSD at the following address:
El Tejon Unified School District

Attn: Business Services

P.O.Box 126

Lebec, CA 93243

Fage |



ETUSD shall pay all invoices within thirty (30) days of receipt.

4. Indemnification by FTUSD

[. ETUSD agrees to defend, hold harmless, and indemnify GISD (and its officers,
employess, trustees, agents, successors, and assigns against all claims, suits,
expenses (including reasonable attomey fees), losses, penalties, fines, costs, and
iability (collectively, the “Damages"™), whether in contract, tort, of strict
liakility (including but not limited to personal injury, death at any time, and
property damage) arising out ETUSD’s breach of the terms of this Agreement
or by the act or omission of the ETUSD under this Agreement.

II. ETUSD's obligations under this section shall apply regardless of whether GISD
(or any of its officers, employees, trustees, or agents) is actively or passively
negligent in contributing to the Damages, but shall not apply to any loss, liability,
fine, penalty, forfeiture, cost, or damage cansed solely by the active negligence or
by the willful misconduct of GISD.

5. Indemnification by GJSD

I. GISD agrees to defend, hold harmless, and indemnify ETUSD (and its officers,
employees, trustees, agents, successors, and assigns against all claims, suits,
expenses (including reasonable attomey fees), losses, penalties, fines, costs, and
liability (collectively, the “Damages™), whether in contract, tort, or strict
lability (inchoding but not limited to personal injury, death at any time, and
property damage) arising out GJSD's breach of the terms of this Agreement or
by the act or omission of the GISD under this Agreement.

II. GISD's obligations under this section shall apply regardless of whether ETUSD
{or any of its officers, employees, trustees, or agents) is actively or passively
negligent in contributing to the Damages, but shall not apply to any loss, liability,
fine, penalty, forfeiture, cost, or damage caused solely by the active negligence or
by the willful misconduct of ETUSD.

6. Insurance Requiremenis

I. GJSD shall obtain, pay for, and maintain in effect during the life of this
Agreement the following pelicies of insurance issued by an insurance company
rated not less than "A- V" in Best Insurance Rating Guide and admitted to
transact insurance business in California: (1) commercial general hiahility
insurance (including contractual, products, and completed operations coverages,
bodily injury, and property damage hiability) with single combined limits not less
than $1,000,000 per occurrence; (2) commercial automobile lability insurance
for "any auto” with combined single limits of liability not less than $1,000,000
per oceurrence; (3) professional lisbility insurance (errors and omissions) with a
limit of liability not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence; and (4) workers'
compensation insurance &s required under state law.

II. Each policy shall contain an endorsement naming ETUSD as an additional
insured insofar as this Agreement is concemned, and provide that written notice

Page 2



shall be given to ETUSD least 30 days prior to cancellation or material change in
the form of the policy or reduction in coverage, ETUSD shall furnish ETUSD
with a certificate of insurance containing the endorsements required under this
section, and ETUSD shall have the right to inspect GJSD 's original insurance
policies upon request. Upon notification of receipt of a notice of cancellation,
change, or reduction in coverage, ETUSD shall immediately file with ETUSD a
certified copy of the required new or renewal policy and certificates for such
policy.

M. Nothing in this section concerning minimum ingurance requirements shall reduce
GJISD's liability or obligations under the indemmification provisions of this
Agreemnent.

7. Status of Parties
I.  The parties agree that in parforming the services specified in this Agreement,
GJSD shall act as an independent contractor. Except as specified in this
Agreement, GJSD determines the means and methods for carrying out the work to

Fage 3



achieve the result required by GJSD. ETUSD shall be free to contract for similar services to be

while under contract with GJSD; provided that GJSD will not aceept such engagements,
which interfere with performance under this Agreement. ETUSD is not entitled to participate in any
pension plan, insurance, bonus, or similar benefits GISD provides for its employees.

II. Anyemployees or assistants retained by ETUSD shall be the responsibility of
ETUSD and not of GISD. The parties shall determine the hours during which the
services shall be performed and the sequence of tasks, subject to the reasonable
business needs of GISD.

S Terminaticn

One party may terminate this Agreement pricr to its expiration as follows;

L.

1L,

If a petition in bankruptcy is filed by or against the ather party, or if the other
party is adjudged insolvent by any court, or if a trustee or receiver or liquidator
of any property of the other party is appointed in any suit or proceeding, or if the
other party makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors or takes the benefit
of any bankruptey or insolvency act, or liquidates its business for any cause
whatsoever, or if anything similar happens to a party in any jurisdiction.
Termination in such a case is effective as of the date of the filing of the petition,
adjudication, appointment, assignment, or declaration, or commencement of
Bauidats

[f the other party fails to comply with the insurance or indemnification
requirements of this Agreement.

If the other party commits a material breach of this Agreement and fails to cure
the breach within 30 days after writtén demand. A material breach includes, but
is not limited to, & failure to comply with any confidentiality provisions in ths
Agreement, as well as the unlawful harassment of any person on GJSD or ETUSD
premises or otherwise in connection with this Agreement.

[V. Without cause, on thirty (30) days’ written notice, in which case GISD shall be
paid for all services rendered up until the effective date of the notice of
lermination.

2, Miscellaneous Provisions,

Entire Agreement, This Agreement, including any exhibits or schedules to which it
refers, constitutes the final, complete, and exclusive statement of the terms of agreement
between the parties pertaining to the subject matter of the agreement. It supersedes all
prior and contemporaneous understandings or agreements of the parties. Mo party has
been induced to enter into this Agreement by, nor is any party relying on, any
representation or warranty outside those expressly set forth in this Agreement.

Amendment, The provisions of this Agreement may be modified only by mutual agreement

Page 4



of the parties. Wo modification shall be binding unless it is in writing and signed by the
party against whom enforcement of the modification is sought.

Waiver, Any of the terms or conditions of this Agreement may be waived at any time by
the party entitled to the benefit of the term or condition, but no such waiver shal] affect or
impair the right of the waiving party to require observance, performance, or satizfaction
either of that term or condition as it applies on a subsequent occasion or any ather term or
condition of thizs Agreement.

Assignment. Neither party may assign any rights or benefits or delegate any duties under
this Agreement without the written consent of the other party. Any purported assignment
without written consent shall be void.

Parties in Interest, MNothing in this Agreement, whether express or implied, is
intended to confer any rights or remedies under or by reason of this Agreement on
any person other than the parties to it and their respective successors and assigns, nor
is anything in this Agreement intended to relieve or discharge the obligation or
liability of any third person to any party to this Agreement, nor shall any provision
give any third person any right of subrogation or action against any party to this
Agresment.

Severability, If any provision of this Agreement is held by an arbitrator or court of
competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of the Agreement
shall eontinue in full foree and affect and shall in no way be impaired or invalidated.

Governing Law, The rights and obligations of the parties and the interpretation and
performance of this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of California, excluding
any statute which directs application of the laws of another jurisdiction.

Motices, Any notice under this Agreement shall be in writing, and any written notice or
other document shall be deemed 1o have been duly given on the date of personal service
on the parties or on the second business day after mailing if the document is mailed by
registered or certified mail, addressed to the parties at the addresses listed on the
signature page, or &t the most recent address specified by the addressee through written
notice under this provision. Failure to conform to the requirement that mailings be by
registered or certified mail shall not defeat the effectiveness of notice actually received
by the addressee,

Each party to this Agreement represents and
warrants that it has the full power and authority to enter into this Agreement and to
carry out the transactions contemplated by it, and has taken all action necessary to
suthorize the execution, delivery, and performance of the Agreement.

The parties to this Agresment have read and are aware of the
provisions of Section 1090 and following and 87100 and following of the California
Governmeni Code relating to conflict of interest of public officers and employees.
Both Parties represent that it is aware of no financial or economic interest of any
officer or employee of GISD and EJUSD, respectably, relating to this Agreement.

Page 5



It is further understood that ifsuch a financial interest does exist at the inception of this
Agreement, either Party may immediately terminate this Agreement by giving written
notice to the other Party. Each Party shall comply with the terms of Government Code
Section 87100 and following during the term of this Agreement.

Compliance with Law, In the course of performing this Agreement, both Parties shall
observe and comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations and
ordinances now in effect or subsequently enacted.

Mopdiscrimination, Neither Party, nor any of its officers, agents, employees, or
subcontractors of each Party shall discriminate in the treatment or employment of any
individual or groups of individuals on any ground prohibited by law, nor shall any of
them harass any person in the course of performing this Agreement based on gender or
any other basis prohibited by applicable law.

Special Rules andfor Restrictions, The parties understand that funding for the referenced
programs may involve special restrictions on use and/or other requirements impased by a
funding agency. Any such special restrictions and/or requirements are contained in
Attachment B and are incorporated by reference into this Agreement. The parties agree
that any such requirements applicable to them will be fulfilled to the satisfaction of the
requiring agency.

MNon-appropriation of Funds, GISD) reserves the right to terminate this Agreement in the
event insufficient funds are appropriated or budgeted for this Agreement in any fiscal
year, Upon soch termination, GISD will be released from any further financial obligation
to ETUSD, except for services performed prior to the date of termination or any liability
due to any default existing at the time this clause is exercised. ETUSD will be given 30
days' written notice in the event that such an action is required by GISD.

Cremership of Documents, All reports, documents, and other items generated in the
course of providing services to ETUSD shall be the property of ETUSD, and shall be
provided to ETUSD upon full completion of services, termination of this Agreement, or
as otherwise specified in the Agreement.

Counterparts, This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts with the
same effect as if the parties had all signed the same document. All counterparts shall be
construed together and shall constitute one agreement.

License and Permits, GISD represents that GISD and GISD's employees who will render
services under this Agreement are fully qualified and competent to provide the services
called for under the Agreement. GISD shall secure and maintain in force any permits or
licenses required to perform the services called for under this Agreement, at GISD's
expense unless specified otherwise in the Agreement.

Confidentiality. GFSD shall at all times protect the confidentiality of all matters to which
GISD has access under this Agreement, including but not limited to any records
pertaining to pupils or employees. GJSD shall not disclose or discuss the facts of any

Pags 6



Gorman Joint Schoal

mstrict
By: -
MName: [

such matter with any person other than ETUSDYs authorized representatives without prior
written consent of ETUSD, a court order, judicial subpoena, or other valid legal process.
GJSD shall notify ETUSD immediatety by telephone and facsimile of any subpoena or
court order seeking information covered by this Agreement.

GISD's Records.  GJSD agrees to maintain and make available GISD accurate books
and records relative to all its activities under this Agreement. GISD shall permit
ETUSD to audit, examine, and make excerpis and transcripts from such records, and
to conduct audits of all invoices, materials, personnel records, or other data related to
all other matters covered by this Agreement. (GISD shall maintain such data and
records in an accessible location and condition for a period of not less than 3 years
from the date of final poyment under thiz Agreement

Title: Superintendent Title: Superin nt
] Date: @%5

Date: 2[35

Page 7






Pacific Gas and Claan Enemy Traeaporaton
Electric Company’ 0 Lovescarvn

Calland, G S612

August 12, 2025

El Tejon Unified School District
4337 Lebec Road
Lebec, CA 93243

RE: FLEET00G782412

Dear Jannifer Giancanadl,

Congratulations! We are pleased to extend El Tejon Unified School District an imvitation to join PGAE's EV
Fleet Electrification program. Upan your completion of the action Hems below, we will move your project into the
daalgn phasa and I:mgln tha angmaanng daalgn and construction PlEI!'IE- far 4-3!? Lab-an Road, Lebec, CA

Inciuded in this contract are the following ibems:
= Cover Latter
o Oiffer Description
o EV Charger Rebate
o Preliminary Design (alzo attached as POF)
«  Latter of Commitment
o EV Deploymeant Commitrmeant
Exhibit A: Project Scopa
« Appendices
o Appendix A PG&E EV Fleat Program Participant Data Repoding Requirements
o Appendix B: CPUC's Safety Requirements Checklist for CPUC-Approved Transportation
Electrification Programs

Immediate Action ltems:
=« Review the entire document
#  Sign and returm the Letter of Commitmant and Contract
» Provide proof of commitment (as defined below) for appropriate vehiclas

By signing the Latter of Commitment and the Contract, | heraby confirm my pariicipation In PG&E's Fleat
Elactrification program and acknowladge that:

# | agrea to install the number of EV Supply Equipmant (EVSE or "EV charger”) specified in Exhibit A of
the Contract;

» Upon executicn of the Contract, PGAE will bagin incurring design fees and cosls as my project moves
forward,

s If | withdraw from the program prior to the site being activated, then PG&E reserves the right to recover
all fess and costs incurred by i and its subcontractors after the execulion of the Coniract, including bt
not Bmited to, design cost, site walk costs, eto.;

+ PGAE may nead lo conduct a comprehenshve design site walk;

» If the exisiing infrastructure or physical site or equipment is substantially different than anticipated or
described, then PGAE will make reasonabda affort to redesign the project in a manner acceptable to
bath parfies, but resenses the right to cancel my panicipation in the program,

Cower Latter {11.2024 Varsion) Page 1 of 4



s Claan Efaigyy Tranapamnalion
.FE-L'.'.IﬁE EHS ﬂﬂd Pacic Gas and Electric Company

. Electric Company” 300 Lakeside Drive

Crakland, Ca G4812

= || request to make changes to the scope or design of the project, then PGAE reserves the right to
recovar all costs associated with that change, such as redesign cosis;

= Iif | do not submit required documentation (e.g., signed easement) or fall to move this project forward for
a pariod of 30 days or more, then PGAE may conslder this an abandonment of this Contract and
resarves he fght to cancel my parlicipation in the program and recover all costs incurred; and

s My EV chargers meet the Safaty Checklist requirements and have networking protocols (as described
in Appandix & and Appendix B). | agree o ensure that EVSE network connectivity is in good condition
for at beast five years from the date of activation.

Offer Description

After careful consideration of the project ©osts and scope of work, PG&E has datermined you are eligible for U
Make-Ready Incantive Option. PGAE will design, construct, own, and maintain any necessary EV supply
infrastructure ko the meter only. El Tajon Unified School District will design, bulld, own, operate, and maintain
the EV supply infrastructure behind the mater, hereaftar referred to as customar-owned make-ready
infrastructure, PGAE provides an incentive that is equal o the lesser amount of either; (i) 80% of the customer-
owned make-ready infrastructure costs or (i) the incentive cap of $16,000.00 as described in the table below,
Project documentation should be submitted o your Project Manager within 90 days of site activation to initiate
the incentive payment process,

schoal Buses, Local Delivery | 54,000.00 per Vehicls 4
Trucks, or Orther Yiehicles
Vehicle & BT : Incentive (Total] 1 incentive Total
Total # of Vahlcles Lessar amount of aither B0% of the cushomar-ownad make- | Maximum af
4 repdy infrastneclure costs of the incenlive cap, as £16,000.00
described above, on a par vehicls basis

EV Charger Rebate

You may also qualify for a rebate of up to $84,000.00, capped at 50% of the purchasa cosl, for qualified EV
chargers for your Nleel. EV chargers are only aligible for rebates if they are listed on PGAE's approved EVSE
vandar list at tha time of installation, All rebate claim documentation must ba submitted to PGEE no latar than
March 31, 2028 to be efigible for rebates. The EV Fleet program will not be able to issue rebates for EV
chargers acquirad after March 2028,

Fl — & - i ' I S i _-_"': _.-.. % E [ 'L—'\-l.“nl = | . '.ul_
1513 kW £045 af tha cost of the charger, up o $42,000.00 per EVEE
Total 303 kW Total Capped Rebate Amount of up 1o $84,000.00

As a reminder, to participate In the EV Fleet program, your EV chargers, also known as EV supply
equipment, at a minimum must meet the EV Fleet Program Data Reporting requiremants outlined in
Appendix A and the Safety Checklist requirements outlined in Appendix B. In addition, tha EV chargers
must at least meet the following netwoark communications requiremants:

Cond Lather (11,2024 Varsion) Pagn 2 of 4



Pacific Gas and Clhan By Tarepertaton
W) e e

« Elecric Vehicle Supply Equipment (EVSE) shall have metering capability through an internal device
and shall be able io measure power and usage paramebers to enable reporiing of the metrics in the
Contractor Requiremeant saction.

= Afler loss of power, provided the EVSE connector o vehicle has nol been removed, the EVSE shall
raturn to its past-configuration state (Le., shall persist communication and registration
configurations. This doas nol include continuing user sessions wihan authorzation is required o start a
sas5ian)

% EWSE shall provide a resel oplion, which reterns (he device to its pre-charge stale (8.g., card or
message- nol user accassibla).

Preliminary Design

The preliminary design for your project is balow and has also been provided as a PDF along with this coniract.
Please note that any requasts 1o change the scope of the project may result in redesign costs to you of up to
£15,000 per request. Examples of changes io scope include requests to modify the number or type of charger
being deployed or modify the location of the meler.

PGAE may opt to utilize existing infrastructure, including existing conduit, in order to minimiza project costs as
Indlmtag,_ ’aﬂw gL on WTNE_PP_T__H PTHEMBHW

R T,
" 5 ] H .
. i T B
g =
=T g f

Cervar Latber {11.2024 Version) Faga Jal 4



Pacific Gas and Chean Enargy Transpartation

. 3 Pacilic Gas and Electric
' Electric Company Ay

Cakland, CN G4612

STALL AND STATION COUNT
IMFACTED EXISTING GUANTITY I
FLEET STALLS 4
TOTAL i
PROPOSED EV CHARGING QUANTITY
FLEET STALLS 4
TOTAL 4
EV CHARGING ETATIONS QUANTITY
N SUAL PORT - PEDESTAL MOUNT 2
TOTAL 2
ANTICIPATED LOAD TOTAL KW
| AUTEL MAXICHARGER DC FAST @ 151 3 KW e
CHARGER BANK DEMAND LOAD o
[AMPS: @ 480V)

Mext Steps:

We respectfully request that you return your signed contract as soon as possible. After we receive your
signed contract, | will introduce vou to your Project Manager, who will lead you through the design and
construction procass for your Sibe,

Thank yau for your paricipation in this exciling programl You are taking an imporiant step to suppart Califomia’s
ambstious chmate and air quality goals, and we appreciale thal you have elected o work with PGAE 1o elecirify
your flest,

Please contact me if you have any questions.

Thanks,
Tim

Tim O'Meill

{208) 401-8189

tko2@pae.com

Electric Viehicle Customer Cnboarding Specialkst
Pacific Gas and Electric Company

eVﬂeet

Coroar Lather (11.2034 Varsion) Page 4 of 4



Pacific Gas and Kt ety | ot

i Ppcif Gas and Electrio Comparry
i Electric Company 300 Lakeside Drive
Oakland, CA 94812
August 12, 2025
Claan En Transpaortation
Pacific Gmnd Electric Company
300 Lakesicde Drive

Oakland, CA 84612

Re: Electric Vehicle Deployment Commitment for El Tejon Unified School District (FLEETO06T82413)

Dear Pacific Gas and Eleciric Company,

El Tajon Unified School District and PGLE have worked together and agreed on a conlract under which El Tejon
Unified School District purchases electric fleat vehicas and PGEE performs make-ready infrasiruciune work and,
if gualified, provides EV chargar rebales and mfrastructuns incantnes,

El Tejon Unified School District has racesved approval from our mternal decision makers and commits to purchasa

4 glectric vehicles by December 31, 2029, We plan to purchase and deploy the wahicles during the following
fimalina:

Elactric Vehicle Deployment Schadule

By signing tha Letter of Cormmitmant and the Contract, El Tejon Uinifled Schoal District understands that, in
accordance with the seclion titked "Vehicle Purchase Plans’, El Tejon Unified School District is responsible for
realizing the number and type of EV Flest vehicles that have been indicated in Exhibit A of the aforementionad
Coniract regardiess of the decision of granting agencies. Thesa vahicles will be domiciled al 4337 Lebec Road,
Lebac, CA 93243,

If El Tejon Unifled Schaol Diatrict does not put into oparation the numbaer of vehicles sialed n the section above,
PGAE in s sole discretion may require El Tejon Unified Schoaol District to refmburse PGAE for costs incurmed by
PGA&E associated with PGAE's reliance on my commitment to install Infrastiructure, such as costs of equipment,
site design, and installation. Additionally, if the first vahicle deploymant is plannad for 2028, El Tajon Unified
School District understands that at least two vehicles must be deployed by Juna 30, 2028 in order to meat EV
Flest's minimum eligibility reguirements, If this requirement is nat met, PGAE in its sole discretion may require E
Tejon Unified Sehool District to reimburse PGAE for costs incurred by PGAE associated with PG&E's reance on
my commitment o install infrastructure, such as costs of equipmant, site design, and instalkation.

Sincereahy,

__Sasa__
Sullg,rfy_j;

El Tejon I.!.nifhd School District
Coenparry Mama

| =125

EV Flaat Lstter of Commitmant {08 2025 Varslan) Fogs 1ai 1
EV Fisal Program Terms and Conditions [*Contract”)
Betwean E| Tejon Uinied School Dleiict and Padiic Gas and Elscirc Company



Pacific Gas and Clowr: Enrgy Trarwpurtaton

¥ s Pacific Gas and Elacine Compary
Electric Company 300 Lakeaicla Driv
Ciaklamd, Ch 94512

EV Fleet Program Terms and Conditions ("Contract”)

Disadvantaged Community: Census iracts in PGAE's sarvica terrilory with a 1op quartibe score according 1o Califomia
Environmanial Protection Agency's CalErviroScresen 3.0,

EV Service Connection: Traditional uliity infrastructure from the wiility distribution system %o the mater. which may include
but is not limited 1o cable, conductors, conduit, Iranslormers, and assoclated subsinaciures from tha utiity distrbulion sysbam.
Also referred to as “To the Meaber™ [TTM) infrasiruciing,

EV Supply Infrastructure: Infrastruciune from the meter ("bul not incluging the metar®) ko tha parking space, which may
include an slectrical panel, cable, and conduil necastany 1o dalvar power to the parking space. Also referred bo as "Behind
the Melar ([BTM) inlrastnuciune,

Eleciric Wehicle Supply Equipment (EVSE): Equipmeant used for changing EVs. The conductors, including the ungroundead,
graunded, and equipment grounding conductars, the sleciric wehicla chargers, connacions, aftachment plugs, and all other
filtings, devices, power outlets, or apparaiusas installad specifically for the purpose of delivering energy from the Premises
wiring o the elaclric vahicla,

EVSE Package: EVSE hardware, softwara, and nebsork sarvicas,

EV Service Provider (EVSP): A company that provides EV charging solufions to Cuslomar, incheding but notl bnded o
network serdces, billing, and customear suppo.

Operaticn and Maintanancs [O&M): D&M includes, but Is not Fmiled to, network fees, regetling of breakers, replacamant of
paris, and associaled sendces necassary 1o kesp the EVSE andior EV Supply Infrastructure operational.

Pramisas: Pramises includes ol of the real property and apparatus employed in & singhe entenprize on an ntegral pancel of
land undivided, excepfing in the case of indusirial, agriculiural, oil field, resort enterprises, and public or guasi-public
inatitutions, by & dadicated strast, highway or public tharoughiare or railway. Aulomobde parking lots constituting a part of or
adjascent 1o a singla entesprisa may bo separated by an alley from the remaindar of the Prermises served. All Premisas must
be reviewed by PGAE to datermine whem senvce could be provided and at what cosl, PGAE may agree fo include some or
all of tha Pramizes in the EV Fleet Program, Mulliple Premises may be lisled in Exhibit A

Rate Plan: Tha PGAE alectic rate that Cusiomer pays for using EVSE. Detall on PGAE rates and elgibility criteria can ba
found at warw pga, comfgritts.

Customar: Tha enlity paricipating in the EV Fleat Program that owns, keases, or manages the Premises where the EVSE
Packages are insialled. Cusiomaer will receise the bill for the energy delivered to the EVSE Package.

Specific Terms

Acknowledgemaent and Term: All parfies agree ko abide by the lerms and condillons of this Contract for participation in the
EV Fleel Program (par of Calfomia Public Uiiises Commission, or "CPUC", Decialon Mumber 18-05-040 Eswved May 31,
2018}, Inchuding all requirements included by reference, The duration of this Contract {the “Term®) will commence gn the date
Cusiomer's EVSE Package becomes cperational and will continue in effact for tan (10} years thereafter (uniess cthansiss
aaiar larmminated pursuant o tha terms hergin), PGAE will infarm Customer In writing when the EVSE Package bacomas
aperational.

Ownership: Customer has two options fof ownership of EV Supply Infrastructure, Cwnership of other components i Esled
below for referance. Sections in this Coniract labeled "Customer Owned EY Supply Infrastructure” or "PGEE Owned EY
Supply Infrastruciure” will apply depending on the ownership opion & Customer selacts. Customer should indicale Fhair
awnarship option in the Cover Letier prewvided to the customer. All other tarms ama common (0 both ownership oplions.

Caniract version revised 112024 Paga 1 of 11
EV Fiset Progrem Terms and Conditlons ("Contract”)
Bebyeen El Tejon Unified School Disirict and Pacific Os&s and Elsciric Company



- Claan Enargy Transporiaton
Pacific Gas and Claaa sy Traniagoeiad
Electric I:W?_ﬂﬂﬂf 300 Lakeside Drive
Dakland, CA 94812

! PGAE aheays conatructs, owna, oparates, and maintaing the EV Servics Connaclion when necessary.
PGAE may opl bo ulillze existing infrastructure, inchading customear-owned conduils, in order o minimize project costs. This

will be indicated in the accompanying Prefiminary Design. In some cases the cusiomer may opl o use an axisiing senace
cannecian, in which case nowork will ba complatad by PGAE,

Mﬂﬂm Customes may have two options for EV Supply Infrasiruciure ownership;
PE&E amad: PGARE consiructs, owns, and mantains the EV Supply Infrastructure. PGAE covers cosis in
sccordanca with CPUC requirsments.
2. Customer Owned: Customar is responsible for consinsction and maintenance of EV Supply Infrastructure and
recaives an incenthva In accordance wilh CPUC requiremands.

EV Supply Equipment (EVSE): Customer always installs, owns, cperates, and maintaing the EVEE,

High level EV infrastructure configuration and terminclogy

m °n

Loty andats {0 g, [rowesd
Eneq, irsnalonme|

L I L ] 1 J
I 1 1

EV Serdce Cofaclion, of E Susspiy irrras bud iuse, oF BV Sapply
T Thay Rlader (TTH) Pimhired Thas lebasir (TTHA) Expuipemianl
miFadinshem Wl Ey B [EVRE]

Salection of EVSE Package: Upon approval ol application by PGAE, Custiomar shall salect and procure an EVSE Package
from the PGAE approved product lisl, PGAE will share approved product st with Customar, Customar shall install, operate,
and maindsin the numbar and type of the EVSE Packags, associated aquipment, and signage as selected by Cusicmer and
approved by PGAE. Customer acknowladges that PG&E makes no representations regarding manufaciurers, dealess,
contraciors, maledals, or workmanshsp of the EVSE Package. Customer egrees that PGAE has no Eability whaltosves
concarming the quaBty apd safaly of such EVSE Packaga. Al PGAE scole discretion, Cusiomar may use an EVSE Package
that is nat on the approved product list. If EVSE Package s not on the approved product Bst, EVSE Package must be compliand
with minimum reguiremernls. Thess mindmwem requisements are sttachad (o this Contracl, as applicable. In addilion 1o lhesa
requiremenils, EVSE Package musl ba 150151 18-ready, with the excaption of aquipmant that will be used 1o charge alf-read
vehicles, Cusiomer agrees to provide all information reguested by PGAE about non-approved EVSE Peckages, including bul
nol Emied to fechnical and safaty speciications.

EVSE Rebate: Customer may qualfy for a rebate of EVSE, in accordance with the CPUG requirements, Rebate amaournts will
wary in accordance with the CPUC requirements. Rebates will be paid after (1) Customer provides proal of purchase of EVSE
Package, (2) at PGAE discretion PGAE inspacts the instaliation of the EVSE and the physical localian, and (3) the EVSE is
oparational. All EVSE rebale claims must be submitted no later than March 31, 2028, Any EVSE acquired afler March 2028
will nod ba aligible for rebate,

Additional Services from EVSP: Separate and apar from the applicafion and PGAE's obSgations under the EV Fleat
Program, the EVSP selected by Customer may offer and confract direcily with the Cusiomer lo provide any addiional or
complementary sendces, a5 long as these services do nol interfere with the objectives of the EV Fleel Program as fully
dassribad in the CPUC decision. Tha costs of additional EVEP services, and any cost ralated to OSM of any acditional EVSP
services, will not be bome by PGAE, unless they are complementary sendces necessary o suppon the EV Fleet Program
objectives and ama approved by PGAE in writing,

EV Drivers’ Right to Access: Customer shall not restrict accass to o use of the EVSE for reasons inchuding, but not limited
io, race, color, religion, age, sex, nafional cdgin, ancesiny, physical of mental disability, or ary basis prohibited by applicable
law. However, Customer may dacide fo make the EVSE avadable only 1o its employess, tenante, or lessors; under tha lenms
of the EY Fleet Program, Cuslomar decides whether to make the EVSE available to other 3™ parties.

Cortract varsion revisad 112024 Paga 2ol 11
EV Fiaal Program Terms and Conditions ("Contract™)
Betwean El Tajon Unified School Distric! and Pacilic Gas and Elscirc Comparny



Pﬂﬂll E.nd Clean Energy Transporsiion
ﬂﬂﬂ'ﬁfﬂhs v Facilic Gas and Elcing Compsary
' Company 300 Laknside Drive
Cakland, CA 84612
Accessibility Requirements: The installation of the EVSE and EV Service Conneclion s required to comply with the
Amaricans with Disabifiies Act (ADA} and Calfornia Building Standards. Cuslomer undersiandgs and accapls thal such
standards may impact pardking layouls and reduce the number of non-accesaible parking spaces available, Customer
undersiands and accepls thal changes io iniflal design representations may occur during the design, construciion, and

oparational phases of the EVSE as may be dictaled by design conatraints, by law or regulation, or by local jursdictional
autharitias,

Easemant Requirement; An sasemant may be requined by maintain PGAE owned faciites, PG&E will usa axisting aassmends
when possible to minimize encumbrances on Cusiomer proparty. [ 8 new easamant |8 required, accass rights will follow
standard ulility requiremenis for providing elecirical senvice, PGAE will determing if a new easemant is required when
Cusiomer applcation is evaluated and will communicabe that to Ciustomer. If Customer ¢oes nol wish to grant an sasement
for one or mora Premisas, PGEE may remove (hosa Premises from the EY Fleat program. [f Customer acceplts casemaent
reguirements, Cuslomer agrees (o granl PGEE an eassment for the installation of EV Sarvica Connection and EV Supply
infrastructure. If the BV Sendce Conneclion must crass proparty owned by a third party to serve Customer, PGRE may, al its
option, install such EV Service Connection after appropriate rghts of way or sasamanis, satisfaciony io PGEE, are oblained
without cost 1o PGAE. Cuslomer i respanaible for coardinating attainment of amy easamants, Cusiomer agress 1o sign and
raburn easemen o PGAE within 30 days of recaipl. If the Customar does not reapond within 30 days, PGAE reserdes the righl
b0 rescind Cusiomer's participation in tha EV Fleat Program and recover all costs incurmed, Upon temination of the Conbract,
PGAE shall upon wrillen demand therefors exesile and delbver io Customar 8 good and suffichent quitclaim of said sasemant
and right of way of such portion thereof cormiayad In this document, at Cusiomear expense,

EVSE D&M: The Cuslomer i3 required to malntaln the EVSE for the Term, Customaer will pay all 0&M costs assacialed with
the EVSE. Custsmer shall mainiain a conslstant uplime a1 tha direction of PGAE for EVEE installed, Cusiomer shall maintasn
the cormmon afea improverments mmediately sumounding the EVSE in good condilion, andinary wear and tear axcepted, and
will promplly notify PGEE of any problems It s eware of related io the EVSE. Such maintenance by Cuslomer of the
immadialely surrounding commeon areas shaell nclude, bul not be limited o, pavemen mainlanance and Snow remosvel
services, il applicable. Uninterrupted service ks not guaranbesd, and PGRE may intermupt service when necassary b ansune
galely or lo perform maintenance on PGAE owned infrasinicture. PGAE will use reasonable affons to nolify Cusiomer in
advanca al intarruptions Io sandce, planned maintenance, and physical access 1o Pramises. Custormer will immadiataby shul
diwn chargers [f thara Is & safety lssus,

Billing: Customer will ba tha PG&E Custorner and will ba served according fo the applicabls Rate Plam. As tha Cusiomer,
Casstomear will be responsibia for paying the PGALE bill,

Compansation: Undar no conditions shall Customer or EV Drivers receive compensation of any kind (inciudirg but not Emited
to: cash, in-kind sanvices, or atherwisa) for ary duties or requirements provided for in this Conlract or for participation in any
way 35 part of tha EV Flast Program, including but nod imited (o easaments, use of data for lewful purposes, loss of business
acthvity during construction or maintenance activilies, or any other inconvenlance or loss, without Bmilation, related o
participation.

Changing Rate Plan: Customer may change Rate Plan during the Term but must remain on a ratall PGAE rale for the duration
of the Term. If Cusiomer swilches 1o a nan-retail PGAE rale during the Tesm, Customer shall baar the full cost and sole
expense, 85 circumsiances may dickate, for losses incurred by PGAE on behalf of ratapayers, such a5 pro-raled costs of
equipmant, site design, and insialation.

Raliability; PGAE does nol guaranies uninlarrupbed sepdea. Cusipmar may pursse opdions bo ensure that any impact o
Cusiomes oparations from potentiad loss of power & sufliclently mitigated. Customer is responsible for the cost of any
supplemental solutions o improve: reliabty.

Expansion of EVSE Instaltation: Cusiomer may add mora charging parts to thair installation in the fulure, in accordance with
the provisions of CPLUC filed lariffs such as Electric Rule 16. Customer must coordinate with PGAE prior to any approved
Installalion exiension, Any inslallations or related work perfarmed outside of EV Fleat program will be a8 Cuslomer's expensa
and ils liability,

EVSE Replacement: Customer may replace their EVSE during the Termn, Cuslomer musd nelify PEAE ahead of replacameant
b ansune infrasiruciure can accommodala the sdditonal load and new EVSE comples with necassary CPUC requinsmenis
for the program. If adeguate infrastruciure does nol exdat, Customar must request incrsased capacily in accardance with the
provisions of CPUC filed tariffs such as Elactric Rule 16, Any replacamaents will be @ Cuslomar's axpards and (b lisbilty,

Vehicle Purchase Plans: PGAE will work with Customar lo understand its Rest electrification plans and may instail

Canltract version medsnd 11,2004 Paga 3 of 11
EW Fleet Program Terms and Condillona ("Conirac™)
Batwaan El Tejon Linifed School District and Pacific Gas and Electric Company



H Clean Energy Trarepaorialion
Fﬂ'ﬂErﬂ-ﬂmﬂﬂsm & Paciic Ga and Elacine Comgany

1 E“'“F“'-’I‘ 00 Lakesida Drive

Cakland, CA 4812

infrastruciure to suppor fulurs vehicle purchases, [n Exhibdl A, Cuslomer will provida the numbar, typa, and charging levels
of elaciric wehicles that will be used o the Premises over time o justify the requested infrasiruciure. At PGAE discration,
during the Term PGAE may request evidence thal Cuslomer (s operaling these wehicles and asssocialed charging in
accordance wilh #s elecirfication plan, I Customar is not sparaling vehlclas consistan wilh its electrification plans, at PGAE
discration, Customes may ba responsible lor PGAE cosfs associated with installing the excess infrastuciure. This includas
cosls, a5 circumsiances may dictale, for losses incurred by PEAE on behall of ratepayers, such as costs of equipmend, site
design and installation, Customer may, &l any Eme within the Termn request from PGAE projected and final costs associaled
with this, f Customer wishes lo change its plan, Cuslomer must provide a modified plan o PGAE. This modfied plan mast be
misdually agreed upen by PGAE and Cuslomer. Customer may apt to replace these vehicles with similar equipmaent bt mausi
oparats the number and type of vehicles oullined in tha electrification plan. Vehicles that are leased must ba replaced wilh
similar equipment upen ieminalion of the lease duration.

If Custormes i nol tha pafy reapondgible for purchasing or leaging the vehicles indicated in Exhibit A, they will acquire and
prowide such proal fram the responsible party inciuding the number, type, and charging levels of alectic vehiclas thal will be
used al the Premisas over ime (o justify tha reguesied infrastructure. Cuslomar is responsitie o provide avidence of vehicle
operation and sssociaed charing during this term in sccordance with the indicated alectrification plans, If vehicles ane nol
operating consistent with the indicated electification plans, al PGAE discration, Customer may ba responsible for PGAE cosls
assacialed with ingtalling the excess infrastructura. This includes costs, 88 circumstances may dictate, for losses incurmed by
PEAE an behall of ratepansers, auch as coats of sguipment, site design, and installation.

Project Scope: Customer acknawiadges thal:

»  Customer agreos o the high-level project scope lsted in Exhibit A,

s Upon exsculion of thes Contract, PGLE will bagin incurring design feas and costs as Customar project monves
forward;

e I Customar withdraws from the program, then PGAE resenves the mght to recover all fees and costs incurred by i
and its subcontraciors afler the execubion of this Coniract including, but not limited to, design cosl, sile walk costs,
ate.;

s PGAE will conduct & aits walk;

r  If the axsting infrastruchune or physical site or equipment is substantially different than anlicipated or described,
then PGAE will make resscnable offort o redesign the project in & manner acceptablia io both parties, but resanves.
tha right fo cancel Customer paricipation in the program; and

= |f Customer does not submil required documentation (e.q., signed sasement il needed) in a Bmely manner, then
PGAE may grant extensions by requast but resarves the right to waitlist Custarmer application andfor cancal
participation in the program.

External Fundlng Sources: Custormer understands that the iolal infrasinecture and EVEE rebalbe and incenlive amounts tha
Cusiomar recehes from all sources, which may includa but is not limitad to, utilities, stale programs, manufaciuner, retailer, oF
olherwise, cannol exceed Cusiomer's total cost of purchasing the EVSE, installing the EVESE, and consirucling the EV Supply
nfrastructura.

Cusiomar agrees to keap records of all Infrastriciure and EVSE incentves and rebabes recelved for Customar's EV Fleat
progect. Customar undarstands thal PGAE may request and review said reconds up bo one year afler progect complaton date.
if rebates and incentives received excesd incurred project cost, PGAE may inform all ather funding sources, which may Include
but |z nat imited bo, utiitles, stale programs, manufacturer, retailer, or ofher, of the violation, Including the nama of the
Customear, 8 description of tha project, and details regarding ihe excessive rebales and incenthes.

Customer Owned EV Supply Infrastructure Section

EV Supply Infrastructure Incentive: Customer qualifins for an incenfive towands the cost of EV Supply Infrastructure if they
choose to own and maintain the EV Supply Infrastruciure, Incentive amounts will vary in accordance with the CPUC
requirements. Incantive will ba pakd after (1) Cuslomar provides proof of actual EV Supply Infrastruciune construction cost, (2)
EW Supply Infrastnaciure canstruction is complete, (1) the EVSE is oparalional,

Installation of EV Service Connection; PGAE andior s contractars shall design and construct the EV Service Connection
In compliance with the terms of this Conlract, a5 well a8 all applicable local, state, and fedaral lswe and reguiatory
requiremeants. Customer is responsible for providing all disclosunes, including bul not lmiled o hazardous materals located
81 tha sita of the installation. If an sasement & required, PGAE will provide a praliminary layoul of proposed faclitles to
Custemes prior 1o praparation of easemen Tor Cuslomer review and approval; sueh approvalwill not urdeasonably be withhald,
The essement will ba sxacuted and recorded in faver of PGAE 20 that PG&E may access the EV Servica Conneclion as

Conbract varsion revised 112024 Paga 4 of 11
EW Fleat Program Terma and Candilions ("Comiract)
Batwnan EI Tajan Unified School District and Pacific Gas and Electris Company



= Claan Ersrgy Transpartation
mmm . Pacific Gas and Elecinic Company
i Hﬂ'ﬂﬂ'ﬂ-ﬂﬂlﬂ.ﬂﬂ'ﬂr 00 Lkossictes Do
Craklard, Ch 04612

neaded. It will ba the Customar's responsibiity to provida a preliminary design of the EV Supply Infrastructure and associated
eleckical loads so that PGAE can provida tha assoclated BV Senvica Connaclion design, PGAE and Custamar will approve
final design prior to conatruction baginning. Onca design Is approved, no material changes will be made without approval from
PE&AE and Customer, After tha EVSE ks cparational, Customar may request a copy of "as buill” designs, which will ba provided
by PGRE.

Instalation of EV Supply Infrastructure: The Customer andior s contraciors shall construct the EV Supply Infrastructure
and install ihe EVSE in compliance with the terms of this Contract, as well a5 all applicabla local, stale, and federal laws and
regulatary raquirements, including PGAE requirements found al www pge comégreenbock. The Customer |8 responsibla for
{i] the coats to construct the EV Supply Infrastructure, (i) the purchase of the EVSE Package, and (iii) installation of the EVSE.
Afer the EVSE is operational, Customer recatves incentive for EV Supply Infrasiructure in accardance with terms of this
Contract.

EV Supply Infrastructurs O&M: If Customar owns the EV Supply Infrastructura, Cusbormer &= respansibla for &M of the EV
Supphy Infrastructure for the Term. Customar will pay ail 0&M costs associated with the EV Supply Infrastructure. Customar
shal maintain the common area improvements immediately surrounding the EV Supply Infrastruciure in good condifion,
ordinary wear and lesr excepted, and will promplly notify PGEE of any problems @ is aware of related 1o tha EV Supply
Infrastructure. Such maintenance by Gustomer of the immadialely surmaunding common areas shall inchude, but nol be Emited
b, pavernent mainlanance and snow removal senvices, if applicable. Uninterrupled senvics i not guaranteed, and PGAE may
intarrupt sandce whan necessary to ensure safely or 1o parform mainlenance. PGAE will uss reasonabie efforts to nosify
Gustomer in sdvance of intemuptions o sandce, planned maintenanca, and physical accass to Pramises.

Accasa to Customars Pramises: PGRE shall al all times hava (ha right i ener and leave the Customen's Promises for any
purpose connacted with tha fumishing of electic serice o the BV Service Connecion (mater reading, inspeciion, lestng,
routine repairs, replacement, mainlensnce, vegelation management, amargency work, eic.) and the exercise of any and all
rights secured to & by law, or under PGAE™ applicable tanff schedulas. i Customer does nol grant PGAE reasonable access
o tha Premisas, then PGAE may deanergize ke EV Serdice Connectian untl access is grantad, PGEE will work closely wilh
Caeslomear to ensure this access doss nol unreasonably interers with Customer’s proparty or openalions.

End of Term: Af the and of Ihe Termn, the Customer will have the following options:
1. Continue operaiing EVSE and EV Supply Infrastnuctune

a  Custemer kas continued responsibllity for O&M of EVSE and EV Supply Infrastruciune.

o Il an easement was required for Installation, essamant remains in place,

o PCEAE eontinses to own EV Sarvice Connection and will fresd this under (he standand previsiona of CPUC
filed tmrfls such as Elecirc Rule 16,

2., Stop operaling EVSE and EV Supply Infrastructure

o Remows the EVSE andiar EV Supply Infrastructura al Customear's cost and expanss.

p I an sasement was required for insisllafion, PGAE will defiver a quilctaim for the easement and the
easamant will ba ramoved,

o PGAE will require access 1o any anergized PGAE faciliies. If EV Service Connaction sarves oiher load or
assets, for example building load or solar, PGAE continues to own EV Service Connection and will treatl this
undar the slandard provisions of CPUC filed tardfs such as Electric Rule 16, If EV Servica Connection sarves
anly the EVSE installed undar this Condract, PGAE will deenergize EV Service Connection and abandon
faciiities In place.

PGAE Owned EV Supply Infrastructure Section

Installation of Equipmani: PGAE and/or Its contractors shall design and consiruct the EV Senice Connection and EV Supply
Infrastructure in compliance with the terms of this Contract, as well as all applicable local, state, and federal laws and regulatory
requirements. Customer ls responsible for providing all disclosunes, including but not Brmiled bo hazardous materials located
ot the site of the installation. If an sssement is requirad, PGAE will provide a pealiminary layoul of propesed faciities to
Customar prior 1o preparation of aasameant for Customar review and approval; such approval will not unreasonably be withhald.
The sasement will be axecuted and recorded in favor of PGAE so thal PGAE may access the EV Sanvice Connection and EV
Supphy Infrastnecture a5 neaded. Afler Customar approval of the praliminary design, PGAE will coordinate with the Cusiomer
if there are ary propoesed malarisd changes. A final design wilh no material changes from the agreed upon design will ba
provided by PGAE prior to any installation activities, PGEE and Customer will approve final design price to construction
beginning. Oncea dasign is approved, no material changas will be made without approval from PGEE and Customar. An
eslirmated Installation schadule shall be provided by PGAE afler execution of required easement and timeby selection of EVSE
Package. Should the Installation schedule require modification, PGAE shall notify Customer within a reasonable amount of
tirne of such changes, PGAE is msponsible for the costs lo construct the EV Supply Infrastructure. The Customer i

Cordrac vamion revised 112024 Page 5ol 11
EV Fise! Program Terms and Conditions ("Conirac”)
Betaeen El Tejon Unified School Distnict and Pacilic Gas and Electic Company



Faﬂlﬁﬂ" EEE Clean Energy Transporialicn

- and . Paci Gas ahil Eleciric Company

; Electric Company 300 Lakeskde Drive

Caklsnd. CA 4612

responsible for (1) the purchasa of the EVSE Package and () insiadlation of the EVSE. Upan complelion of installation of the
EWSE, he Cuslomer undarstands and acknowladges thal it will be responaibla far the O&M aof the EVSE Installed throwgh the

EV Fleel Program, Afler the EVSE i operational, Cusiomer may reguest a copy of "as bull® designs, which will be provided
by PGAE,

EY Supply Infrasiructure D&M: H PEAE owns the EV Supply Infrestructure, PGAE s responsible for O&M of the EV Supply
Infrasiruciure for the Term, PGEE will pay all O8M cosis associated with the EV Supply Infrastnecture, Customars shall
mmainkian the common area improvaments immediately surrounding the EV Supply Infrastructure in good condition, sedinary
wear and lsar axcepied, and will prompily notity FGAE of any problems it is awara of relaied 1o the EV Supply Infrastiuctine,
Such mainienance by Customear af the immediaiely sumounding commaon areas shall incluge, bul not be limited to, pavement
mainbenance and snow removal senices, If applicabla. Uninermepted sanica ks not guaranteed, and PG&E may inbarrupl
sErvice when necassany o ensure salaty or bo parform maintenanca, PGRE will use reasonable efforts to notify Cusiomer in
advancs ol iMarmuptons to sendce, plannad maintenanca, and physical sccess 1o Premises.

becess to Customers Pramises: PGAE shall ai all times have the right o enter and lsave the Cuslomer's Premises for any
purposs connactad with tha furnishing of alactic servica o tha EV Sarvice Conneclion (meler reading, inapection, tesling,
rouline repairs, replacameant, malnlenanca, vegetallon management, emargency waork, obo.) and the exercise of any and ail
rights sacured bo it by law, or under PGAE"s applicable tanff schedules., i Cusiomer does not grand PGAE reasonable accass
b thie Pramisas, then PEAE may deanargize the EV Senvica Connection until access is granted, PGRE will wark clossly with
Customer o ansure this access does not unreasonably intesfese with Customar's property of oparations.

End of Tarm: Al tha and of tha Tarm, tha Cusiomer will hava ihe fxllowing oplions:
1. Continua oparating EVSE

o Cusiomer has conlinued responsibility for O8M of EVSE,

o Han sasemen! was required for inslallaion, sasamant refmains in place.

o PGAE confinues to own EV Sandice Connaction and EV Supply infrastructure and will treat thase undar the
stendard prowisions of CPLUC filed tarifts such as Eleciric Rule 18.

2. Stop operating EVSE

o Remowe the EVSE at Customer's cosi and expanse.

o I an pasemeni was required for inslaBation, PGAE will delbver a guitclaim for the easamant and bha
gasemant will be removed,

o PGAE will require access 1o any enangized PEAE facilities. I EV Service Connection andfor EV Supply
Infrastruciune seres alher lnad of assats_ for example solar, PGAE continuas o own EV Sarvica Conneciion
andlar EV Supply Infrastrochure and will treat thesa under the standard provisions of CPUC filed tarifls such
as Elecinic Rule 16, I EV Service Connection andior EV Supply Infrasiructure senves anly tha EVSE installed
undar this Contrac), PGEE will deenargiza EV Service Connection and EV Supply Infrasiructure and
abandon Tacililias n placa.

Ganeral Terms

Permission to Use Data: Cuslomer agrees o allew PGEE and s agents and representatives o use dala gathared as part
of tha EV Fles! Program (including usage data from the EVSE and EVEE performance data suppiad directly Io PG&E from
tha EVEP) MUsage Data™) for use in regulslory reporing, ordinary businass uvse, indusiry forums, case shudies, or other similar
activities, In accordance with applicable laws and regulstions. Usaga Data furnished to PGAE by tha EVSP will nol includa
any personal infosmation as dafined for the purposes of Callomia privacy laws (including the California Privacy Rights Act, as
amanded"CPRA™M)L  Any such personal data will be debdantified (as daefined by CPRA) before il s provided to PGRE.
Hotwithstanding the foregaing, Cusiomer acknowledges thal PGAE |s required to disclose location data at census tract or 5-
digit zip code level as par of it regulatory obligations %o report aggregata data. Although such locations will not ba ideniified
as Custormer locations in the aggregated and anonymous data disclosed by PGAE, a third party could polendially associalg
Cuslomes wilth disclosed locatlons by refaranca o athar fBcts and data sources,

Representations: Cuskormer undersiands that ils paricipation in EVY Fleet Program shall nof be construed as creating any
agency, parinership, of athear farm of joint entarprisa betwean the Custormar, PGAE, or their affiliales, contracions, wandors,
reprasantabives, of dasigness, nor cragla any cbligations or rasponsibiliies on their behall excepl & may be expraschy granbed
i wriling, nor rmake any reprasantations of any kind to this effect, Cuslomer represants and warmranls thal if is either (i) he fes
fithe cwvner and has tha abiity lo grant an aasement (if requirad), or (i) it is the authorized manager of tha proposed EV Fleel
Program site working with the fas Stle cwner, it has tha power, authority, and capacity 1o bind Bself {0 underake the BV Flaal
Program terma and conditions and to parform each and avery abligation required of Cuslomer, and such fee tifle owner has
the abiliby to grant an aassmant (if naadad].

Contract version rovisad 112034 Fagn & of 11

EV Fleet Program Tarms and Condilions ("Contract)
Betwian El Tejon Unified School District and Pocific Gas and Electric Compasy



. Claan Enargy Transporiaticn
Pacific Gasand Pacific Gas and Electric Company
Electric Company 300 Lakesida Drive
Dakland, CA S4812

Changes: PGAE may initiate changes o the EV Fleet Program as necessary o comply with CPUC directives, PGAE shall
endesver o provida Customar with advence notica of any such changes, Cuslomer has the oplion b opt out of the Program
subject o sacton “Customar Ramaval or Termination™ balow,

Compllanca with Laws: All parties shall comply with all applicable federal, siale, and local stalutes, nikes, regulations, laws,
orders, and decisions that relabe to or govern ils participation in the EV Fleel Program andfor Customer's inferactions with
cugismads I connaction with the EV Flaat Program,

Fallure to Comply with Tarms and Conditions: Withaul limitation, and o the grealest extent allowed by law, PGAE and
Customer rasarva the right 1o sask demages and recovary for lesses incurred due io any breach of this Conlract on the part
of Custormer or PGAE, whathar intentional or urinientional.

Relocations: Should Cusiomer request relocalion of EVSE or parts [haraof, such relocation shall ba per mutually agresabio
tesrreg and shall be at sole sxpense of Customer and in sccordance with any E' Fleal Program requirements, aws, regulations,
or other applicable jurisdictional requinamants, Addiionally, if applicable and requested by PGAE, Customer shall aithar amend
the sasement to incheda the legal descripon of the new localion or anber inke & nenw aasemant with PGAE.

PGAE Tarmination or Suspansion: PGAE may larminale, of for ary duration suspend, Customar's participation in the EV
Fleet Program, with or withoul cause, at any bme, and for any reason, with reasonable advance nofics. Such reasons may
inchida but ane not limiled (o failure o provide or maintain terms of easement, faliure to abide by EY Flest Program berms and
condiions, parmilting issues, exceplional inslallation coste, amdronmanial concams, or ey othar reasan(s) nol in the best
indmresls of the EV Fleel Program of PGAE'S ralepayar.

Customar Removal or Termination: Should Customer reguest remowal of tarmination of EVSE or parts thereol prior to
expiration of the Tamm, ihen Customer ahall baar the full cost and sole axpansa of such removal as 'well as all fees and costs,
as circumstances may dickate, Tar lesses incurred by PGAE on behall of mtepayers, such as pro-raled costs ol equspemant,
site design, and installation. Customer may, at any time within the Term, request from PGRE projecied and final costs
associaied with such a removal requesi. Such costa will Include all amounts paid by PGAE, divided equally dver & 1an-year
pericd (8.q., if amoums: otal 3100k and Customer leaves aftar 1 year it is responsile for $50k). If the Customar wizhas o
assign its rights and obligations of this Contrect 108 new Customar prior 1o the axpiration of the Tesmn, the new Customer may
assume all rights and abligations for the rermaining Tarm with PGAE consant. Such consend nat 1o be unfsasonably withhald,

Indemnification: Customer shell indemnify, hold harmiess, and defend PGAE, its affliales, subsidiares, pﬂl’ﬂntmﬂpmj'
officers, managen, directors, agents, and employess, from and against all claims, demands, bases,

expenzes, and liabdity (lagal, contractual, or othensisa), which ardse from or ang in any way connectad with any: () |T‘l:|'|-l‘:| to or
death of persons, including but not limited 1o employees of PGEE or Customaer; [il) injury bo property or other inderesis of
PG&E, Cusbamer, of any third party; (iil) violation of a local, state, or federal comman kaw, statule, or regulation, including but
il limnited 1o erdronmental laws or regulations; or (iv) strict liabiity imposed by arry law of regulation; 8o lang as such injury,
vialatian, ar strict llabilty (as sat forth in (i) - (v) above) arises from or is in any way connacted with Customar's performance
of, or fadure to perform, this Contract. This indemnification oblgation shall net apply 1o the extant thal such injury, boss, or
damage i caused by tha neglganca or willl misconduct of PGAE, its officers, managens, of employees.

Customer shall, on P3&E's requesi, defend any action, dlaim, or sull assedting a claim which might be covered by this
imdharmnity, using counsal acceptable to PGEE., Customer shall pary ol costs and expenses thal may be incumed by PGAE in
enforcing this indemnity, including reasonable attomey's fees, To the extent necessary, each Pary was represented by
caunsel in the negotiation and execution of this Conbracl, PGAE represents and warrants that it has indemnification language
in s cantract with any third party who PGAE may send 1o perform wark on Custormer's physical site. PGAE agrees to work
closely with Customer on any concemns that may arise related to the party who will perform work on Customer's physical site,

Iinsuranca Requiraments; Cusiomar shall procune, canry, and maintain e following insurance coverage, and Customer is
also responsible for its Subcontractors maintaining sufficient limits of the apprepriate insurance coverage:

A, Parzonal Liabihy

1. Tha limit shall rot be less than Ona Milkon Doftars ($1,000,000) each occurmence for bodily injury, property
damage and personal injury,

2. Coverage shall. a) By "Addiional Insured”™ andorserment add as insureds PGAE, Bs direciors, officers, agents,
and pmployess wilh respact to llability arsing oul of work perfcemed by or for the Cusiomar, b) Be andorsed 1o
specify that the Cuslomer insuranca |8 primary and that any insuranca or seff-insurance maintained by PGSE
shall nol contribute with it

Candract wamion mevisad 112024 Pags ¥ al 11
EV Flaet Program Terms and Condilions ("Contmct™)
Batween El Tejon Uniled Schaol Dietrict and Pacilic Gas. and Elsctric Comparry



. Claan Enargy Transporialion
Fﬂ'ﬁ-’n‘ﬁ?EﬂEﬂﬂﬂ . Padhc Gaa and Elecing Gompary
; Electric GCompany 300 Lakoside Drive
Dadtend, CA 4812

B, Workers' Compensation and Emglayers’ Liability

1, Workers' Compansation insurance or salf-insurance indicating compliance with any applicable labor codes, acls,
laws, o statutes, state o lederal, where Customer perfonms Wk,
2, Employers' Liability naurance shall not be less tham 59,000,000 for injury or death in asch accident,

C. Commercial Ganeral Liakabty

1. Coversge shall be al least as broad as tha Insurance Servicas Offica (150) Commarcial Ganeral Lisbility Coverage
“accurrence” famm, wilh no coverage dedetlons,

2. Thea limit shed not ba lass than §1,000,000 each occurranca for bodily injury, proparty damage and persanal injury,

3. Coverage shall: 8) by "Additional Insured” endorsamant add as insureds PGAE, ils affiliates, subsidiaries, and
parent company, and PE&E's direciors, officers, agents, and emplioyess with respect to Bability ansing out of or
connactad with tha Waork parformad by or for the Cusiomar, (150 Farm CG2010 or equivalant is praferred,) In the
event the Commercisl Genarad Liability poficy includes a "blanket endorsemend by contract,” the following Bnguage
added to the cartificala of Insurance will sallsfy PGAE's addilional insured requiement: “PGEE, its afffales,
subsldiaries, and parent company, and PGAE's directors, officers, agents, and employess with respect (o ladility
artsing oul of tha work perfonmead by or for the Cusiomer are additional insureds under a blanked endorsemend,”, b)
baendorsed 1o specify that the Customer's insurance is primany and that any insurance or sell-ingumnce maintained
by PGAE shall not coniribute with i,

0. Documeniation Requirements

1.  Customer shall have all insurance in piace bafors beginning any Work, Upaon request, Custarmer shall furnish PGAE
with carlificales of nsurance, declaralion pages and endorsements (collectively, "Documentation™ of all requined
insurance. Documentation shall be sigred and submilted by a person avthorized by that insurar bo EEsue cerificates
of insurancs and endorsamaents on its behall,

2. Theinsurer shall daliver notificaion o PGAE in accordanca with the policy peovigions ¥ any aof the above-described
policies are cancelled bafore the stated exparalion dabe,

3. PGEE may inspect the original policies in Seclions A or B or require coples at any time, CustomanOwnar may
medac] non-essantial expodune informalion rom copees.

4. The minirmum Eability insurance nequirerments astablished In this Contract are nod 8 represeniation by PGEE thal
{he insurancs limits ane suffichent, nor do thesae requirements in ary way imit Cusiomer's Eability under this Conlract,

5  Upon reguest, Cuslomer shall furnish PGSE the same evidence of Insuranca for lis Subconiractors as PGRE
reduiras of Cusiomes,

Dispute Resolution: Afer albermpting in good faih o reschve a dispute, a party may regues! mediation by writien nolica o
the other Party, Tha meadiation shall be conducted by a muteally-agreaatds madistor with sppropriale expariance. Al
negoiations and any medation conducied pursuant 1o this provislion are confidential and shall ba treated as compromisa and

safflemen! negoliations, 1o which Saction 1119 of the California Evidence Code shall apply, and Section 1118 is incorporated
Ferain by relarance,

Mo Partnership: Thia Contract shall not be consineed as crealing a partnership, joint venfure, agency relationship, franchise,
ar asseciation, nor shall this Contract rendar PGAE and Customar lable as pariners, co-wenfures, or principals,

Enforceability: If any of tha provisions, or application of ary of the provisions, of this Confract ama hald o be illegal o invalid
by a courl of compateni jursdicion, PGAE and Customer shall negotiate an aguilabla adjustment in the provisions of this
Conbract with a wew toward effectuating the purposa of this Contract. The illegality or irvalidity of any of the provisions, or
application af amy of the provislons, of this Condract will not affect the legality or enforcaability of tha remaining provisions of
application of any of the provisions of the Contract,

Integrathon: This Confracl, including all items ncorporated herein by reference, constilutes the enbife agresment and
understanding between tha paries as o the sublect matter of the Contraci, | superiedes all prior of conlemporansoUs

agresments, commitmants, represanations, wrilings, and discussions babasen paries, whathar oral or wrilten, express or
B'mlud that relats in any way io tha subject matter of this Contract. This Conbract has been induced by no reprasantations,
slaternents, or agreameants olher than those sxpressed hargin, Meither party shall be bound by any peor of conlamporansous
abligatiens, conditions, warranties, or representations with respect 1o tha subject matter of this Coniract

Cantract version sevisad 112024 Pags 8 of 41
EV Flaal Program Terms and Condifions TConlract™)
Batwaan El Tejon Unified School District and Pacific Gas and Electric Company



Clean Enarrpy Transportataon
mmm k Pacifio Gas and Elsciic Company
Electric Company 300 Lokesids Drive
Clakland, CA B46172
Survivak Thi provisions of this Conlract, which by their nalure shoukd surviva expiration, cancallation, or ofher termination of

this Contracl, nchiding But not Bmiled by provigons megending warranty, indamnity, insurancs, confidentiality, documesnd
redeivion, buginess athics, and avsdability of mésrmation, shall survive such expiration, canceltation, or offer termination.

Notice: Ary and all nofices shall be in wilting and osddressed b the pariea at the addresses spacified below or such afher
pddrasses as either party may direct by nolics gheen in sccordance with this section and shall be delivated in one of he
fallowing manmners: (1) by persanad delvery, in whach cags notica shal be daamad to havo Deen duly given when dielivensd, (5)
by cedified mail, returm receipt requested, with postage prepaid, in which case nofice shall be deemed io have been duly given
an tha date indicated on tha refurm receipd; or (il by repulable dalivery sarvica (Incleding by way of axamgéa and nol imitation
Fedaral Express, UPS and DHL ) which makes a record of the dale and ime of deitvery, in which casa notice shad bo deamed
o have been duly given on the date ndicated an (he dalivery sardce’s rmoord of dalivery.

If 1o PGAE:

Pacific Gas and Electric Comparmy
Attn: EV Fleat Program Manager

300 Lakessda Drive

Ciakland, CA B4612

Emall Address: EVChargabatworki@pge com

I 1o CLghomar
[Compary Marms)
(Sirest Address)
{Cay, Zip)
{earm)

The Parfies have axeculed this Condract on ihe dates indicated below, lo be effective upon the later dale.

El Tejon mmmnqﬁ# Pacific Gas and Electric Company
PGAE Company Mams

Fgralise

Prnl

PGAE Contract Signer Tilk

Comirae] varsien reviaed 11 2034 Pagn 3 of 11
EV Float Program Terms ard Condlicns "Conirac!®)
Betwmen El Tejon Unified School Disirct and Paclc Gas and Eleciic Company



s Claga Enargyy Tranapanalan
.Fb{:lf.'ﬂ EES -ﬂﬂd Pacilic Gas and Elecirc Gompany

f Eleciric Lompany” 3001 Lakeside Drive
! Dakland, CA 04612

EXHIBIT A

PROJECT SCOPE
4337 Lebec Road, Lebec, CA 93243

Vehicle Summary

Description

| School Buses i} 2z 0 ] 2 4

|

Charger (EVSE) Summanry

Daescription

1513 kW o 2 ] 0 ] 2 EVSEs
Antlicipated Load (KW) W 303 KW I. 0 kW 0 kW ] 0 kW ] 303 kW

Please nobte thal youwr project was scoped based on the make, model, and power level of your EV chargers, as
described in tha preliminary design. Changes to your EV charger salection may impact the charger load of your
project, If you would like to change your charger selection, please consult with your Project Manager
before charger purchase so they can ensure the alternative chargers will be compatible with your
project’s deslgn. PGAE reserves the right fo recover addifional cosls associaled with any changes you request
o your project scope.

m

Main Service Size (Amps) G0

Voltage and Phase 2TTBON Thres Phase

Coniraci version revided 112024 Page 10 of 11
EV Fient Program Terms and Conditiona ("Conltract™)
Batween El Tejon Unified School Diatrcl and Pacilic Gas and Eleciric Company



Pacific Gas and
Electric Company”

Max Load Table

Elaan Energy Transpodiation
Pacific Gas and Elciic Company

S0 Lakoskde Orke
Oiakiand, CA 94512

Cuslomer must adhers lo the load profile provided below. If the customer desires to increasa their load or maodify
their hours of use, an application must ba submitied o PGAE's Service Planning department. Failura fo maet
these guidelines may jeopardize reliable operation of the electric system, If EV charging exceeds these values
and causes damage to PGAE facilities, the cusiomer will be financially Eable for the cost of repairs.

i rk] 1026 2027 2028 2029
Cumuative ¥ of Vehicles Deplayed: 23 School Bus Iy School Bus 2x 5choal Bus dx School Busg
mt_ﬁu_:_._upnm 1513 1513 1513 2x 1513
N el 303 303 303 303
Hour Starting AL (M hous)] KW Load KW Max Load KW Max Load KW Max Load kKW Max Load

1:00

2:00]

300

A:00

5:00

G040

500

&:00

9:00|

10:00|

11:00{

12:00]

13:00)

1400}

1500

16:00]

17:00]

18:00]

19-p0

2000

21:00

22:00

23:00

|::nn!n::::lnnunqnﬂﬁabﬂﬂﬁﬁﬂﬂf o o8

Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ

HEE EEEEE S EEEEE S EEEEE

HHEEEEEE S EEE S EEEEES

ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ

Cordracd vamion esised 11,3024

Paga 11 af 19

EV Flaet Program Terms and Conditiors ("Corérac)
Batwsen EI Tajon Unifiad School District and Pacic Gas and Electric Compary



Electric Company’ Pucifio G wnd Elsctiic Company

S0 Lakaside Db
Oaidand, CA S4612

M Pacific Gas and Ciaan Erargy Transporiaticn

Appendix A
PG&E EV FLEET PROGRAM PARTICIPANT DATA REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

EV Fleal program participants are reguired to provide site, equipment, and wiilization data for at leasi 5 years from the
time chargers are operational. Sites are required to install chargers with Application Program Interface [API)
communication capabdity,

Balow are the data and metrdcs that may ba collected by PGAE through the APL PGAE will contact EVSPs after EVSEs
are activated to Initate API testing. Upon activation, Customer must give consent (o their EVEP to provide APl dala to
PE4E and its agents and mapresantathves,

Cusiomer agrees io recelve and respand o customer survays throughout the project ifecycle including pest-installation,
upon reguest of PEAE or an sasociaied paty.

Off-road wehicles: Sites with off-road vehicles are axcluded from AP requinerments but myst install 8 sepasate maber
that Is dedicated for EV charging. In addition, due o the need for PGAE o report changar usage data 1o the CPLC, no
form of generation or distributed generation (inclheding solar and battery storage) may ba inskalled onio this melbar pamel
unil ive yesrs after the dala of progect activation,

Page 1 6f 2
Appandiy A



Pacific Gas and
' Electric Company”

Tahble 1. Data callacted from APY

Catagary

Claar Enaegy Transporiaion
Pacific Gas and Eleciic Company
300 Laksside Driva

Oakdand, G §48132

Siltm

Equipmant

Sessions
Drata for each charging sesaion that
ocecurs al he sita

Sessbon Intervals

[ 15-minute interval data for each

charging session

Port Intervals
15-minufe interval dala for gach port
aach deay (96 interwakaporiday)

-

& @ B O K B B F " B & &

E B B OB B OF B B & & &

# B & & B R

B FE B OB B

Pricing Structune [$&Wh, $haur, subseription, frea, flat fea, other) (for public
chaming siations anly)

Streal Addraszs

City

Siala

Zip Coda

EVSE Manufaciurer

EVSE Modal

EWSE Modal numbar

EWVSE Serial Mumbér

EWVSE 1D (for public charging stations onlby)
Dermand Max (Maximum rated KW for aach EVSE)
Murmbar of porls on assoclated EVSE

Galevway or Ron=ga ey

bdaximum rated KW of each port

Starl date and time of sasslon

End data and tima of session

Equipmeni outages

Reason for outage

Date and time of when outage siared

Data and tima of whan outaga andad

Mumber of ¥Wh consumed durmng the sassion
Avaraga darmand (kW) par session

Maximum demand (kW) per session

Tatal dollar amound charged 1o the diver for the changing session (for public |
charging stations only)

Demand charge ($%W) (for public charging slations only)
Paymenl lype (fof public changing stations only)
Ancnymous unigua drivar 1D for each driverfuser
Viehicle Makea

Wahicle Madel

Wahichs Year

WVahicle Typs (BEV, PHEV)

Start data and time of intarval

End date and fime of inbensal

Mumber of EWh consumed cunng the sesson mienvad
Averaga damand (kW) per session interval

Manimum demand (KW par 2esgion inlanal

Stan dabte and time of intensal

End date and fima of inlereal

Number of KkWh consumad during the inflerval
Axveraga damand (kW) par inbarval

Maximum darmand (KW} par intersal

Pags 2 of 2
Appandi &



Pacific Gas and
Electric Company’

Appendix B

Cleaan Erergy Trarapanation
Pacific Gas &nd Elaclies Comgany
3] Lakessctn Driva

Craklard, CA S4612

CPUC'S SAFETY REQUIREMENTS CHECKLIST FOR CPUC-APPROVED
TRANSPORTATION ELECTRIFICATION PROGRAMS

Page 1 of 4
Appandiy B



Transpartation Electrification Safety Requirements Checkiist D, 18-01-024/D.18-05-040

SAFETY REQUIREMENTS CHECKLIST FOR CPUC-APPROVED
TRANSPORTATION ELECTRIFICATION PROGRAMS

[Maote: Esch sponscdng ulility must ensurs thal tha following Pre-construction, Construction, and Operational standands
are mat and report on their compliances o quarery Program Advisary Council mestings. These requirerments are e

minimum safaty precautions the wilities should maat.|
Terminology Definad’

Acronym

Definition

EV

Elaciric Vahicla

UL

Urndenariters Laboratory

EVSE

Elecirie Vehicla Supply Equipmment safely connects tha AC
Leleciricity grid at a site o the EV. Sometimes used mare
broadly o refer lo the charnging equipment, not inclheding
the miake- ready infrastructure or othar charging
infrastructure. May include multipls conneciors to chame
saveral EVe or to serve EVe with different types of
conneciors (B.0.. SAE CCS and CHADeRMD)

Society of Automotive Enginesrs

ADA

Armericans with Disabililies Act

AHL

Authority Hawing Jurisdiction, as defined by Ardicle 100 of
tha 2017 National Eleciric Code: An arganizalion, office, or
individiual respansible far enforcing the requiremants of &
code or standard, or for approsing equipmant, matarials, an
installation, or a procedura,

J-1772 Standard

An SAE standard for alectrical and physical interface 1o
faciitaie a sale connection from the EVEE for conductve
charging

1 Sea D.18-01-024 at Appendix A,

1M T MEC Articha 100, Dafinitions, includes an informalional nole regarding AHJ: “The phrase "autharity having jurisdiction’

of jis acronym AHJ, i usad in Mational Fire Prodeclion Associabion (NFPA) documents in a broad manner, since
Jwisdictions and approval agencies vary, as do Their responsibilities. Whare public safety is primary, the autharity having
jurisdiction may be a federal, state, local, or obher regional depariment or individual such as a fire chief; fira marshal; chief
of a fire prevention bursau, labar depanment, or health department; building officiak slectrical inspecior; or ofhers having
stafulary authority. For insurance purposes, an nsurance inspection depariment, raling bureaw, or athar Insurance
company representative may be the authority having jurisdiction. In many circumstances, the property owner or his or her
deskgnated agent assumas the role of the authority having jurisdiction; al govemment insialiations, the commanding offices
of departrmantal official may be tha authority having jurisdiction.”

Page 2 of 4

Appandix B



Transportation Electrification Safety Requirements Checklist D, 18-01-024/D.18-05-040

Acranym Dafinitlan
Lavel 1 Charging Charging via AC elecirical connection al 120 volts and up to 16
amps, or 1.0 kW,
Lavel 2 Charging Charging via A elacirical connection at 208 vaolts or 240 volts at up
ity BO) amips,
OC Fast Charging Charging via DC alectrical connaction using off-board AC/DC

isquipsment &1 a fest rate, Mot all EVs heve ihis connector,

CHAdeMO andior CCS Charging Connector [There are three fypes of standard charging connectors for Direct
Standards Curranl Fast Charging, Vehicles capabla of DC fast charging will
have one af these pors on the vehlcle, Other nonstandand
copnecion include Tesla and BYD. Most public DEFE curranthy
deplayad in California Incledes standard CHAaMO andfor CCS
Typa 1 charging connaciors.
I0iLi) Irvestor Cwnad Uiility(ies)
EVITP Training The Elecine Vahicls Infrazineeiure Training Frogram provides
alectricians with training for tha installation of EVSE. EVITP is a
boration of indusiry slakeholdars, including mAomakers, EVSE
manufacturers, educational insiutions, utility companies, and
electric industry profassionats. Mone nformation |s available st
hittps:ifavitp.ong.
NRTL [Nationally Recognized Testing Lat:

Fra-congtryction: These EV charging equipment safely requinerments must be specified in procurement documents:

1. Charging equipmant must ba carified by a Mationally Recognizad Tesling Lab (NRTL),

Infrastruciure must comply with applicabla safaty paformance requirements asscciated wilh tha type of TE

infrastructure baing installed,

*  Far light-duty vahiclas, complianca with the Sociaty of Aulomoties Enginears (SAE) J-1772 Slandard for
Lewel 1 of Level 2 charging, Compllance with CHAdaMO and CCS for DC fast charging would be
appropriate evidence of compliance wilh thes requiremeant.

*  For othar types of TE infrastructure, incduding any non-standardized EWVEE, he loliowsng basic connecior
safaty measuras will ba requinad:

= A passing EVSE salety parformance evaluglion report parformed by a Mationally Recognized Tesling Lab
(NRTLE

*  When not connacied, the vehicle infet and the EVSE connector must be designed to prevent direct contact
with any live components;

= Tha vehicls inlat and EVSE connactor shall ba free of sharp adges and patenBally injurious prolrusions,

* Tha coupler batwesn the vehicle and the EVSE should avaid or mitigate any patentially hazardous
condilions such as fires, alectrical ghock to users, or other parsonal injuries.

Infrasiructuse and fs planned installabion must comply with Califomia Elecirical Code Arficls §25.°

4, Infrasiruciure and iis planned insiallaBon must comply with the Amercans with Disabilites Act (ADA], 42

U.S.C. § 12104 o 38q., and Californéa Building Code Chapter 118, 7 if applicable, per the AHJ whers the
EWVZE will ba instalad, undass the appropriate waikver 5 obtained from local authorities.

Lk
h

* Caiifornia Electrical Code Aricke §25 covers Electric Viahicl Charging System safety and standards as installed in place,
California Code of Reguiations, Titls 24, Adicle 525,

3 Califomia Bullding Code Chapter 2 Includes definition associated with eleciric vehicls charging stations, CBC Chagter
118 defines requirements for ‘Accessibility to Public Buildings, Public Accommodations, Commercial Buildings, and
Public Housing."

Pago Jaol 4
Appendix B



Transportation Electrification Safety Requiremants Checklist D,18-01-024/D.18-05-040

L. Ouidoor-mounied EVSE musl ba rated o be Installed for ouldoor usa.
6. For utility infrastruciure work on the cusiomer side of the meter, confraciors must provide proof of EVITP

Cestification peior to constrectan.

Confraciors must provide the utiity proof of a full site assesament, including the approprabe kad calculations
o ensure existing infrasiructure can accommodale additional EV load, or that appropriate Infrastruciure
upgrades wil ba complatad.

Buring Construction:

Al utilty infrastieciung wok on the custamear alde af the melar not parformad by employass of the 10LUs
shall ba performed by fully lcensed elecifclans. For commercial installations, all alectrical contractors
shauld hold a walid C-10 contractor's cense.

In=tallatione will be designed par Articke 825 of the Califomia Electrical Coda,

Operational Safety:

pa

Owercurent prolection assoctaled with utility transtormers and distibution circuils that foed powes bo e
charnging stations.
Crvercurrent profection in the mater pedestalicircuit breaker panel thal feeds each of the charging stations.

Bollard equipment profection installed where appropriate as defined by uliity design slandards and AHJ
PEUiIFEmans.

Concrate parking siops to protect sguipment where appropriaie as defined by ulity design slandards and
AHJ requirements,

Faga 4 of 4
Appendix B



Pacific Gas and
o) Electric Company’
GUIDANCE DOCUMENT: CUSTOMER-OWNED EV SUPPLY

INFRASTRUCTURE

WHY ARE YOU RECEIVING THIS GUIDANCE DOCUMENT?

As part of PGRE's EV Fleet program, customers may be responsible for the construction and maintenance of
their EV supply infrastructure, or Behind the Meter (BTM) infrastructure. This document is given to all EV Fleet
applicants.

HOW TO USE THIS DOCUMENT

As you read this document, please consider your organization's ability to execute on the work required to
electrify its fleet, including constructing and maintaining BTM infrastructure.

We encourage customers to reach out to PG&E's EV Fleet team at any time for further clarification and
information,

i @

-
n
-. -

CELTELEEERE Y ERELIT LI LR L

Utility assets Meter  Electric panelf Charger Plug-in
{e.q.: power lines, switchgear electric
trans : vehicle

it el R o i e Sl s

Behind the meter 1 - h:| EV supply
Tﬂ the meter (TTM] (BTM]infrastructure  [REEES—— equipment
infrastructure or make-ready ey i [EVSE]

QUESTIONS TO CONSIDER BEFORE YOU SIGN AN EV FLEET CONTRACT

1. Do | need a Professionally Licensed Electrical Engineer to design the BTM project?
Yes. In order to receive a permit from your local authority having jurisdiction (permits are required for this
work) you will need a licensed electrical engineer to sign off on your drawings. Applicable
Engineers/Electricians can ba found on several websites including:
s Diamond Certified
= Angies List

s Better Business Bureau




Pacific Gas and

W R Electric Company’

2. What questions should | ask the contractor or electrician in order to be assured that they are suitable

to get the job done?

Firstly, ensure that the contractar or electrician is familiar with PG&E's Greenboak', lacal jurisdiction

guidelines about new construction, and the National Electric Cade®. In addition, we recommend you ask the

contractor or electrician the following:

= Ask if they have completed electric vehicle projects

»  Ask to see examples of completed work

s« Ak for references

= Ask if they are familiar with PGAE's Greenboak, local jurisdiction or have completed projects invalving
the PGAE service planning group

. How will | know if the price quoted by the contractor or electrician is accurate?

= Obtain multiple quotes in order to complete a comprehensive comparison.

= For an apples-to-apples comparison from electrical contractors, a construction drawing provided by a
Licensed Professional Engineer along with a Request for Propasal (RFP) should be part of the bidding
process.

= Check the following:

o Does the proposal include the full scope of work required by the EV Fleet pragram: all BTM
infrastructure including the switchgear and foundation, conduitfwiring from the meter panel to the
charging location, and installation and commissioning of chargers?

an Does the proposal itemize and include materials, labor, permitting (if applicable), inspection, and
commissioning?

o Does the propasal include correct equipment specifications and switchgear sizing?

. Do | need to submit the BTM design to my PGAE Project Manager?
Yes. Submitting the BTM design to your PGRE Project Manager for engineering technical review is required.

. Does my BTM construction need to be completed prior to PGRE's To-the-Meter (TTM) scope of
construction?

Yes. For PG&E to fully evaluate the scope, size, and cost of its TTM work, you need to first complete the
BTM construction. Please contact your PGEE Project Manager regarding any questions, concerns, or delays,

. How much can | expect to pay for the BTM?

BTM costs can vary depending on site characteristics, so please wark with your contractor or electrician for
a cost-effective solution for your site. Generally, we see that costs range from about $20k-330k per charger
before incentives are issued.

Factors that may impact the cost to construct your BTM:

» Project size - Projects with higher charger counts tend to cost more overall but are cheaper per
charger. Canversely, sites with only a handful of chargers may be less expensive but cost more per
charger.

L Tha Electric and Gas Service Requirements [|.e., Greenboak] s a guide to Pacific Gas and Electric Company (PGAE] requiremants
and palicies for establishing electric and gas service to new or remodelded applicant installations.

2 The National Electrical Code is a regionally adoptable standard for the safe installation of electrical wiring and equipment in the
United States,



Pacific Gas and
b Electric Company’

« The location of your chargers — Chargers that are located far from the PGA&E meter will require more
excavation and materials to run the electrical service, which will generally cost more money.

= The location of your site — Sites that are remotely located may pay higher rates because the
contractor's people and equipment will have to travel further to get there, Additionally, sites in the Bay
Area may see higher construction costs as well due to the high cost of labor in that region.

Please remember that as part of the EV Fleet program, you may receive a monetary incentive per vehicle to
offset the cost of your BTM construction.

7. Does my contractor or electrician need to also purchase and install my chargers?
This is optional and up to your discretion, You may purchase the chargers, or your contractor or electrician
may purchase the chargers on your behalf. If you prefer your contractor or electrician to purchase the
chargers, ask your contractor/electrician if they have experience doing 50 to ensure you are working with an
experienced contractor/electrician in the electric vehicle space.

8. What else do | need to know?

« Permits and Easements — Program participants should check if thay have the necessary permits and
easements required to start construction.

= Changes to the design - Your design engineer ar contractor may suggest that you make changes to
your project scope or location after a contract has already been signed with the EV Fleet Program, We
strongly discourage any changes to the contract, but they may be considered on a case-by-case basis.
The program may also ask you to pay for any costs incurred as the result of the change. Please keep in
mind that your eligibility for the program was determined based on the contracted scope, and any
changes may affect your eligibility or the level of support you can receive,



g | St i P %ﬂﬁl;ﬁé Hﬂ T —
skl E¥EEE WO DR O 238En
bomime] = =) LOMISIO TO0HDS OFJINA NOMIL E | S % FIND)

EFERAP00ATTH |  WYHDOHD DNIDHVYHD 13314 A3 390d [ owmrsme

LR ] e iy B aira 3 gl e A
A LAl o Rl
L] oL
e
ey e L - L ]
TRANEE RS T TR Fra ST weie B W 17 1 P mer 4] i G
e =13 T
et e M AN R L R [ Fyzar
il * g e | . WTRIE L
T RO L O O i e I-.EII. [T T B
i TR L ¥ ez
) T ==
OB, T Crey SLIYRI D Y AR T % L FTHLE LI
: [} Ll T
LMFO HOALYLE MY TTY LS
] =z e g il AT Al ._.I.._
" ] ST ALl
==
™ ..__ W) V] e T AAE LA Sm T
=i L] Brdiiefll | w0 s v
- .= T LT ER R R AL — —
m il ALy et TSI TR ALL
T VITTR I L »
= L) - MR, LTC ST RN PLLE
T Boerie | e 1 e ALl i i
L in b L S A UL
. - o = L R LT E
= F el il T AL a
W TVl ELINE ALY
A FRARL T HTL
- i =] T P I AL
- el AR 3 AL | LB B DR TETY AL :
]
- Ll ST AL WS TEN LN ol
£ ) W AR ey 3 AEE
— — TR s nasnd0sd
L wIel S - i ] TR
e T Y A
F e AL LAZ4 H ETIE F
1 o N i vl £
g [ T
L ] . i el | e
e e e A Al
AL e e
ETeTHAL YA 40 T




EL TEJON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL
SERVICES

(SPEECH-LANGUAGE PATHOLOGIST SERVICES)

This Independent Contractor Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into on
September 11, 2025, by and between:

Contractor: Kristin Ericsson, a licensed Speech-Language Pathologist with a
principal place of business at 7600 Pack Saddle Court, Bakersfield, California
("Contractor”), and

Client: El Tejon Unified School District, a public school district or educational entity
with a principal place of business at 4337 Lebec Road, Lebec, California ("Client").

Recitals

WHEREAS, Client operates a school or educational program and requires
speech-language pathology services for students;

WHEREAS, Contractor is a licensed Speech-Language Pathologist in the State of
California, qualified to provide such services and supervise a Speech-Language
Pathology Assistant (SLPA);

WHEREAS, Contractor agrees to provide services as an independent contractor, not
as an employee, in accordance with California law, including but not limited to
Assembly Bill 5 (AB 5) and the California Business and Professions Code;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants herein,
the parties agree as follows:

1. Senvices

1.1 Scope of Services, Contractor shall provide the following services ("Services”) to
Client:

« Conduct speech-language evaluations and assessments for students as
assigned by Client.

» Develop and implement individualized treatment plans for students with
speech, language, and communication needs.

 Provide direct therapy services to students in accordance with their
Individualized Education Programs (IEPs) or aother plans.



Supervise and direct the activities of a Speech-Language Pathology Assistant
(SLPA), ensuring compliance with California Business and Professions Code
§ 2538.1 et seq. and California Code of Regulations, Title 16, § 1399.170 et
seq.

Maintain accurate and timely documentation, including progress notes,

treatment plans, and reports, as required by Client and applicable state and
federal laws.

Attend IEP meetings, consultations, or other meetings as requested by Client.

« Provide professional consultation to Client's staff regarding speech and
language servicas.

1.2 Location. Services shall primarily be performed at El Tejon Elementary School,
or other locations as mutually agreed upon. Services may include teletherapy if
approved by Client and compliant with California law.

1.3 Schedule. Contractor shall perform Services on a mutually agreed schedule,
with an estimated 5 hours per week, subject to adjustment based on student needs
and Client's requirements. Contractor has the discretion to determine the specific
times and methods for performing Services, provided they meet Client's deadlines
and quality standards.

2. Compensation

2.1 Fees. Client shall pay Contractor at the rate of $125 per hour OR $10,000 per
school year for Services rendered. Payment shall be based on actual hours worked
or services provided, as documented in Contractor's invoices.

2.2 Travel Expenses.

* Mileage: Client shall reimburse Contractor for mileage incurred while traveling
between Client's designated school sites or other required locations at the
current Intemal Revenue Service (IRS) standard mileage rate for business
travel $0.67 per mile. Contractor shall provide a mileage log with each invoice.

« Travel Time: Client shall compensate Contractor for travel time between
school sites or other required locations at a rate of $62.50 per hour OR 50%
of the regular hourly rate, provided travel occurs during normal business
hours and is pre-approved by Client. Travel time to and from Contractor's
home to the first or from the last work location of the day is not compensable.



+ Other Expenses: Client shall reimburse Contracter for pre-approved,
reasonable, and necessary travel-related expenses (e.g., parking, tolls) upan
submission of receipts.

2.3 Invoicing and Payment. Contractor shall submit detailed invoices to Client
monthly, including hours worked, services provided, mileage logs, travel time, and
any approved expenses. Client shall pay invoices within 30 days of receipt via check
made payable to Kristin Ericsson. Late payments may incur interest at the maximum
rate permitted under California law.

2.4 Taxes. Conftractor is responsible for all federal, state, and local taxes, including
self-employment taxes, arising from compensation under this Agreement. Client
shall not withhold taxes or provide employee benefits. Contractor shall provide Client
with a completed IRS Form W-8.

3. Independent Contractor Status

3.1 Relationship. Contractor is an independent contractor, not an employee, agent,
or partner of Client. This Agreement satisfies the requirements of California’s
Assembly Bill 5 (AB 5) and the "ABC” test under California Labor Code § 2775, as
Contractor:

« |s free from Client's control and direction over the manner and means of
performing Services, subject to Client's right to specify desired results;

=  Performs professional services requiring a California Speech-Language
Pathology license, which are outside Client's usual course of business as an
educational institution;

« |s customarily engaged in an independently established trade, occupation, or
business as a Speech-Language Pathologist.

3.2 No Employee Benefits. Contractor is not enfitled to Client's employee benefits,
including but not limited to health insurance, workers' compensation, unemployment
ingurance, or retirement plans.

3.3 Control. Contractor retains discretion over the methods and means of performing
Services, including the use of Contractor's own equipment, tools, and materials,
unless otherwise specified by Client.

4. SLPA Supervision



4.1 Supervisory Responsibilities. Contractor shall supervise the SLPA in accordance
with California Business and Professions Code § 2538.1 and California Code of
Regulations, Title 18, § 1389.170 et seq., including:

* Providing direct and indirect supervision as required (e.g., at least 2 hours of
direct supervision per week for full-ime SLPAs and ongoing indirect
supervision),

- Reviewing and approving SLPA documentation, treatment plans, and progress
notes,

= Ensuring SLPA services are within the scope of their license and Client's
requirements.

4.2 Liability for SLPA. Contractor shall ensure the SLPA's services meet professional
standards and comply with applicable laws. Contractor is not responsible for SLPA's
employment status or benefits, which remain the responsibility of Client or the SLPA,
as applicable,

5. Licenses and Compliance

51 Licensure, Contractor warrants that they hold a wvalid California
Speech-Language Pathology license issued by the Speech-Language Pathology
and Audiology and Hearing Aid Dispensers Board and shall maintain such licensure
throughout the term of this Agreement. Contractor shall provide proof of licensure
upon request.

5.2 Compliance with Laws. Contractor shall comply with all applicable federal, state,
and local laws, including but not limited to the Individuals with Disabilities Education
Act (IDEA), California Education Code, Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act (HIPAA), and Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act
(FERPA).

5.3 Background Checks. Contractor shall comply with California Education Code §
451251, including fingerprinting and criminal background checks through the
California Department of Justice, if required by Client. Proof of clearance shall be
provided to Client prior to commencing Services.

6. Confidentiality

6.1 Confidential Information. Contractor shall maintain the confidentiality of all
student records, personal information, and Client proprietary information in



accordance with HIPAA, FERPA, and California law. Contractor shall not disclose
such information except as required to perform Services or as mandated by law.

6.2 Return of Records. Upon termination of this Agreement, Contractor shall return
or destroy all confidential information, as directed by Client, in compliance with
applicable laws.

7. Insurance
7.1 Contractor's Insurance. Cantractor shall maintain, at their own expense:

« Professional liability insurance with minimum coverage of $1,000,000 per
occurrence and 52,000,000 aggregate.

= General liability insurance with minimum coverage of $1,000,000 per
occurrence.,

* Proof of insurance shall be provided to Client prior to commencing Services as
reguested.

7.2 Client's Insurance. Client shall maintain its own general liability and other
insurance as required by law.

B. Term and Termination

B.1 Term. The initial term of this Agreement shall be September 11, 2025 to June 30,
2026. This Agreement shall continue in force after the termination date by
automatically rolling over for successive terms of cne year, up o a maximum of
three years total;, provided, however, that any party may terminate this Agreement
upon 30 days' written notice.,

8.2 Termination for Convenience. Either party may terminate this Agreement with 30
days’ written notice.

8.3 Termination for Cause. Either party may terminate this Agreement immediately
upon written notice if the other party breaches a material term of this Agreement and
fails to cure such breach within 10 days of nofice, or if Contractor's license is
suspended or revoked.

8.4 Effect of Termination. Upon termination, Client shall pay Contractor for all
Services rendered and approved expenses incurred up to the termination date.
Contractor shall deliver all completed work and return Client property.

9. Indemnification



9.1 Contractor's Indemnity. Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless Client, its
officers, employees, and agents from any claims, damages, or liabilities arising from
Contractor's negligence, willful misconduct, or breach of this Agreement.

9.2 Client’s Indemnity. Client shall indemnify and hold harmless Contractor from any
claims, damages, or liabilities arising from Client's negligence, willful misconduct, or
breach of this Agreement.

10. Dispute Resolution

10.1 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of the State of California, without regard to conflict of law
principles.

10.2 Mediation. Any disputes arising under this Agreement shall first be submitted to
mediation in Kern County, California, before a mutually agreed-upon mediator. Each
party shall bear its own costs of mediation.

10.3 Arbitration. If mediation fails, disputes shall be resolved through binding
arhitration in Kem County, California, under the rules of the American Arbitration
Association. The arbitrator's decision shall be final and enforceable in any court of
competent jurisdiction.

11. Miscellaneous

11.1 Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding
between the parties and supersedes all prior agreements or understandings, written
or oral.

11.2 Amendments. This Agreement may only be amended in writing signed by bath
parties.

11.3 Assignment. Contractor may not assign this Agreement without Client’s prior
written consent. Client may assign this Agreement to a successor entity with notice
to Contractor.

11.4 Notices. All notices under this Agreement shall be in writing and delivered to the
addresses listed above via certified mail or email with confirmation of receipt.

11.5 Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is found to be invalid or
unenforceable, the remaining provisions shall remain in full force and effect.



11,6 Compliance with AB 5. The parties acknowledge that this Agreement is
structured to comply with California Labor Code § 2775 et seq. (AB 5) and that
Contractor meets the criteria for an independent contractor under California law.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date
first written above.

CONTRACTOR
By:
Mame: Kristin Ericsson

Title: Speech-Language Pathologist

Date: g/11/2025




El Tejon Unified School District

Sara Haflich
Superintendent

Board President: Stephanie Pope
Board Members: Deborah Turner, Cindy McNatt, Patrice Barnes & Tommy Hastings

2024-2025 Arts and Music in Schools (AMS) Annual Report:

El Tejon Unified School District

Allocation Year: 2024-2025, 2023-2024

El Tejon Unified School District’s (GJUESD) Arts & Music Annual Report is developed in accordance with statute code 8820 (g)(4).
This annual report must be board-approved, submitted to CDE, and posted to the ETUSD Website. The mandated information for
this report includes:

#1 Narrative description of the Prop 28 arts education program(s) funded

For the 2024-2025 fiscal year, arts education programs at El Tejon Unified were funded through Proposition 28. In alighment
with Proposition 28 requirements—which call for dedicated funding to expand arts instruction, prioritize underserved students,
and support credentialed arts educators—EIl Tejon Unified has taken intentional steps to strengthen opportunities for creative
learning. For the upcoming year, the school has hired a part-time Art Teacher at 0.6 FTE. This educator will be responsible for
designing and implementing a dynamic arts curriculum that emphasizes digital art, sculpting, and media. The position reflects El
Tejon Unified’s commitment to using Proposition 28 resources as intended: to expand access, build program sustainability, and
provide students with high-quality, standards-based arts education that nurtures creativity, critical thinking, and engagement.

#2 Number of full-time equivalent teachers (Certificated)
.6 FTE

#3 Number of full-time equivalent personnel (Classified)
None funded with Prop 28

#4 Number of full-time equivalent teaching aides

None funded with Prop 28

#5 Number of students served

477 TK-8th-grade students

#6 Number of school sites providing arts education

There are two school sites funded with Arts and Music in Schools funding: Frazier Park Elementary and El Tejon Middle School.

Website: https://www.el-tejon.k12.ca.us/education-services Date of Approval by Governing Board: 10/8/2025

4337 Lebec Rd. Lebec, California 93243 (661) 248-6247 Fax: (661) 248-6714
district@el-tejon.k12.ca.us



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
EL TEJON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
AND TELEHEALTHDOCS MEDICAL CORPORATION
(TELEHEALTH BASED PRIMARY CARE/SPECIALITY CARE CONSULTATION)

This Agreement for professional services (" Agreement") is effective as of October 1,
2025 (the "Effective Date"), by and between two parties, Telehealthdocs Medical Corporation
("THD"), a California Professional Corporation in good standing, headquartered at 1215
Truxtun Avenue, Suite 100, Bakersfield, California, 93301, P.O. Box 68, Bakersfield,
California, 93302, and the El Tejon Unified School District "ETUSD™), a Califorma local
educational agency, 4337 Lebec Rd, Lebec, California, 93243.

The purpose of this Agreement is the provision of primary care and specialty care
consultation services to students who are enrolled in ETUSD, their families and children who
may not be enrolled but nevertheless reside within ETUSD's geographical boundaries. Each
entity identified above is referred to individually as a “party” and collectively referred to as the
“parties.” Children and families being served are not parties to this Agreement.

This Agreement is not binding on ETUSD until duly presented to and approved by
the ETUSD governing board and signed by its Superintendent or designees,

RECITAS

A THD engages physicians and other licensed practitioners and healthcare professionals,
such as nurse practitioners duly licensed in various states, including the state of California, who are
qualified and experienced in providing telehealth based primary care and specialty care.

B. THD also provides non-clinical/non-medical services such as telehealth technology,
technology training, and technology support services necessary to provide medical consultation visits
using interactive secure audio/video technology.

C. ETUSD is a public-school district within the state of California and desires to
engage THD to provide telehealth-based services to its students and, in the sole discretion of
ETUSD, their families and, in addition to the sole discretion of ETUSD, other children and their
families who may reside within ETUSD's geographical boundaries.

D The parties anticipate that telehealth-based health services will improve healthcare
access, as well as reduce illness-caused absences from school, improve academic performance, and
improve the overall wellbeing of the school-age community.

E. Services that are the subject matter of this Agreement may be provided either at a school
or medical office or medical facility.

F. This Agreement cutlines the responsibilities of both parties in relation to the setup,
operation, and evaluation of the Telchealth Program at designated schools within ETUSD.

Page 1 of 9



G. As this Agreement is a contract for expert professional services and advice, it is exempt
from public bidding pursuant to Government Code section 330640,

H. As this Agreement is for services which cannot be performed satisfactorily by a ETUSD
employee due to the highly specialized nature of the expert knowledge and experience needed, it is a
services contract authorized by Education Code section 45103.1.

WOW, THEREFORE, and in consideration of the Recitals above and the mutual covenants and
conditions contained herein, the parties agree as follows:

1. Recitals. The above Recitals are hereby incorporated into this Agreement as terms,

p Duration. This Agreement is effective on October 1, 2025, and remains in effect for four
(4} calendar vears, provided however, either party may terminate this Agreement early af any time, with
or without cause, upon ninety (90) calendar days’ advance notice, provided in writing to the other party.

Either party may terminate this Agréement for cause upon material breach by the other party
provided such material breach continues uncured for thirty (307 days after receipt by the breaching party
of written notice from the other party specifying such breach. The notice of breach under this section shall
specify with reasonable particularity the nature and extent of the breach for which complaint has been
made and explain how the alleged breach may be cured.

Either party may terminate this Agreement immediately by written notice to the other party upon
the occurrence of any of the following events; (i) the other party is listed by a federal agency as being
debarred, excluded, terminated, or otherwise incligible for federal healthcare program participation; (i)
the other party discontinues operations for at least fifteen (15) days or loses its required licensure or
accreditation; (iii) the other party files a petition in bankruptcy or makes an assignment for the benefit of
creditors; (iv) if any involuntary petition in bankruptcy or petition for an arrangement pursuant to any
bankruptcy laws is filed against the other party; or (v) if ETUSD does not have adequate connectivity
necessary to effectuate this Agreement.

3 Services Provided. THD agrees to provide the telehealth platform, training for school
personnel, support services, and licensed medical professionals to conduct virtual health consultations
{"Services").

THD warrants that affiliated personnel providing the Services are fully qualified and competent
to provide the services called for by this Agreement. THD warrants that affiliated personnel providing
telehealth and related services pursuant to this Agreement are licensed and have any required permits as
may be necessary to provide the services called for by this Agreement.

THD shall at all times render the Services in accordance with: (i) professional standards of care;
(i) applicable statutes and regulations; {iii) ETUSD's written policies; and (iv) any protocols developed
by the parties.

The services contemplated by this Agreement may not be provided to any individual student
without THD first obtaining informed parental or guardian consent, in writing, and voluntarily given.

THD and its physicians or other healthcare professionals shall use their independent medical and
professional judgment when performing professional telehealth consultation services, Neither THD nor

Page 2 of 9



ETUSD shall have nor exercise any control over the professional judgment and medical decision-making
of the physicians or other healthcare professionals.

THD shall exercise reasonable care so that no physician or other healthcare professional
providing the Services under this Agreement: (i) is a "sanctioned person” under any federal or state
program or law; (ii) has been listed in the current List of Excluded Individuals and Entities by the Office
of Inspector General for the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services; (iii) has been listed on the
General Services Administration's List of Parties Excluded from Federal Programs; (iv) has been listed on
the 1.5, Department of Treasury, Office of Foreign Assets Control's Specially Designated Nationals and
Blocked Persons List; or (v) has been convicted of a criminal offense related to health care.

4, Billing. Except to the extent inconsistent with federal or state law, THD and its
physicians or other healthcare professionals shall have the sole right, as between the parties, to bill and
collect for the Services from THD contracted health plans, THD will bill and collect from ETUSD for all
other parties at the 2025 Medi-Cal new TRI rate (CPT 99203).

THD will charge ETUSD a fee of $125 per hour for training and technical assistance as indicated
in sections Training and Support, Quality Control and Improvement, and Reporting and Documentation
that is provided to ETUSD staff. Additionally, THD medical providers will make themselves available
for consultation, school training, and technical assistance during appointment slots that are unfilled, or
cancelled, which will be billed at the training and technical assistance rate. ETUSD will be responsible
for 2 appointment slots a day.

The maximum payable under this Agreement will not exceed $60,000 over one (1) academic
school year, July 1 to June 30 of each year. ETUSD will provide THD a spreadsheet service log with
details, a month per tab, indicating which dates to provide service. This monthly service log will be
attached to the monthly invoice,

5 Insu nification. THD agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless
ETUSD, its governing board, individual board members, officers, agents, employees, subcontractors,
consultants, volunteers, and other representatives from and against any and all claims, demands, costs,
expenses of whatever nature including court costs and attorneys' fees arising out offor resulting from or
arising under this Agreement. It is understood that such indemnity shall survive termination of this
Agresment.

THD shall obtain, pay for, and maintain in effect during the life of this Agresment the following
policies of insurance issued by an insurance company rated not less than "A-;V" in Best Insurance Rating
Guide and admitted to transact insurance business in California: (1) commercial general liability
insurance {including contractual, products, and completed operations coverages, bodily injury, and
property damage liability) with single combined limits not less than §1,000,000 per occurrence and
£3,000,000 in the aggregate per annum; (2) commereial automobile liability insurance with combined
single limits of liability not less than 31,000,000 per occurrence and $3,0000,000 in the aggregate per
annum; (3) professional liability insurance (errors and omissions) with a limit of liability not less than
£1,000,000 per occurrence and $3,000,000 in the aggregate per annum; and (4) workers” compensation
insurance as required under state law, Each policy shall contain an endorsement naming ETUSD and its
governing board, individual board members, officers, agents, employees, subcontractors, consultants,
volunteers, and other representatives as additional insureds insofar as this Agreement is concerned, and
provide that written notice shall be given to ETUSD at least 30 days prior to cancellation or material
change in the form of the policy or reduction in coverage. THD shall fumnish ETUSD with a certificate of
insurance containing the endorsements required under this section, and ETUSD shall have the right to

Page 3 of 9



inspect THDY's original insurance policies upon request. All endorsements shall be received. and approved
by ETUSD before Services are provided.

Upen notification of receipt of a notice of cancellation, change, or reduction in coverage, THD
shall immediately file with ETUSD a certified copy of the required new or renewal policy and certificates
for such policy, NMothing in this section concerning minimum insurance requirements shall reduce THD's
liability or obligations under the indemnification provisions of this Agreement.

Deductibles and self-insured retentions may not exceed 510,000,

Failure to always maintain the required insurance while this Agresment is in effect shall be a
material breach, ETUSD at its zole option respectively may immediately terminate this Agreement because
of said breach,

Mo paymenis shall be made until such time as THD has fully complied with all the
aforementioned insurance related requirements.

ETUSD agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless THD, its Board of Trustees, officers,
agents, and employees from and against any and all claims, demands, costs, expenses of whatever nature,
including court costs and attorneys' fees directly and solely arising out offor resulting from breach of
default of the Agreement. It is understood and agreed that such indemnification shall survive termination
of this Agreement,

6. MNoodiscrimination. THD agrees o not discriminate against, nor deny o any student,
services because of actual or perceived sex, sexual orientation, gender, ethnic group identification, race,
ancestry, national origin, religion, color, or mental or physical disability, or age, or on the basis of a
person’s association with a person or group with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics,
in any program or activity.

7. Roles and Responsibilities.

ETUSD will:

Infrastructura:

s  [dentify and prepare suitable private spaces in each participating school for telehealth sessions,
equipped with necessary technology and comfort for students.

#  Provide the necessary equipment such as computers, high-speed internel access, webcams,
microphones, and any additional medical devices required for assessments (e.g., blood pressure
monitors, thermometers) as needed.

*  Ensure that all the technology used is compatible with THD's telehealth platform and complies
with data security standards.

* Formation of the patient chart with the demographics, including but not limited to name, address,
contact phone number, pharmacy, and insurance information.

s  Completion of the patient intake form and consent form and any additional documentation needed
to be uploaded onto THD's electronic medical record system.

*  Communications with THD staff and/or Provider on patient workflow vis THD's Google Chat.

Page 4 of 9



Personnel and Training:

Designate a school nurse or trained staff member responsible for assisting students during
telehealth sessions, if permissible.

Organize and coordinate training sessions for designated staff with THD to ensure they are
proficient in using the telehealth platform, including scheduling, student preparation, and basic
troubleshooting.

Designate a staff member to coordinate and schedule the patient on THD s electronic medical
record system,

Provide continuous professional development opportunities for staff 1o stay current with
lelehealth practices and procedures,

Parental Invalvement:

Develop and distribute informative materials about the telehealth program to parents and
guardians.

Contact the parent or guardian to be involved in the medical consultation.

Manage and maintain the process for obtaining and storing parental consent for student
participation in the program.

Student Management:

Coordinate with teachers and administrators to manage student scheduling for telehealth
appointments without compromising educational time.

Implement a system for immediate assistance for students experiencing acute health issues during
school hours.

Compliance and Privacy:

Ensure that students consent for telehealth services is obtained in compliance with applicable
laws and regulations.

Maintain compliance with FERPA, HIPAA, and state-specific privacy regulations conceming
student health data.

Develop and implement privacy protocols for students during telehealth sessions.

THD will:

Telehealth Platform:

-

Provide the telehealth platform tailored for the needs of the school environment, ensuring case of
use, reliability, and compliance with healthcare regulations.

Medical Staff and Services:

L

Provide access to a network of licensed healthcare professionals trained and experienced in
urgent care and in delivering telehealth services.

Page 5 of 9



» Coordinate with ETUSD to ensure availability of healthcare professionals in accordance with the
school schedule and appointment requirements.

Training and Support:

o  Conduct initial and periodic training for ETUSD designated staff members on the use of the
telehealth platform, including patient information entry, session management, and basic technical
troubleshooting.

« Provide to ETUSD staff assistance in recognizing health issues that can be managed through
telehealth and those that require in-person care.

Cuality Control and Improvement;

*  Regularly review telehealth sessions for quality assurance and adherence to clinical protocols.

s [mplement a feedback mechanism for both ETUSD staff and parents to improve service delivery
and address any concerns.

Reporting and Documentation:

=  Ensure that all telehealth visits are properly documented while maintaining privacy and security.
# Provide ETUSD with reporis on program utilization, outcomes, and patient satisfsction, when
requested.

Legal and Regulatory Compliance:

»  Ensure that the services provided comply with all applicable healthcare regulations, including
state telebealth laws and professional licensing requirements,

o Keep ETUSD informed of any changes in healthcare regulations that may affect the telehealth
services provided.

8. HIPAA Compliance. The health records of THD patients which are prepared and
maintained in connection with providing the Services hereunder are the property of THD, THD agrees to
comply with all applicable federal and state laws and regulations relating to the maintenance, uses, and
disclosures of protected health information (including any heightened requirements for mental health
records) including, without limitation, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, as
codified at 42 ULS.C. § 1320, et. seq. ("HIPAA™), as amended by the Health Information Technology for
Economic and Clinical Health Act, as incorporated in the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009, and any current and future regulations promulgated thercunder, including those published at 45
C.F.R. Parts 160, 162, and 164, all collectively referred to herein as "HIPAA Requirements.” To the
extent required by the HIPAA Bequirements, THD shall obfain authorization and ¢onzent from the
patients and/or patients' parents or legal guardians to use or disclose the patients' protected health
information.

% Independent Contractors, Mothing under this Agreement is intended, nor shall be
construed, to create a partnership, employer-employee relationship, or joint venture between the parties,
None of the parties (nor their respective agents or employees) shall have any authority to bind another
party without such party's express written consent. Each party shall be solely responsible for reporting,
withholding, and paying all taxes and other sums due to its employees or other individuals providing the

Page 6 of 9



Services who may be affiliated with the party. Likewise, each party shall be solely responsible to provide
and pay for all workers' compensation insurance for any employed individuals providing services on its
behalf. THD may engage subcontractors to perform certain of their obligations under this Agreement,
provided that no such subcontractor shall relieve THD of its respective obligations under this Agreement.

10, Access to Books and Records. To the extent applicable until the expiration of four {4)
years after the furnishing of Services hereunder, the parties shall make available to the Secretary of the
Department of Health and Human Services, the Comptroller General of the United States, or their duly
authorized representatives, and corresponding state officials such books, documents, and records
necessary to certify the nature and extent of the cost of the Services. If any Services are performed by way
of subcontract with another organization and the value or cost of such subcontracted Services is ten
thousand dollars ($10,000) or more over a twelve (12) month period, such subcontract shall contain, and
the respective party shall enforce, a clause to the same effect as this Section. The availability of the
parties' books, documents, and records shall be subject at all times to all applicable legal requirements,
including without limitation, such criteria and procedures for seeking and obtaining access.

11.  Publicity, None of the parties will use for publicity, promotion, or otherwise any logo,
name, trade name, service mark, or trademark of the other party or the name of any employee or agent of
the ather party, without that party's prior, written, express consent. Motwithstanding the foregoing, THD
may publicly identify ETUSD as a user of the Services, and ETUSD may publicly identify THD as a
provider of the Services. The parties may publicly announce they have entered into this Agreement.

12, Entire Agreement; Amendment. This Agreement sets forth the entire agreement befween
the parties with regard to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior or contemporancous oral or
written agreements entered into between the parties.

13.  Governing Law. The terms and conditions of this Agreement, as well as all disputes
arising under or relating to this Agreement, shall be governed by California law, specifically excluding its
choice-of-law principles. The exclusive forum and venue for the foregoing is the state court of Kern County,
California.

14. Assipnment. No party may assign or transfer this Agreement without the prior written
consent of the other parties, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld. Any unpermitted attempt to
assign all or part of this Agreement shall be null and void ab initio.

15.  Federal Requirements. ETUSD may utilize federal funds for its payment pursuant to this
Agreement. Each party to this Agreement agrees to be subject to any state or federal accounting
requirements and will fully cooperate with any state or federal audit requirements. All records associated
with this Agreement shall be maintained for no less than five (5) years.

16, Non-appropriation of Funds. Each payment obligation of ETUSD created by this
Agreement is conditioned upon the availability of funds that are appropriated or allocated for the payment
of services or products. If such funds are not allocated and available, this Agreement may be terminated
by ETUSD at the end of the period for which funds are available. ETUSD shall notify THD at the earliest
possible time before such termination.

17. Motices; Agency Administrator. Every notice, approval, consent, or other
communication authorized or required by this Agreement shall not be effective unless same shall be in
writing and sent via hand delivery or overnight delivery (with a receipt), directed to the other party at its

Page 7 of 9



address provided below or such other address as either party may designate by notice from time to time,
in accordance herewith:

Telehealthdocs Medical Corporation

Attention: Quon Louey, Chief Executive Officer

2215 Truxtun Avenue, Suite 100, Bakersfield, California 93301
P.0. Box 68, Bakersfield, California 93302

El Tejon Unified School District

Superintendent Sara Haflich
4337 Lebec Road, Lebec, California 93243

18. Non-Exclusive Provider of Services. THD understands and agrees that it may not be the
exclusive provider of the Services. ETUSD may retain other or additional medical professionals and
related business entities for the same or similar purposes.

19, Child Abuse Reporting Requirements. THD warrants that its personnel are informed of
the obligation to report child abuse and child neglect under California law including, but not limited to,

Penal Code section 11164, and following, and have signed statements as 321 forth in Penal Code section
11164.5 to the effect that they have knowledge of the provisions of Penal Code section 11166 (reporting
duty and time) and will comply with those provisions.

20, No Gifts or Contingent Fees. [t is the policy of ETUSD to not accept gifts, gratuities, or
favors of any kind or of any value whatsoever from vendors. THD warrants that it, nor any of its
directors, employees, officers, or agents, nor any of their respective subsidiaries or affiliates, has taken, is
currently taking, or will take any action in furtherance of an offer, payment, promise, gifts, or anything
elze of value, directly or indirectly, to anyone to improperly influence or otherwise secure any improper
advantage in procuring business in relation to the Agreement.

THI further warrants that it has not emploved or retained any company or person, other than a
bona fide THD employee, to solicit or secure this Agreement, and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any
person, company, corporation, individual or firm, other than a bona fide employee working solely for
THD, any fee, commission, percentage, gift, or any other consideration, contingent upon or resulting from
the award or making of this Agreement.

For the breach or violation of these provisions, ETUSD shall have the right to terminate this
Agreement without liability.

1. Conflict of Interest. The partics to this Agreement have read and are aware of the
provisions of section 1090, and following, and 87100, and following, of the Government Code relating to
conflict of interest of public officers and emplovees. Each of the parties represent that it is aware of no
financial or economic interest of any officer or employee of ETUSD relating to this Agreement. It is
further understood that if such a financial interest does exist at the inception of this Agreement, ETUSD
may immediately terminate this Agreement by giving written notice. The parties shall comply with the
terms of Govermnment Code section 87100, and following, during the term of this Agreement.

L Severability. The invalidity or unenforceability of any term or provision of this
Agreement shall not affect the validity or unenforceability of any other term(s) or provision(s).

FPage 8of 9



I3 Waiver. Mo waiver, including any waiver of breach, shall be valid unless in writing and
signed by the parties.

4. Recitals/Captions. The Recitals are incorporated into this Agreement, captions are used
solely for convenience.

25, Force Majeure. Each party shall be excused from delays in performing its obligations if
resulting from causes beyond the commercially reasonable control of the party, including default of
vendors, acts of God, governmental ections, fire, flood, epidemic, and embargoes.

26. No Third-Party Beneficiaries, Nothing in this Agreement i3 intended, nor shall be deemed,
1o confer any benefits on any third party including, without limitation, any students, children, ETUSD families,
or THD patients mor shall such person or entity have any right to seek, enforce, or recover any right or remedy
with respect hereto. Mothing herein shall be construed as consent by an agency or pelitical subdivision of the
state of California 1o be sued by third parties in any matter arising out of this Agreement.

21. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, all of
which together shall constitute only one agreement. I any signature is delivered by facsimile or email or
is signed in any electronic format, such signature shall create a valid and binding obligation with the same
force and effect as if such signature were handwritten.

28.  Attorney's Fees. Except as provided in the mutual indemnification section of this
Agreement, each party shall be responsible for its own attermey's fees and costs incurred a3 a result of any
action or proceeding under this Agreement,

The parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date:

TELEHEALTHDOCS MEDICAL CORPORATION

By
CQuon Ted Louey, Chief Executive Officer
2315 Truxtun Avenue, Suite 100 (93301)
PO, Box 68 (93302)
Bakersfield, California

EL TEJOM

By

Sara Haflich, Superin
4337 Lebec Road
Labee, Californiz 93243

Page 9 of 9



LA



El Tejon Unified School District
Request Items to be Declared Surplus and Disposed of Business
Services: Purchasing

Recommended Motion:

Motion to approve the list of obsolete/surplus District property and direct
staff to dispose of those items in accordance with the prescribed methods
outlined in Education Code 60501, 60510, and 60530

Rationale:

It has been determined that the vehicles listed are no longer suitable for
school use. These vehicles are un-repairable or obsolete, and no longer
have a useful school purpose. Board Policy 3270 specifies that the Board
may declare these identified items as obsolete so they may be disposed of
in a prescribed manner.

See attached list of surplus items for disposal.

Financial Impact
Projected Cost: Up to $1,000 (Towing Services)

Quick Summary / Abstract

It is recommended that the Board approve the list of obsolete/surplus
District property and direct staff to dispose of those items in accordance
with the prescribed methods outlined in Education Code 60501, 60510, and
60530



El TEJON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
REQUEST ITEMS TO BE DECLARED SURPLUS AND DISPOSED OF
BOARD MEETING DATE: October 8, 2025

SALE OF SURPLUS PROPERTY
The highest bid will be accepted for the vehicles.

1. Bus #11: 1988 Crown 84 Passenger

2. Truck #20: 1977 Chevrolet, license plate 710986, VIN
CKL14872182434

3. Truck #21: 1988 Chevrolet, license plate 98943, VIN
1GCFC24K5JZ7240537

4. SUV #25: 1998 GMC Jimmy, license plate 1034244, VIN
1GKDT13W5WKS507055

5. Truck #32: 1996 Ford F250, license plate 1109971, VIN
1FTHX26G4TEAG0210

6. Van #39: 2013 Ford Econoline E350 Super Duty Wagon, license
1399187, VIN 1FBNE3BL5DDA50167

7. Van #41: 2014 Chrysler Town & Country, license 1477385, VIN
2C4RC1BG5ER448519



ETTA Sunshine Opening Proposal for the 2025-26 School Year

Sunshine - Contract changes and additions:

- change to Table of Contents
- change to Article VII
- unarchive Article VIII and update

- add new Article (number TBD) for Discipline



El Tejon Unified School District

Sara Haflich
Superintendent

Board Members: Stephanie Pope, Patrice Barnes, Deborah Turner, Cindy McNatt, Tommy Hastings

DATE: October 3, 2025
TO: Members of the General Public
California School Employees Association Chapter #552

FROM: El Tejon Unified School District

RE: INITIAL PROPOSAL OF THE PUBLIC SCHOOL EMPLOYER FOR COLLECTIVE BARGAINING NEGOTIAIONS

The Board of Trustees, in compliance with Government Code section 3547, makes the following Initial Proposal
(Sunshine Proposal) to the California School Employees Association Chapter #552.

Article Il — Negotiate a fair wage increase based upon current COLA and add clarifying verbiage.
Article V — Negotiate fair benefit coverage with increased cost to district.

Article VI — Add clarifying verbiage.

Article VIl — Add clarifying verbiage.

Article VIII — Add clarifying verbiage.

Article XIV — Add clarifying verbiage.

P.0. Box 876 Lebec, California 93243 (661) 248-6247 Fax: (661) 248-6714
district@el-tejon.k12.ca.us



El Tejon Unified School District

Sara Haflich
Superintendent

Board Members: Stephanie Pope, Patrice Barnes, Deborah Turner, Cindy McNatt, Tommy Hastings

DATE: October 3, 2025

TO: Members of the General Public
El Tejon Teachers Association/CTA/NEA

FROM: EI Tejon Unified School District

RE: INITTIAL PROPOSAL OF THE PUBLIC SCHOOL EMPLOYER FOR 2025-26 COLLECTIVE
BARGAINING NEGOTIATIONS

The Board of Trustees, in compliance with Government Code section 3547, makes the following Initial
Proposal (Sunshine Proposal) to the El Tejon Teachers Association/CTA/NEA

District’s Initial Proposal:

Article I1I: To negotiate a fair increase in pay according to the current COLA.

Article IV: To negotiate a fair coverage of benefits according to the increase cost.

Article X: Add additional verbiage

P.0. Box 876 Lebec, California 93243 (661) 248-6247 Fax: (661) 248-6714
district@el-tejon.k12.ca.us



CSBA Policy Management Console
CSBA Sample District Policy Manual



CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

Policy 6141.2: Recognition Of Religious Beliefs And Customs Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 12/01/1988 | Last Revised Date: 08/01/2025 | Last Reviewed Date: 08/01/2025

The Governing Board recognizes that students' education would be incomplete without an understanding of the role
of religion in society. As appropriate for a particular course, teachers may objectively discuss the influences of
various religions, using religious works and symbols to illustrate their relationship with culture, literature, or the arts.
The Board expects that such instruction will identify principles common to all religions and foster respect for the
diversity of religions and customs in the world and be consistent with the adopted instructional materials and state
standards, as applicable.

In order to respect each student's individual right to freedom of religious practice, religious indoctrination is
forbidden in public schools. The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that instruction about religion does not
promote or denigrate the beliefs or customs of any particular religion or sect, nor that a preference be shown for one
religious viewpoint over another. Teachers and other district staff shall be highly sensitive to their obligation not to
interfere with the religious development of any student in whatever tradition the student embraces, and treat all
religions and religious convictions, including nonbelief, with fairness and respect.

Staff shall not endorse, encourage, or solicit religious or anti-religious expression or activities among students during
class time.

Staff shall not coerce students in prayer or other religious activities as part of their official duties. However, staff are
not prohibited, when acting in their private capacity, from encouraging students' participation in personal prayer or
other religious activity. Additionally, staff shall not prohibit or discourage any student from praying or otherwise
expressing the student's religious belief so long as this does not disrupt the classroom or other district-sponsored
activity.

Students may express their beliefs about religion in their homework, artwork, and other class work if the expression
is germane to the assignment. Such work shall be judged by ordinary academic standards, relevance, and other
legitimate pedagogical objectives.

While teaching about religious holidays is a permissible part of the educational program, celebrating religious
holidays is not allowed in the district. District-sponsored programs shall not be, nor have the effect of being,
religiously oriented or a religious celebration. School and classroom decorations may express seasonal themes that
are not religious in nature. The use of religious symbols that are part of a religious holiday is permitted as a teaching
aid or resource provided that such symbols are displayed as an example of cultural and religious heritage of the
holiday and temporary in nature.

Classroom methods in instruction about religion shall not include religious role-playing activities or simulated
religious devotional acts.

Music, art, literature or drama programs having religious themes are permitted as part of the curriculum for district-
sponsored activities and programs if presented in an objective manner and as a traditional part of cultural and
religious heritage.

District schools shall not prohibit religious activities if the same or similar non-religious activities are permitted.

When required by law, the district shall notify parents/guardians that they may, via written request, opt their
students out of instruction on the basis of their religious beliefs as specified in the accompanying administrative
regulation. Students whose parents/guardians opt them out of such instruction may be offered an alternative activity
of similar educational value. Additionally, a student shall not be subject to disciplinary action, academic penalty, or
other sanction on the grounds that the student was opted out of such instruction.

Policy Reference Disclaimer:These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter
of the policy.



State

Ed. Code 38130-38139
Ed. Code 46014

Ed. Code 51240

Ed. Code 51511

Ed. Code 51930-51939

Federal

20 USC 4071-4074
20 USC 6061

20 USC 7904

Management Resources
California Department of Education Publication
Court Decision

Court Decision
Court Decision

Court Decision
Court Decision
Court Decision

Court Decision
U.S. Department of Education Publication

Website
Website
Website
Website

Cross References
0410
0450
0450
1325
1330
1330
5113
5113
5121
5121
5127
5132
5132

Description

Civic C :

Absences for religious purposes

E ‘ . . ligi belief
Religi v incl i ‘
California Healthy Youth 2

Description
Equal Access Act
School prayer
School prayer

Description

: lix F hi ial sci ‘ K for Californi I I
Mahmoud v. Taylor (2025) 606 U.S. ____ (2025 WL 1773627)

Florey v. Sioux Falls (1980) 619 F.2d 1311

Description

Nondiscrimination In District P And Activiti
Comprehensive Safety Plan
Comprehensive Safety Plan



Cross References
5141.31
5141.31
5145.2
5145.2
6111
6115
6115
6142.8
6142.8
6142.93
6142.94
6143
6143
6144
6145.5
6145.5
6145.8
6154
6161.11
6176

Description

| L

Immunizations
Freedom Of Speech/Expression
Freedom Of Speech/Expression
School Calendar
Ceremonies And Observances

Ceremonies And Observances



CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

Regulation 6141.2: Recognition Of Religious Beliefs And Customs Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 05/01/1985 | Last Revised Date: 08/01/2025 | Last Reviewed Date: 08/01/2025

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure the following for the recognition of religious beliefs and customs in
district schools:

1. The approach to religion is academic and not devotional
2. The goal is for student awareness of religion in historical and contemporary societies
3. The students may not be pressed to accept any one religion

4. The school may include the study of religion as part of the history-social science curriculum, but the practice of
religions may not be sponsored

5. The students may be exposed to and educated about a diversity of religious views and beliefs, but a particular
view or belief may not be imposed, nor may any one religion be promoted or denigrated

Staff shall make every effort to schedule one-time events, such as examinations, district-sponsored trips, special
laboratories, picture-taking days, and class parties, to minimize conflicts with major religious holidays of all faiths
such that no one faith is disproportionately impacted.

Programs and Exhibits

When district programs and exhibits are in any way related to instruction about religion or religious holidays, the
following guidelines shall be observed:

1. The principal or designee shall ensure that district-sponsored programs are presented in an objective manner,
consistent with the accompanying Board policy

2. The principal or designee shall be kept informed of the program's development

3. Program or exhibit planners shall take into consideration the diverse religious faiths represented in the
community, student body, and staff

Opt-Outs

When a parent/guardian submits a written request to opt the parent's/guardian's student out of instruction based on
religious beliefs, customs, or practices, the request shall include the following:

1. The specific instructional content of which the student should be opted out

2. The specific religious belief(s), custom(s), and/or practice(s) with which the specific instructional content
substantially interferes

3. How the specific instructional content substantially interferes with the specific religious belief(s), custom(s),
and/or practice(s), including any grade level or individual student characteristics relevant to the opt-out
request

As necessary, the Superintendent or designee may work with district legal counsel to evaluate each opt-out request
and determine whether it shall be granted.

Policy Reference Disclaimer:These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter
of the policy.

State Description

Ed. Code 38130-38139 Civic Center Act



State

Ed. Code 46014

Ed. Code 51240

Ed. Code 51511

Ed. Code 51930-51939

Federal

20 USC 4071-4074
20 USC 6061

20 USC 7904

Management Resources
California Department of Education Publication
Court Decision

Court Decision
Court Decision

Court Decision
Court Decision
Court Decision

Court Decision
U.S. Department of Education Publication

Website
Website
Website
Website

Cross References
0410
0450
0450
1325
1330
1330
5113
5113
5121
5121
5127
5132
5132
5141.31

Description

: ‘ ligi

Excuse from instru
Religi v incl i ¢
California Healthy Youth A

ion due to religious belief

Description
Equal Access Act
School prayer
School prayer

Description

: i E hi ial sci ‘  for Californi i |
Mahmoud v. Taylor (2025) 606 U.S. (2025 WL 1773627)

Florey v. Sioux Falls (1980) 619 F.2d 1311
Fell in of Christian Athl San Jose Unified School District Board of

Description

londiscrimination In District P And Activiti
Comprehensive Safety Plan
Comprehensive Safety Plan



Cross References
5141.31
5145.2
5145.2
6111
6115
6115
6142.8
6142.8
6142.93
6142.94
6143
6143
6144
6145.5
6145.5
6145.8
6154
6161.11
6176

Description

Immunizations

Fr m Of h/Expression
Freedom Of Speech/Expression
School Calendar
Ceremonies And Observances
Ceremonies And Observances

Comprehensive Health Education



CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

Policy 6142.1: Sexual Health And HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 07/01/2008 | Last Revised Date: 08/01/2025 | Last Reviewed Date: 08/01/2025

The Governing Board desires to provide a well-planned, integrated sequence of medically accurate and inclusive
instruction in comprehensive sexual health and human immunodeficiency virus (HIV) prevention.

The district shall respect the rights of parents/guardians to supervise their students' education on these subjects and
to impart values to their children regarding human sexuality.

As specified in the accompanying administrative regulation, the district shall strive to provide students with the
knowledge and skills necessary to protect them from risks presented by sexually transmitted infections, unintended
pregnancy, sexual harassment, sexual assault, sexual abuse, and human trafficking; to have healthy, positive, and safe
relationships and behaviors; to understand sexuality as a normal part of human development; and to develop healthy
attitudes and behaviors concerning adolescent growth and development, body image, gender, gender identity,
gender expression, sexual orientation, relationships, marriage, and family. (Education Code 51930-51939)

Each student in grades 7-12 shall receive comprehensive sexual health and HIV prevention education at least once in
junior high or middle school and at least once in high school unless the student's parent(s)/guardian(s) opt the student
out of such instruction as specified in "Parent/Guardian Notification and Opt-Out" in the accompanying
administrative regulation. (Education Code 51934)

General Criteria for Instruction and Materials

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the district's comprehensive sexual health and HIV prevention
education and the associated materials: (Education Code 51930, 51933)

1. Are age appropriate

2. Are medically accurate and objective

3. Are aligned with and support the following purposes:

a.

To provide students with the knowledge and skills necessary to protect their sexual and reproductive
health from HIV and other sexually transmitted infections and from unintended pregnancy

To provide students with the knowledge and skills they need to develop healthy attitudes concerning
adolescent growth and development, body image, gender, sexual orientation, relationships, marriage, and
family

To promote understanding of sexuality as a normal part of human development

To ensure students receive integrated, comprehensive, accurate, and unbiased sexual health and HIV
prevention education and provide educators with clear tools and guidance to accomplish that end

. To provide students with the knowledge and skills necessary to have healthy, positive, and safe

relationships and behaviors

4. Are appropriate for use with English learners, students with disabilities, and students of all races, genders,
sexual orientations, and ethnic and cultural backgrounds

5. Are available on an equal basis to a student who is an English learner, consistent with the existing curriculum
and alternative options for an English learner as otherwise provided in the Education Code

6. Are accessible to students with disabilities, including, but not limited to, the provision of a modified curriculum,
materials, and instruction in alternative formats and auxiliary aids

7. Do not reflect or promote bias against any person in protected categories of discrimination pursuant to
Education Code 220



8. Affirmatively recognize that people have different sexual orientations and, when discussing or providing
examples of relationships and couples, shall be inclusive of same-sex relationships

9. Teach students about gender, gender expression, and gender identity, and explore the harm of negative gender
stereotypes

10. Encourage students to communicate with their parents/guardians and other trusted adults about human
sexuality and provide the knowledge and skills necessary to do so

11. Teach the value of and prepare students to have and maintain committed relationships such as marriage

12. Provide students with the knowledge and skills they need to form healthy relationships that are based on
mutual respect and affection and are free from violence, coercion, harassment, and intimidation

13. Provide students with the knowledge and skills for making and implementing healthy decisions about sexuality,
including communication and refusal skills to assist students in overcoming peer pressure and using effective
decision-making skills to avoid high-risk activities

14. Do not teach or promote religious doctrine

Additionally, the district's comprehensive sexual health education program shall include information on the
affirmative consent standard. Affirmative consent is defined as affirmative, conscious, and voluntary agreement to
engage in sexual activity. Teachers delivering such instruction shall consult information related to sexual harassment
and violence in the state health curriculum framework. (Education Code 51225.36, 67386)

The Superintendent or designee shall identify appropriate methods for informing parents/guardians about subjects
related to the district's comprehensive sexual health and HIV prevention education. The Superintendent or designee
shall use such identified methods to inform parents/guardians of students in grades 6-12 about human trafficking
prevention resources, as required pursuant to Education Code 49381.

Parent/Guardian Notification and Opt-Out

At the beginning of each school year or at the time of a student's enrollment, parents/guardians shall be notified, in
the manner specified in the accompanying administrative regulation, that they may request in writing to opt their
students out of participating in comprehensive sexual health and HIV prevention education. Students so excused
shall be given an alternative educational activity. Additionally, a student shall not be subject to disciplinary action,
academic penalty, or other sanction if the student's parent/guardian opts the student out of such instruction.
(Education Code 51240, 51938, 51939)

Policy Reference Disclaimer:These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter
of the policy.

State Description

Ed. Code 220 Prohibition of discrimination

Ed. Code 231.7 Resources on abuse and teen dating violence; local and national hotlines
Ed. Code 232.7 Model policy and resources; body shaming

Ed. Code 33544 nclusion of sexual harassment and violence in health curri m framework
Ed. Code 33546.2 Health framework; sextortion

Ed. Code 48980 Paren rdian notification

Ed. Code 49381 Human trafficking prevention resources

Ed. Code 51202 Instruction in personal and public health and safety



State Description

Ed. Code 51210.8 Health education curriculum
Ed. Code 51225.36 Instr tion in sexu h.r ment and violen istricts that require health
Ed. Code 51240 Excuse from instruction due to religious beliefs

Ed. Code 51513

Ed. Code 51930-51939 California Healthy Youth Act
Ed. Code 51950
Ed. Code 67386

H&S Code 1255.7 Parents surrendering physical custody of a baby
Pen. Code 243.4 Sexual battery
Pen. Code 261.5 Unlawful sexual intercourse
Pen. Code 271.5 Parents voluntarily surrendering custody of a baby
Federal Description
20 USC 1232h Privacy rights
20 USC 7906 Sex education requirements and prohibited use of funds
California Department of Education Publication  Body Shaming Model Policy & Resources
Health E ion Framework for California Publi h : Kindergarten

California Department of Education Publication G 12 May 2019

Management Resources Description

California Department of Education Publication Kind T G Twelve. 2008

Court Decision Mahmoud v. Taylor (2025) 606 U.S. ____ (2025 WL 1773627)
Human Rights Campaign Foundation Publication California LGBTQ Youth Report, January 2019

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services
Website Human Rights Campaign

Website U.S. Food and Drug Administration

Website California Partnership to End Domestic Violence

Website California Safe Schools Coalition

Website Mmmmmmmm
Website California Department of Public Health

Website California Healthy Kids Resource Center

Website Centers for Disease Control and Prevention

Website CSBA

Cross References Description

0410 Nondiscrimination In District P And Activiti
1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures



Cross References
1312.3-E(1)
1312.3-E(2)
4131

5022

5022

5030
5141.22
5141.22
5141.25
5145.3
5145.3
5145.6
5145.6-E(1)
5145.7
5145.7
5146

6141

6141
6142.8
6142.8
6142.93
6143

6143

6144
6145.8
6146.1
6159

6159
6161.11
6174

6174

Description

Uniform Complaint Procedures
Uniform Complaint Procedur
Staff Development

Student Wellness

Infectious Diseases

Infecti Di

Availability Of C
londiscrimination/t
Nondiscrimination/!

11



CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

Regulation 6142.1: Sexual Health And HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 07/01/2008 | Last Revised Date: 08/01/2025 | Last Reviewed Date: 08/01/2025

Definitions

Comprehensive sexual health education means education regarding human development and sexuality, including
education on menstrual health, pregnancy, contraception, and sexually transmitted infections. (Education Code
51931)

HIV prevention education means instruction on the nature of human immunodeficiency virus (HIV) and acquired
immune deficiency syndrome (AIDS), methods of transmission, strategies to reduce the risk of HIV infection, and
social and public health issues related to HIV and AIDS. (Education Code 51931)

Age appropriate refers to topics, messages, and teaching methods suitable to particular ages or age groups of children
and adolescents, based on developing cognitive, emotional, and behavioral capacity typical for the age or age group.
(Education Code 51931)

Medically accurate means verified or supported by research conducted in compliance with scientific methods and
published in peer-reviewed journals, where appropriate, and recognized as accurate and objective by professional
organizations and agencies with expertise in the relevant field, such as the federal Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention, the American Public Health Association, the American Academy of Pediatrics, and the American College
of Obstetricians and Gynecologists. (Education Code 51931)

Components of Sexual Health and HIV Prevention Education

In addition to complying with the criteria listed in "General Criteria for Instruction and Materials" in the
accompanying Board policy, the district's comprehensive sexual health and HIV prevention education for students in
grades 7-12 shall include all of the following: (Education Code 51934)

1. Information on the nature of HIV and other sexually transmitted infections and their effects on the human
body

2. Information on the manner in which HIV and other sexually transmitted infections are and are not transmitted,
including information on the relative risk of infection according to specific behaviors, including sexual
behaviors and injection drug use

3. Information that abstinence from sexual activity and injection drug use is the only certain way to prevent HIV
and other sexually transmitted infections, and that abstinence from sexual intercourse is the only certain way
to prevent unintended pregnancy

The instruction shall provide information about the value of delaying sexual activity while also providing
medically accurate information on other methods of preventing HIV and other sexually transmitted infections
and pregnancy.

4. Information about the effectiveness and safety of all federal Food and Drug Administration (FDA) approved
methods that prevent or reduce the risk of contracting HIV and other sexually transmitted infections, including
use of antiretroviral medication, consistent with the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention

5. Information about the effectiveness and safety of reducing the risk of HIV transmission as a result of injection
drug use by decreasing needle use and needle sharing

6. Information about the treatment of HIV and other sexually transmitted infections, including how antiretroviral
therapy can dramatically prolong the lives of many people living with HIV and reduce the likelihood of
transmitting HIV to others

7. Discussion about social views on HIV and AIDS, including addressing unfounded stereotypes and myths
regarding HIV and AIDS and people living with HIV

12



This instruction shall emphasize that successfully treated HIV-positive individuals have a normal life
expectancy, all people are at some risk of contracting HIV, and testing is the only way to know if one is HIV-
positive.

8. Information about local resources, how to access local resources, and students' legal rights to access local
resources for sexual and reproductive health care such as testing and medical care for HIV and other sexually
transmitted infections and pregnancy prevention and care, as well as local resources for assistance with sexual
assault and intimate partner violence

9. Information about the effectiveness and safety of FDA-approved contraceptive methods in preventing
pregnancy, including, but not limited to, emergency contraception

Instruction on pregnancy shall include an objective discussion of all legally available pregnancy outcomes,
including, but not limited to:

a. Parenting, adoption, and abortion

b. Information on the law on surrendering physical custody of a minor child 72 hours of age or younger,
pursuant to Health and Safety Code 1255.7 and Penal Code 271.5

c. The importance of prenatal care
10. Information about sexual harassment, sexual assault, sexual abuse, and human trafficking, including:

a. Information on the prevalence and nature of human trafficking, strategies to reduce the risk of human
trafficking, techniques to set healthy boundaries, and how to safely seek assistance if there is a suspicion
of trafficking

b. Information on how social media and mobile device applications are used for human trafficking

11. Information about adolescent relationship abuse and intimate partner violence, including the early warning
signs of each, and the resources available to students related to adolescent relationship abuse and intimate
partner violence, including the National Domestic Violence Hotline and local domestic violence hotlines that
provide confidential support services for students that have experienced domestic violence or stalking

The district's comprehensive sexual health and HIV prevention education shall include instruction regarding the
potential risks and consequences of creating and sharing suggestive or sexually explicit materials through cell
phones, social networking websites, computer networks, or other digital media. (Education Code 51934)

Professional Development

The district's comprehensive sexual health and HIV prevention education shall be provided by instructors trained in
the appropriate courses who are knowledgeable of the most recent medically accurate research on human sexuality,
healthy relationships, pregnancy, and HIV and other sexually transmitted infections. (Education Code 51931, 51934)

The Superintendent or designee shall cooperatively plan and conduct in-service training for all district personnel who
provide HIV prevention education, through regional planning, joint powers agreements, or contract services.
(Education Code 51935)

In developing and providing in-service training, the Superintendent or designee shall cooperate and collaborate with
the teachers who provide HIV prevention education and with the California Department of Education (CDE).
(Education Code 51935)

The district shall periodically conduct in-service training to enable district personnel to learn new developments in
the scientific understanding of HIV. In-service training shall be voluntary for personnel who have demonstrated
expertise or received in-service training from CDE or the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. (Education
Code 51935)

The Superintendent or designee may expand HIV in-service training to cover the topic of comprehensive sexual
health education in order for district personnel teaching comprehensive sexual health education to learn new
developments in the scientific understanding of sexual health. (Education Code 51935)

13



The Superintendent or designee shall periodically provide continuing education that enables district personnel to
learn about new developments in the understanding of abuse, including sexual abuse, and human trafficking, and
current prevention efforts and methods. Such education may include early identification of abuse, including sexual
abuse, and human trafficking of students and minors. (Education Code 51950)

Use of Consultants or Guest Speakers

The Superintendent or designee may contract with outside consultants or guest speakers, including those who have
developed multilingual curricula or curricula accessible to persons with disabilities, to deliver comprehensive sexual
health and HIV prevention education or to provide training for district personnel. All outside consultants and guest
speakers shall have expertise in comprehensive sexual health and HIV prevention education and knowledge of the
most recent medically accurate research on the relevant topic(s) covered in the instruction. The Superintendent or
designee shall ensure that any instruction provided by an outside speaker or consultant complies with Board policy,
administrative regulation, and Education Code 51930-51939. (Education Code 51933, 51934, 51936)

Parent/Guardian Notification and Opt-Out

At the beginning of each school year or at the time of a student's enrollment, the Superintendent or designee shall
notify parents/guardians about comprehensive sexual health and HIV prevention education, as well as research on
student health behaviors and risks, planned for the coming year. The notice shall advise parents/guardians:
(Education Code 48980, 51938)

1. That written and audiovisual educational materials to be used in comprehensive sexual health and HIV
prevention education are available for inspection

2. That parents/guardians have a right to opt their students out of comprehensive sexual health or HIV
prevention education, or research on student health behaviors and risks, provided they submit their request in
writing to the district

3. That parents/guardians have a right to request a copy of Education Code 51930-51939

4. Whether the comprehensive sexual health or HIV prevention education will be taught by district personnel or
outside consultants and, if the district chooses to use outside consultants or guest speakers for this purpose,
the following information:

a. The date of the instruction
b. The name of the organization or affiliation of each guest speaker

c. Information stating the right of the parent/guardian to request a copy of Education Code 51933, 51934,
and 51938

If the arrangements for instruction by outside consultants or guest speakers are made after the beginning of the
school year, the Superintendent or designee shall notify parents/guardians by mail or another commonly used
method of notification no fewer than 14 days before the instruction is given.

Except as required by law, the requirements of Education Code 51930-51939 pertaining to instructional content,
teacher training, and parent/guardian notification and opt-out shall not apply to the following: (Education Code
51932)

1. A description or illustration of human reproductive organs that may appear in a textbook, adopted pursuant to
law, if the textbook does not include other elements of comprehensive sexual health or HIV prevention
education as defined in Education Code 51931

2. Instruction, materials, presentations, or programming that discusses gender, gender identity, gender
expression, sexual orientation, discrimination, harassment, bullying, intimidation, relationships, or family and
does not discuss human reproductive organs and their functions

14



Policy Reference Disclaimer:These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter

of the policy.

State

Ed. Code 220

Ed. Code 231.7
Ed. Code 232.7
Ed. Code 33544
Ed. Code 33546.2
Ed. Code 48980
Ed. Code 49381
Ed. Code 51202
Ed. Code 51210.8

Ed. Code 51225.36
Ed. Code 51240
Ed. Code 51513

Ed. Code 51930-51939
Ed. Code 51950

Ed. Code 67386

H&S Code 1255.7

Pen. Code 243.4

Pen. Code 261.5

Pen. Code 271.5

Federal
20 USC 1232h
20 USC 7906

California Department of Education Publication

California Department of Education Publication

Management Resources

California Department of Education Publication
Court Decision

CSBA Publication

Human Rights Campaign Foundation Publication
Website
Website
Website
Website
Website

Description
Prohibiti f discriminati

Resources on abuse and teen dating violence; local and national hotlines

Model policy and resources; body shaming

Description

Description

Health Education C Standards for California Public S ls:
Kindergarten Through Grade Twelve, 2008
Mahmoud v. Taylor (2025) 606 U.S. ____ (2025 WL 1773627)

MMMM@MMM iderations. G Briof. / 2014

California LGBTQ Youth R ! 2019

15



Management Resources

Website

Website
Website
Website
Website

Cross References
0410
1312.3
1312.3
1312.3-E(1)
1312.3-E(2)
4131

5022

5022

5030
5141.22
5141.22
5141.25
5145.3
5145.3
5145.6
5145.6-E(1)
5145.7
5145.7
5146

6141

6141
6142.8
6142.8
6142.93
6143

6143

6144
6145.8
6146.1
6159

6159
6161.11
6174

Description

California O f Education. Sex E . | HIV/AIDS/STC

Instruction

California D f Public Healtt
California Heal Kids R c

. for Di . | and P .
CSBA

Description

Nondiscrimination In District P And Activiti
Unif c laint P |

Unif. c laint P |

Student Wellness

Infecti Di

Infecti Di

Availability Of Condoms
londiscrimination/!
Nondiscrimination/Harassmen
P 5 ian Notificati

p c ian Notificati
Sexual Harassment

16



Cross References

6174

Description

Education For English Learners

17



CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

Policy 6142.8: Comprehensive Health Education Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 11/01/2003 | Last Revised Date: 08/01/2025 | Last Reviewed Date: 08/01/2025

The Governing Board believes that health education should foster the knowledge, skills, and attitudes that students
need in order to lead healthy lives and avoid high-risk behaviors, and that creating a safe, supportive, inclusive, and
nonjudgmental environment is crucial to promoting healthy development for all students. The district's health
education program shall be part of a coordinated approach to student health which recognizes that mental health
and social connection are critical to overall health, well-being, and academic success; supports the physical, mental,
and social well-being of students; reflects the importance of digital and media literacy; and is linked to district and
community services and resources.

Goals for the district's health education program shall be designed to promote student wellness and shall include, but
not be limited to, goals for nutrition promotion and education, physical activity, and other district-based activities
that promote student well-being.

Any health education course offered to middle or high school students shall include instruction in mental health that
meets the requirements of Education Code 51925-51926, and as specified in Administrative Regulation 6143 -
Courses of Study.

The district shall provide a planned, sequential, research-based, and developmentally appropriate health education
curriculum for students in grades kindergarten-12 that is aligned with the state's content standards and curriculum
framework and integrated with other content areas of the district's curriculum. The Superintendent or designee shall
determine the grade levels and subject areas in which health-related topics will be addressed, in accordance with
law, Board policy, and administrative regulation.

As appropriate, the Superintendent or designee shall involve school administrators, teachers, school nurses, health
professionals representing various fields of health care, parents/guardians, community-based organizations, and
other community members in the development, implementation, and evaluation of the district's health education
program. Health and safety professionals may be invited to provide related instruction in the classroom, school
assemblies, and other instructional settings.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide professional development as needed to ensure that health education
teachers are knowledgeable about academic content standards, the state curriculum framework, and effective
instructional methodologies.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide periodic reports to the Board regarding the implementation and
effectiveness of the district's health education program, which may include, but not be limited to, a description of the
district's program and the extent to which it is aligned with the state's content standards and curriculum framework,
the amount of time allotted for health instruction at each grade level, student achievement of district standards for
health education, and the manner in which the district's health education program supports the physical, mental, and
social well-being of students.

Parent/Guardian Notification and Opt-Out

Parents/guardians shall be notified that they may request in writing to opt their students out of participating in
instruction and assessments, including anonymous and confidential tests, questionnaires, and surveys, as specified in
the accompanying administrative regulation. Students so excused shall be given an alternative educational activity.
Additionally, a student shall not be subject to disciplinary action, academic penalty, or other sanction if the student's
parent/guardian opts the student out of such instruction. (Education Code 51240, 51900.6, 51938, 51939)

Policy Reference Disclaimer:These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter
of the policy.

18



State

5CCR 11800-11801
Ed. Code 35183.5

Ed. Code 49413

Ed. Code 49430-49434
Ed. Code 49490-49494
Ed. Code 49500-49505
Ed. Code 51202

Ed. Code 51203

Ed. Code 51210

Ed. Code 51210.8

Ed. Code 51220.5

Ed. Code 51225.36
Ed. Code 51225.38
Ed. Code 51225.6

Ed. Code 51240

Ed. Code 51260-51269
Ed. Code 51513

Ed. Code 51880-51881.5

Ed. Code 51890-51891

Ed. Code 51900.6

Ed. Code 51913

Ed. Code 51920

Ed. Code 51925-51929
Ed. Code 51930-51939
Ed. Code 67386

Ed. Code 8850.5

Federal

42 USC 1751-1769j
42 USC 1758b

42 USC 1771-1793

Management Resources

California Department of Education Publication

California Department of Education Publication

Court Decision
CSBA Publication
CSBA Publication

Description

Distri lth ed . |
Sun protection
i id liopul L -

School breakfast and lunch programs
School meals

Instruction in personal and public health and safety

| ion f uati
Instruction in the dangers associated with fentanyl use

I ion in cardiopul )
wwmmgw.fl.

E from i . ligious belief

Description

School Lunch Program
Local wellness policy
Child Nutrition A

Description

Health Ed ion E for California Public S ls: Kind
Through Grade Twelve, 2019

Health Education C Standards for California Public S ls:
Kindergarten Through Grade Twelve, 2008
(2025 WL 1773627)

Mahmoud v. Taylor (2025) 606 U.S.

19



Management Resources

CSBA Publication

CSBA Publication

CSBA Publication

CSBA Publication
CSBA Publication

CSBA Publication

CSBA Publication

CSBA Publication

CSBA Publication
Human Rights Campaign Foundation Publication
Society of Health & Physical Educators Publication

US Department of Health and Human Services
Pub.

US Dept of Health and Human Services
Publication
Website
Website
Website
Website
Website
Website
Website
Website
Website
Website
Website
Website
Website
Website
Website

Cross References
0200
0415
0450
0450

Description
P ing C hic Health 11 . Brief. July 2018

The Impact of Marijuana Legalization on K-12: The Effect of Marijuana on
the Brain, November 2018

Why Schools Hold the Promise for Adolescent Mental Health, Governance
Brief, May 2019

Sun Safety in Schools, Policy Brief, July 2006

Promoting Oral Health for California's Students: New R New
. ities for Schools. Policy Brief. N 2008
Consid o 5’ Brief. A 2014 ’

American Sch H h A iation

Description

Goals For The School Distri
Equity
Comprehensive Safety Plan

20



Cross References Description

0500 Accountability

1220 Citizen Advisory Committees

1220 Citizen Advisory Committees

1240 Volunteer Assistance

1240 Volunteer Assistance

1325 Advertising And Promotion

1400 Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies And The Schools
1700 Relations Between Private Industry And The Schools
3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3513.4 Drug And Alcohol Free Schools

3514 Environmental Safety

3514 Environmental Safety

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan
3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan
3543 Transportation Safety And Emergencies
3550 Food Service/Child Nutrition Program

3550 Food Service/Child Nutrition Program

3554 Other Food Sales

3554 Other Food Sales

4131 Staff Development

5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5022 Student And Family Privacy Rights

5022 Student And Family Privacy Rights

5030 Student Wellness

5131 Conduct

5131.2 Bullying

5131.2 Bullying

5131.6 Alcohol And Other Drugs

5131.6 Alcohol And Other Drugs

5131.62 Tobacco

5131.62 Tobacco

5131.63 Steroids

5131.63 Steroids

5137 Positive School Climate

5138 Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation

5141 Health Care And Emergencies

5141 Health Care And Emergencies

5141.21 Administerineg Medication And Monitoring Health Conditi



Cross References
5141.21
5141.22
5141.22
5141.23
5141.23
5141.3
5141.3
5141.31
5141.31
5141.32
5141.4
51414
5141.5
5141.52
5141.52
5141.6
5141.6
5141.7
5142
5142
5142.2
5142.2
5145.3
5145.3
5145.6
5145.6-E(1)
5145.7
5145.7
5145.9
5146
6011
6020
6020
6141
6141
6141.2
6141.2
6142.1
6142.1
6142.5

Description

Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditi

Infectious Diseases
Infecti Di
Asthma Management
Asthma Management
Health Examinations
Health Examinations
I .

I o

22



Cross References
6142.7
6142.7
6143

6143

6144
6145.2
6145.2
6145.8
6146.1
6161.1
6161.1
6161.1-E(1)
6162.8
6162.8
6163.4
6163.4-E(1)
6164.2
6172

6172

6190

Description

Physical Ed ion And Activi

Physical Education And Activi

Courses Of Study

Courses Of Study

Controversial Issues

Athletic Competition
Assemblies And Special Events

Selection And Evaluation Of | ional Material

23



CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

Regulation 6142.8: Comprehensive Health Education Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 11/01/2003 | Last Revised Date: 08/01/2025 | Last Reviewed Date: 08/01/2025

Content of Instruction

The district's health education program shall include instruction at the appropriate grade levels in the following
content areas:

Alcohol, tobacco, and other drugs

Human growth, development, and sexual health

Injury prevention and safety

Instruction related to injury prevention and safety may include, but is not limited to, first aid, protective
equipment such as helmets, violence prevention, topics related to bullying and harassment, emergency
procedures, and Internet safety.

Mental, emotional, and social health

Health education courses offered to middle and/or high school students shall include mental health instruction
that meets the requirements of Education Code 51925-51927, as specified in Administrative Regulation 6143
- Courses of Study.

Nutrition and physical activity

. Personal and community health

Instruction in personal and community health may include, but is not limited to, oral health, personal hygiene,
sun safety, vision and hearing protection, transmission of germs and communicable diseases, symptoms of
common health problems and chronic diseases, and the effect of behavior on the environment.

Within each of the above content areas, instruction shall be designed to assist students in developing:

1.

2.

5.

6.

An understanding of essential concepts related to enhancing health
The ability to analyze internal and external influences that affect health
The ability to access and analyze health information, products, and services

The ability to use interpersonal communication skills, decision-making skills, and goal-setting skills to enhance
health

The ability to practice behaviors that reduce risk and promote health

The ability to promote and support personal, family, and community health

High School Health Education

Whenever the Governing Board requires a course in health education for graduation from high school, the district's
high school health education course(s) shall include instruction in:

1.

Sexual harassment and violence, including, but not limited to, the affirmative consent standard as defined in
Education Code 67386 (Education Code 51225.36)

When delivering such instruction, teachers shall consult information related to sexual harassment and violence
in the Health Education Framework for California Public Schools. (Education Code 51225.36)

24



2. Compression-only cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR), which is based on national evidence-based emergency
cardiovascular care guidelines for the performance of compression-only CPR and includes instruction relative
to the psychomotor skills necessary to perform compression-only CPR (Education Code 51225.6)

3. Starting with the 2026-27 school year, the dangers associated with fentanyl use (Education Code 51225.38)

Parent/Guardian Notification and Opt-Out

At the beginning of each school year or at the time of a student's enrollment, parents/guardians shall be notified that
they may request in writing to opt their students out of participating in the following:

1. Anonymous, voluntary, and confidential tests, questionnaires, and surveys containing age-appropriate
questions about students' attitudes concerning or practices relating to sex (Education Code 51938, 51939)

2. Any instruction in health that conflicts with the student's religious training and beliefs, including personal moral
convictions (Education Code 51240)

3. Any instruction in sexual abuse and/or sexual assault awareness and prevention (Education Code 51900.6

4. Any instruction in comprehensive sexual health and human immunodeficiency virus (HIV) prevention
(Education Code 51938, 51939)

5. Any other instruction as permitted by law

Additionally, the district shall not administer any exam, survey, or questionnaire that contains questions about the
student's or the student's family's personal beliefs or practices in sex, family life, morality, or religion unless the
student's parent/guardian has given written permission. (Education Code 51513)

Involvement of Health Professionals

Health care professionals, health care service plans, health care providers, and other entities participating in a
voluntary initiative with the district are prohibited from communicating about a product or service in a way that is
intended to encourage persons to purchase or use the product or service. However, the following activities may be
allowed: (Education Code 51890)

1. Health care or health education information provided in a brochure or pamphlet that contains the logo or name
of a health care service plan or health care organization, if provided in coordination with the voluntary initiative

2. Outreach, application assistance, and enrollment activities relating to federal, state, or county-sponsored
health care insurance programs if the activities are conducted in compliance with the statutory, regulatory, and
programmatic guidelines applicable to those programs

Policy Reference Disclaimer:These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter
of the policy.

State Description

5 CCR 11800-11801 District health education plan

Ed. Code 35183.5 Sun protection

Ed. Code 49413 First aid and cardiopulmonary resuscitation training
Ed. Code 49430-49434 Pupil Nutrition, Health, and Achievement Act of 2001
Ed. Code 49490-49494 School breakfast and lunch programs

Ed. Code 49500-49505 School meals

Ed. Code 51202 nstruction in personal an ic health and saf

Ed. Code 51203 Instruction on alcohol, narcotics and dangerous drugs

25



State

Ed.
Ed.
Ed.

Ed.

Ed.

Ed.

Ed.
Ed.
Ed.
Ed.

Ed.

Ed.
Ed.
Ed.
Ed.
Ed.
Ed.
Ed.

Code 51210
Code 51210.8
Code 51220.5

Code 51225.36

Code 51225.38

Code 51225.6

Code 51240

Code 51260-51269
Code 51513

Code 51880-51881.5

Code 51890-51891

Code 51900.6
Code 51913

Code 51920

Code 51925-51929
Code 51930-51939
Code 67386

Code 8850.5

Federal

42 USC 1751-1769j
42 USC 1758b

42 USC 1771-1793

Management Resources

California Department of Education Publication

California Department of Education Publication

Court Decision

CSBA Publication
CSBA Publication
CSBA Publication

CSBA Publication

CSBA Publication

CSBA Publication
CSBA Publication

CSBA Publication

Description

Course of study for grades 1-6
Health education
P . ils: i .

mmxmmmmmw.fl.

Instruction in the dangers associated with fentanyl use

rriculum

mmmmwmmmmmw.fl.

Description
School Lunch Program
Local wellness policy
Child Nutrition A

Description

Mahmoud v. Taylor (2025) 606 U.S. (2025 WL 1773627)

26



Management Resources Description

CSBA Publication

CSBA Publication

CSBA Publication Considerations, Governance Brief, August 2014

Human Rights Campaign Foundation Publication California LGBTQ Youth Report, January 2019

Society of Health & Physical Educators Publication

US Department of Health and Human Services
Pub.

Our Epidemic of Loneliness and Isolation: The U.S. Surgeon General’s
Advi Health Eff £ Social C - c .

US Dept of Health and Human Services

Publication 2023

Website SHAPE America, Society of Health and Physical Educators
Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services
Website Human Rights Campaign Foundation

Website U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

Website American School Health Association

Website California Association of School Health Educators

Website California Department of Education, Health Education
Website California Subject Matter Project, Physical Education-Health Project
Website Center for Injury Prevention Policy and Practice

Website National Center for Health Education

Website National Hearing Conservation Association

Website Centers for Disease Control and Prevention

Website CSBA

Website California Department of Public Health

Website California Healthy Kids Resource Center

Cross References Description

0200 Goals For The School District

0415 Equity

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0500 Accountability

1220 Citizen Advisory Committees

1220 Citizen Advisory Committees

1240 Volunteer Assistance

1240 Volunteer Assistance

1325 Advertising And Promotion

1400 Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies And The Schools

1700 Relations Between Private Industry And The Schools



Cross References
3513.3
3513.3
3513.4
3514
3514
3516
3516
3543
3550
3550
3554
3554
4131
5020
5020
5022
5022
5030
5131
5131.2
5131.2
5131.6
5131.6
5131.62
5131.62
5131.63
5131.63
5137
5138
5141
5141
5141.21
5141.21
5141.22
5141.22
5141.23
5141.23
5141.3
5141.3
5141.31

Description

Tobacco-Free Schools

T -Fr h

Drug And Alcohol Free Schools
Environmental Safety

Environmental Safety
Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan
Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan
T ion Saf And E .

E Service/Child Nutrition P

28



Cross References
5141.31
5141.32
51414
5141.4
5141.5
5141.52
5141.52
5141.6
5141.6
5141.7
5142
5142
5142.2
5142.2
5145.3
5145.3
5145.6
5145.6-E(1)
5145.7
5145.7
5145.9
5146
6011
6020
6020
6141
6141
6141.2
6141.2
6142.1
6142.1
6142.5
6142.7
6142.7
6143
6143
6144
6145.2
6145.2
6145.8

Description

| L

Health Screening For School Entr
Child Al P ion And R .

Child Al P ion And R .
Mental Health

Suicide P .
Suicide Prevention

School Health Services
School Health Services

29



Cross References
6146.1
6161.1
6161.1
6161.1-E(1)
6162.8
6162.8
6163.4
6163.4-E(1)
6164.2
6172

6172

6190

Description

Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials
Research

Research

Student Use Of Technology
Student Use Of Technology

Gifted And Talented Student Program

30



CSBA Policy Management Console
CSBA Sample District Policy Manual



CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

Policy 6141.2: Recognition Of Religious Beliefs And Customs Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 12/01/1988 | Last Revised Date: 08/01/2025 | Last Reviewed Date: 08/01/2025

The Governing Board recognizes that students' education would be incomplete without an understanding of the role
of religion in society. As appropriate for a particular course, teachers may objectively discuss the influences of
various religions, using religious works and symbols to illustrate their relationship with culture, literature, or the arts.
The Board expects that such instruction will identify principles common to all religions and foster respect for the
diversity of religions and customs in the world and be consistent with the adopted instructional materials and state
standards, as applicable.

In order to respect each student's individual right to freedom of religious practice, religious indoctrination is
forbidden in public schools. The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that instruction about religion does not
promote or denigrate the beliefs or customs of any particular religion or sect, nor that a preference be shown for one
religious viewpoint over another. Teachers and other district staff shall be highly sensitive to their obligation not to
interfere with the religious development of any student in whatever tradition the student embraces, and treat all
religions and religious convictions, including nonbelief, with fairness and respect.

Staff shall not endorse, encourage, or solicit religious or anti-religious expression or activities among students during
class time.

Staff shall not coerce students in prayer or other religious activities as part of their official duties. However, staff are
not prohibited, when acting in their private capacity, from encouraging students' participation in personal prayer or
other religious activity. Additionally, staff shall not prohibit or discourage any student from praying or otherwise
expressing the student's religious belief so long as this does not disrupt the classroom or other district-sponsored
activity.

Students may express their beliefs about religion in their homework, artwork, and other class work if the expression
is germane to the assignment. Such work shall be judged by ordinary academic standards, relevance, and other
legitimate pedagogical objectives.

While teaching about religious holidays is a permissible part of the educational program, celebrating religious
holidays is not allowed in the district. District-sponsored programs shall not be, nor have the effect of being,
religiously oriented or a religious celebration. School and classroom decorations may express seasonal themes that
are not religious in nature. The use of religious symbols that are part of a religious holiday is permitted as a teaching
aid or resource provided that such symbols are displayed as an example of cultural and religious heritage of the
holiday and temporary in nature.

Classroom methods in instruction about religion shall not include religious role-playing activities or simulated
religious devotional acts.

Music, art, literature or drama programs having religious themes are permitted as part of the curriculum for district-
sponsored activities and programs if presented in an objective manner and as a traditional part of cultural and
religious heritage.

District schools shall not prohibit religious activities if the same or similar non-religious activities are permitted.

When required by law, the district shall notify parents/guardians that they may, via written request, opt their
students out of instruction on the basis of their religious beliefs as specified in the accompanying administrative
regulation. Students whose parents/guardians opt them out of such instruction may be offered an alternative activity
of similar educational value. Additionally, a student shall not be subject to disciplinary action, academic penalty, or
other sanction on the grounds that the student was opted out of such instruction.

Policy Reference Disclaimer:These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter
of the policy.



State

Ed. Code 38130-38139
Ed. Code 46014

Ed. Code 51240

Ed. Code 51511

Ed. Code 51930-51939

Federal

20 USC 4071-4074
20 USC 6061

20 USC 7904

Management Resources
California Department of Education Publication
Court Decision

Court Decision
Court Decision

Court Decision
Court Decision
Court Decision

Court Decision
U.S. Department of Education Publication

Website
Website
Website
Website

Cross References
0410
0450
0450
1325
1330
1330
5113
5113
5121
5121
5127
5132
5132

Description

Civic C :

Absences for religious purposes

E ‘ . . ligi belief
Religi v incl i ‘
California Healthy Youth 2

Description
Equal Access Act
School prayer
School prayer

Description

: lix F hi ial sci ‘ K for Californi I I
Mahmoud v. Taylor (2025) 606 U.S. ____ (2025 WL 1773627)

Florey v. Sioux Falls (1980) 619 F.2d 1311

Description

Nondiscrimination In District P And Activiti
Comprehensive Safety Plan
Comprehensive Safety Plan



Cross References
5141.31
5141.31
5145.2
5145.2
6111
6115
6115
6142.8
6142.8
6142.93
6142.94
6143
6143
6144
6145.5
6145.5
6145.8
6154
6161.11
6176

Description

| L

Immunizations
Freedom Of Speech/Expression
Freedom Of Speech/Expression
School Calendar
Ceremonies And Observances

Ceremonies And Observances



CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

Regulation 6141.2: Recognition Of Religious Beliefs And Customs Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 05/01/1985 | Last Revised Date: 08/01/2025 | Last Reviewed Date: 08/01/2025

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure the following for the recognition of religious beliefs and customs in
district schools:

1. The approach to religion is academic and not devotional
2. The goal is for student awareness of religion in historical and contemporary societies
3. The students may not be pressed to accept any one religion

4. The school may include the study of religion as part of the history-social science curriculum, but the practice of
religions may not be sponsored

5. The students may be exposed to and educated about a diversity of religious views and beliefs, but a particular
view or belief may not be imposed, nor may any one religion be promoted or denigrated

Staff shall make every effort to schedule one-time events, such as examinations, district-sponsored trips, special
laboratories, picture-taking days, and class parties, to minimize conflicts with major religious holidays of all faiths
such that no one faith is disproportionately impacted.

Programs and Exhibits

When district programs and exhibits are in any way related to instruction about religion or religious holidays, the
following guidelines shall be observed:

1. The principal or designee shall ensure that district-sponsored programs are presented in an objective manner,
consistent with the accompanying Board policy

2. The principal or designee shall be kept informed of the program's development

3. Program or exhibit planners shall take into consideration the diverse religious faiths represented in the
community, student body, and staff

Opt-Outs

When a parent/guardian submits a written request to opt the parent's/guardian's student out of instruction based on
religious beliefs, customs, or practices, the request shall include the following:

1. The specific instructional content of which the student should be opted out

2. The specific religious belief(s), custom(s), and/or practice(s) with which the specific instructional content
substantially interferes

3. How the specific instructional content substantially interferes with the specific religious belief(s), custom(s),
and/or practice(s), including any grade level or individual student characteristics relevant to the opt-out
request

As necessary, the Superintendent or designee may work with district legal counsel to evaluate each opt-out request
and determine whether it shall be granted.

Policy Reference Disclaimer:These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter
of the policy.

State Description

Ed. Code 38130-38139 Civic Center Act



State

Ed. Code 46014

Ed. Code 51240

Ed. Code 51511

Ed. Code 51930-51939

Federal

20 USC 4071-4074
20 USC 6061

20 USC 7904

Management Resources
California Department of Education Publication
Court Decision

Court Decision
Court Decision

Court Decision
Court Decision
Court Decision

Court Decision
U.S. Department of Education Publication

Website
Website
Website
Website

Cross References
0410
0450
0450
1325
1330
1330
5113
5113
5121
5121
5127
5132
5132
5141.31

Description

: ‘ ligi

Excuse from instru
Religi v incl i ¢
California Healthy Youth A

ion due to religious belief

Description
Equal Access Act
School prayer
School prayer

Description

: i E hi ial sci ‘  for Californi i |
Mahmoud v. Taylor (2025) 606 U.S. (2025 WL 1773627)

Florey v. Sioux Falls (1980) 619 F.2d 1311
Fell in of Christian Athl San Jose Unified School District Board of

Description

londiscrimination In District P And Activiti
Comprehensive Safety Plan
Comprehensive Safety Plan



Cross References
5141.31
5145.2
5145.2
6111
6115
6115
6142.8
6142.8
6142.93
6142.94
6143
6143
6144
6145.5
6145.5
6145.8
6154
6161.11
6176

Description

Immunizations

Fr m Of h/Expression
Freedom Of Speech/Expression
School Calendar
Ceremonies And Observances
Ceremonies And Observances

Comprehensive Health Education



CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

Policy 6142.1: Sexual Health And HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 07/01/2008 | Last Revised Date: 08/01/2025 | Last Reviewed Date: 08/01/2025

The Governing Board desires to provide a well-planned, integrated sequence of medically accurate and inclusive
instruction in comprehensive sexual health and human immunodeficiency virus (HIV) prevention.

The district shall respect the rights of parents/guardians to supervise their students' education on these subjects and
to impart values to their children regarding human sexuality.

As specified in the accompanying administrative regulation, the district shall strive to provide students with the
knowledge and skills necessary to protect them from risks presented by sexually transmitted infections, unintended
pregnancy, sexual harassment, sexual assault, sexual abuse, and human trafficking; to have healthy, positive, and safe
relationships and behaviors; to understand sexuality as a normal part of human development; and to develop healthy
attitudes and behaviors concerning adolescent growth and development, body image, gender, gender identity,
gender expression, sexual orientation, relationships, marriage, and family. (Education Code 51930-51939)

Each student in grades 7-12 shall receive comprehensive sexual health and HIV prevention education at least once in
junior high or middle school and at least once in high school unless the student's parent(s)/guardian(s) opt the student
out of such instruction as specified in "Parent/Guardian Notification and Opt-Out" in the accompanying
administrative regulation. (Education Code 51934)

General Criteria for Instruction and Materials

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the district's comprehensive sexual health and HIV prevention
education and the associated materials: (Education Code 51930, 51933)

1. Are age appropriate

2. Are medically accurate and objective

3. Are aligned with and support the following purposes:

a.

To provide students with the knowledge and skills necessary to protect their sexual and reproductive
health from HIV and other sexually transmitted infections and from unintended pregnancy

To provide students with the knowledge and skills they need to develop healthy attitudes concerning
adolescent growth and development, body image, gender, sexual orientation, relationships, marriage, and
family

To promote understanding of sexuality as a normal part of human development

To ensure students receive integrated, comprehensive, accurate, and unbiased sexual health and HIV
prevention education and provide educators with clear tools and guidance to accomplish that end

. To provide students with the knowledge and skills necessary to have healthy, positive, and safe

relationships and behaviors

4. Are appropriate for use with English learners, students with disabilities, and students of all races, genders,
sexual orientations, and ethnic and cultural backgrounds

5. Are available on an equal basis to a student who is an English learner, consistent with the existing curriculum
and alternative options for an English learner as otherwise provided in the Education Code

6. Are accessible to students with disabilities, including, but not limited to, the provision of a modified curriculum,
materials, and instruction in alternative formats and auxiliary aids

7. Do not reflect or promote bias against any person in protected categories of discrimination pursuant to
Education Code 220



8. Affirmatively recognize that people have different sexual orientations and, when discussing or providing
examples of relationships and couples, shall be inclusive of same-sex relationships

9. Teach students about gender, gender expression, and gender identity, and explore the harm of negative gender
stereotypes

10. Encourage students to communicate with their parents/guardians and other trusted adults about human
sexuality and provide the knowledge and skills necessary to do so

11. Teach the value of and prepare students to have and maintain committed relationships such as marriage

12. Provide students with the knowledge and skills they need to form healthy relationships that are based on
mutual respect and affection and are free from violence, coercion, harassment, and intimidation

13. Provide students with the knowledge and skills for making and implementing healthy decisions about sexuality,
including communication and refusal skills to assist students in overcoming peer pressure and using effective
decision-making skills to avoid high-risk activities

14. Do not teach or promote religious doctrine

Additionally, the district's comprehensive sexual health education program shall include information on the
affirmative consent standard. Affirmative consent is defined as affirmative, conscious, and voluntary agreement to
engage in sexual activity. Teachers delivering such instruction shall consult information related to sexual harassment
and violence in the state health curriculum framework. (Education Code 51225.36, 67386)

The Superintendent or designee shall identify appropriate methods for informing parents/guardians about subjects
related to the district's comprehensive sexual health and HIV prevention education. The Superintendent or designee
shall use such identified methods to inform parents/guardians of students in grades 6-12 about human trafficking
prevention resources, as required pursuant to Education Code 49381.

Parent/Guardian Notification and Opt-Out

At the beginning of each school year or at the time of a student's enrollment, parents/guardians shall be notified, in
the manner specified in the accompanying administrative regulation, that they may request in writing to opt their
students out of participating in comprehensive sexual health and HIV prevention education. Students so excused
shall be given an alternative educational activity. Additionally, a student shall not be subject to disciplinary action,
academic penalty, or other sanction if the student's parent/guardian opts the student out of such instruction.
(Education Code 51240, 51938, 51939)

Policy Reference Disclaimer:These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter
of the policy.

State Description

Ed. Code 220 Prohibition of discrimination

Ed. Code 231.7 Resources on abuse and teen dating violence; local and national hotlines
Ed. Code 232.7 Model policy and resources; body shaming

Ed. Code 33544 nclusion of sexual harassment and violence in health curri m framework
Ed. Code 33546.2 Health framework; sextortion

Ed. Code 48980 Paren rdian notification

Ed. Code 49381 Human trafficking prevention resources

Ed. Code 51202 Instruction in personal and public health and safety



State Description

Ed. Code 51210.8 Health education curriculum
Ed. Code 51225.36 Instr tion in sexu h.r ment and violen istricts that require health
Ed. Code 51240 Excuse from instruction due to religious beliefs

Ed. Code 51513

Ed. Code 51930-51939 California Healthy Youth Act
Ed. Code 51950
Ed. Code 67386

H&S Code 1255.7 Parents surrendering physical custody of a baby
Pen. Code 243.4 Sexual battery
Pen. Code 261.5 Unlawful sexual intercourse
Pen. Code 271.5 Parents voluntarily surrendering custody of a baby
Federal Description
20 USC 1232h Privacy rights
20 USC 7906 Sex education requirements and prohibited use of funds
California Department of Education Publication  Body Shaming Model Policy & Resources
Health E ion Framework for California Publi h : Kindergarten

California Department of Education Publication G 12 May 2019

Management Resources Description

California Department of Education Publication Kind T G Twelve. 2008

Court Decision Mahmoud v. Taylor (2025) 606 U.S. ____ (2025 WL 1773627)
Human Rights Campaign Foundation Publication California LGBTQ Youth Report, January 2019

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services
Website Human Rights Campaign

Website U.S. Food and Drug Administration

Website California Partnership to End Domestic Violence

Website California Safe Schools Coalition

Website Mmmmmmmm
Website California Department of Public Health

Website California Healthy Kids Resource Center

Website Centers for Disease Control and Prevention

Website CSBA

Cross References Description

0410 Nondiscrimination In District P And Activiti
1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures



Cross References
1312.3-E(1)
1312.3-E(2)
4131

5022

5022

5030
5141.22
5141.22
5141.25
5145.3
5145.3
5145.6
5145.6-E(1)
5145.7
5145.7
5146

6141

6141
6142.8
6142.8
6142.93
6143

6143

6144
6145.8
6146.1
6159

6159
6161.11
6174

6174

Description

Uniform Complaint Procedures
Uniform Complaint Procedur
Staff Development

Student Wellness

Infectious Diseases

Infecti Di

Availability Of C
londiscrimination/t
Nondiscrimination/!

11



CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

Regulation 6142.1: Sexual Health And HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 07/01/2008 | Last Revised Date: 08/01/2025 | Last Reviewed Date: 08/01/2025

Definitions

Comprehensive sexual health education means education regarding human development and sexuality, including
education on menstrual health, pregnancy, contraception, and sexually transmitted infections. (Education Code
51931)

HIV prevention education means instruction on the nature of human immunodeficiency virus (HIV) and acquired
immune deficiency syndrome (AIDS), methods of transmission, strategies to reduce the risk of HIV infection, and
social and public health issues related to HIV and AIDS. (Education Code 51931)

Age appropriate refers to topics, messages, and teaching methods suitable to particular ages or age groups of children
and adolescents, based on developing cognitive, emotional, and behavioral capacity typical for the age or age group.
(Education Code 51931)

Medically accurate means verified or supported by research conducted in compliance with scientific methods and
published in peer-reviewed journals, where appropriate, and recognized as accurate and objective by professional
organizations and agencies with expertise in the relevant field, such as the federal Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention, the American Public Health Association, the American Academy of Pediatrics, and the American College
of Obstetricians and Gynecologists. (Education Code 51931)

Components of Sexual Health and HIV Prevention Education

In addition to complying with the criteria listed in "General Criteria for Instruction and Materials" in the
accompanying Board policy, the district's comprehensive sexual health and HIV prevention education for students in
grades 7-12 shall include all of the following: (Education Code 51934)

1. Information on the nature of HIV and other sexually transmitted infections and their effects on the human
body

2. Information on the manner in which HIV and other sexually transmitted infections are and are not transmitted,
including information on the relative risk of infection according to specific behaviors, including sexual
behaviors and injection drug use

3. Information that abstinence from sexual activity and injection drug use is the only certain way to prevent HIV
and other sexually transmitted infections, and that abstinence from sexual intercourse is the only certain way
to prevent unintended pregnancy

The instruction shall provide information about the value of delaying sexual activity while also providing
medically accurate information on other methods of preventing HIV and other sexually transmitted infections
and pregnancy.

4. Information about the effectiveness and safety of all federal Food and Drug Administration (FDA) approved
methods that prevent or reduce the risk of contracting HIV and other sexually transmitted infections, including
use of antiretroviral medication, consistent with the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention

5. Information about the effectiveness and safety of reducing the risk of HIV transmission as a result of injection
drug use by decreasing needle use and needle sharing

6. Information about the treatment of HIV and other sexually transmitted infections, including how antiretroviral
therapy can dramatically prolong the lives of many people living with HIV and reduce the likelihood of
transmitting HIV to others

7. Discussion about social views on HIV and AIDS, including addressing unfounded stereotypes and myths
regarding HIV and AIDS and people living with HIV

12



This instruction shall emphasize that successfully treated HIV-positive individuals have a normal life
expectancy, all people are at some risk of contracting HIV, and testing is the only way to know if one is HIV-
positive.

8. Information about local resources, how to access local resources, and students' legal rights to access local
resources for sexual and reproductive health care such as testing and medical care for HIV and other sexually
transmitted infections and pregnancy prevention and care, as well as local resources for assistance with sexual
assault and intimate partner violence

9. Information about the effectiveness and safety of FDA-approved contraceptive methods in preventing
pregnancy, including, but not limited to, emergency contraception

Instruction on pregnancy shall include an objective discussion of all legally available pregnancy outcomes,
including, but not limited to:

a. Parenting, adoption, and abortion

b. Information on the law on surrendering physical custody of a minor child 72 hours of age or younger,
pursuant to Health and Safety Code 1255.7 and Penal Code 271.5

c. The importance of prenatal care
10. Information about sexual harassment, sexual assault, sexual abuse, and human trafficking, including:

a. Information on the prevalence and nature of human trafficking, strategies to reduce the risk of human
trafficking, techniques to set healthy boundaries, and how to safely seek assistance if there is a suspicion
of trafficking

b. Information on how social media and mobile device applications are used for human trafficking

11. Information about adolescent relationship abuse and intimate partner violence, including the early warning
signs of each, and the resources available to students related to adolescent relationship abuse and intimate
partner violence, including the National Domestic Violence Hotline and local domestic violence hotlines that
provide confidential support services for students that have experienced domestic violence or stalking

The district's comprehensive sexual health and HIV prevention education shall include instruction regarding the
potential risks and consequences of creating and sharing suggestive or sexually explicit materials through cell
phones, social networking websites, computer networks, or other digital media. (Education Code 51934)

Professional Development

The district's comprehensive sexual health and HIV prevention education shall be provided by instructors trained in
the appropriate courses who are knowledgeable of the most recent medically accurate research on human sexuality,
healthy relationships, pregnancy, and HIV and other sexually transmitted infections. (Education Code 51931, 51934)

The Superintendent or designee shall cooperatively plan and conduct in-service training for all district personnel who
provide HIV prevention education, through regional planning, joint powers agreements, or contract services.
(Education Code 51935)

In developing and providing in-service training, the Superintendent or designee shall cooperate and collaborate with
the teachers who provide HIV prevention education and with the California Department of Education (CDE).
(Education Code 51935)

The district shall periodically conduct in-service training to enable district personnel to learn new developments in
the scientific understanding of HIV. In-service training shall be voluntary for personnel who have demonstrated
expertise or received in-service training from CDE or the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. (Education
Code 51935)

The Superintendent or designee may expand HIV in-service training to cover the topic of comprehensive sexual
health education in order for district personnel teaching comprehensive sexual health education to learn new
developments in the scientific understanding of sexual health. (Education Code 51935)

13



The Superintendent or designee shall periodically provide continuing education that enables district personnel to
learn about new developments in the understanding of abuse, including sexual abuse, and human trafficking, and
current prevention efforts and methods. Such education may include early identification of abuse, including sexual
abuse, and human trafficking of students and minors. (Education Code 51950)

Use of Consultants or Guest Speakers

The Superintendent or designee may contract with outside consultants or guest speakers, including those who have
developed multilingual curricula or curricula accessible to persons with disabilities, to deliver comprehensive sexual
health and HIV prevention education or to provide training for district personnel. All outside consultants and guest
speakers shall have expertise in comprehensive sexual health and HIV prevention education and knowledge of the
most recent medically accurate research on the relevant topic(s) covered in the instruction. The Superintendent or
designee shall ensure that any instruction provided by an outside speaker or consultant complies with Board policy,
administrative regulation, and Education Code 51930-51939. (Education Code 51933, 51934, 51936)

Parent/Guardian Notification and Opt-Out

At the beginning of each school year or at the time of a student's enrollment, the Superintendent or designee shall
notify parents/guardians about comprehensive sexual health and HIV prevention education, as well as research on
student health behaviors and risks, planned for the coming year. The notice shall advise parents/guardians:
(Education Code 48980, 51938)

1. That written and audiovisual educational materials to be used in comprehensive sexual health and HIV
prevention education are available for inspection

2. That parents/guardians have a right to opt their students out of comprehensive sexual health or HIV
prevention education, or research on student health behaviors and risks, provided they submit their request in
writing to the district

3. That parents/guardians have a right to request a copy of Education Code 51930-51939

4. Whether the comprehensive sexual health or HIV prevention education will be taught by district personnel or
outside consultants and, if the district chooses to use outside consultants or guest speakers for this purpose,
the following information:

a. The date of the instruction
b. The name of the organization or affiliation of each guest speaker

c. Information stating the right of the parent/guardian to request a copy of Education Code 51933, 51934,
and 51938

If the arrangements for instruction by outside consultants or guest speakers are made after the beginning of the
school year, the Superintendent or designee shall notify parents/guardians by mail or another commonly used
method of notification no fewer than 14 days before the instruction is given.

Except as required by law, the requirements of Education Code 51930-51939 pertaining to instructional content,
teacher training, and parent/guardian notification and opt-out shall not apply to the following: (Education Code
51932)

1. A description or illustration of human reproductive organs that may appear in a textbook, adopted pursuant to
law, if the textbook does not include other elements of comprehensive sexual health or HIV prevention
education as defined in Education Code 51931

2. Instruction, materials, presentations, or programming that discusses gender, gender identity, gender
expression, sexual orientation, discrimination, harassment, bullying, intimidation, relationships, or family and
does not discuss human reproductive organs and their functions

14



Policy Reference Disclaimer:These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter

of the policy.

State

Ed. Code 220

Ed. Code 231.7
Ed. Code 232.7
Ed. Code 33544
Ed. Code 33546.2
Ed. Code 48980
Ed. Code 49381
Ed. Code 51202
Ed. Code 51210.8

Ed. Code 51225.36
Ed. Code 51240
Ed. Code 51513

Ed. Code 51930-51939
Ed. Code 51950

Ed. Code 67386

H&S Code 1255.7

Pen. Code 243.4

Pen. Code 261.5

Pen. Code 271.5

Federal
20 USC 1232h
20 USC 7906

California Department of Education Publication

California Department of Education Publication

Management Resources

California Department of Education Publication
Court Decision

CSBA Publication

Human Rights Campaign Foundation Publication
Website
Website
Website
Website
Website

Description
Prohibiti f discriminati

Resources on abuse and teen dating violence; local and national hotlines

Model policy and resources; body shaming

Description

Description

Health Education C Standards for California Public S ls:
Kindergarten Through Grade Twelve, 2008
Mahmoud v. Taylor (2025) 606 U.S. ____ (2025 WL 1773627)

MMMM@MMM iderations. G Briof. / 2014

California LGBTQ Youth R ! 2019

15



Management Resources

Website

Website
Website
Website
Website

Cross References
0410
1312.3
1312.3
1312.3-E(1)
1312.3-E(2)
4131

5022

5022

5030
5141.22
5141.22
5141.25
5145.3
5145.3
5145.6
5145.6-E(1)
5145.7
5145.7
5146

6141

6141
6142.8
6142.8
6142.93
6143

6143

6144
6145.8
6146.1
6159

6159
6161.11
6174

Description

California O f Education. Sex E . | HIV/AIDS/STC

Instruction

California D f Public Healtt
California Heal Kids R c

. for Di . | and P .
CSBA

Description

Nondiscrimination In District P And Activiti
Unif c laint P |

Unif. c laint P |

Student Wellness

Infecti Di

Infecti Di

Availability Of Condoms
londiscrimination/!
Nondiscrimination/Harassmen
P 5 ian Notificati

p c ian Notificati
Sexual Harassment

16



Cross References

6174

Description

Education For English Learners

17



CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

Policy 6142.8: Comprehensive Health Education Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 11/01/2003 | Last Revised Date: 08/01/2025 | Last Reviewed Date: 08/01/2025

The Governing Board believes that health education should foster the knowledge, skills, and attitudes that students
need in order to lead healthy lives and avoid high-risk behaviors, and that creating a safe, supportive, inclusive, and
nonjudgmental environment is crucial to promoting healthy development for all students. The district's health
education program shall be part of a coordinated approach to student health which recognizes that mental health
and social connection are critical to overall health, well-being, and academic success; supports the physical, mental,
and social well-being of students; reflects the importance of digital and media literacy; and is linked to district and
community services and resources.

Goals for the district's health education program shall be designed to promote student wellness and shall include, but
not be limited to, goals for nutrition promotion and education, physical activity, and other district-based activities
that promote student well-being.

Any health education course offered to middle or high school students shall include instruction in mental health that
meets the requirements of Education Code 51925-51926, and as specified in Administrative Regulation 6143 -
Courses of Study.

The district shall provide a planned, sequential, research-based, and developmentally appropriate health education
curriculum for students in grades kindergarten-12 that is aligned with the state's content standards and curriculum
framework and integrated with other content areas of the district's curriculum. The Superintendent or designee shall
determine the grade levels and subject areas in which health-related topics will be addressed, in accordance with
law, Board policy, and administrative regulation.

As appropriate, the Superintendent or designee shall involve school administrators, teachers, school nurses, health
professionals representing various fields of health care, parents/guardians, community-based organizations, and
other community members in the development, implementation, and evaluation of the district's health education
program. Health and safety professionals may be invited to provide related instruction in the classroom, school
assemblies, and other instructional settings.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide professional development as needed to ensure that health education
teachers are knowledgeable about academic content standards, the state curriculum framework, and effective
instructional methodologies.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide periodic reports to the Board regarding the implementation and
effectiveness of the district's health education program, which may include, but not be limited to, a description of the
district's program and the extent to which it is aligned with the state's content standards and curriculum framework,
the amount of time allotted for health instruction at each grade level, student achievement of district standards for
health education, and the manner in which the district's health education program supports the physical, mental, and
social well-being of students.

Parent/Guardian Notification and Opt-Out

Parents/guardians shall be notified that they may request in writing to opt their students out of participating in
instruction and assessments, including anonymous and confidential tests, questionnaires, and surveys, as specified in
the accompanying administrative regulation. Students so excused shall be given an alternative educational activity.
Additionally, a student shall not be subject to disciplinary action, academic penalty, or other sanction if the student's
parent/guardian opts the student out of such instruction. (Education Code 51240, 51900.6, 51938, 51939)

Policy Reference Disclaimer:These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter
of the policy.

18



State

5CCR 11800-11801
Ed. Code 35183.5

Ed. Code 49413

Ed. Code 49430-49434
Ed. Code 49490-49494
Ed. Code 49500-49505
Ed. Code 51202

Ed. Code 51203

Ed. Code 51210

Ed. Code 51210.8

Ed. Code 51220.5

Ed. Code 51225.36
Ed. Code 51225.38
Ed. Code 51225.6

Ed. Code 51240

Ed. Code 51260-51269
Ed. Code 51513

Ed. Code 51880-51881.5

Ed. Code 51890-51891

Ed. Code 51900.6

Ed. Code 51913

Ed. Code 51920

Ed. Code 51925-51929
Ed. Code 51930-51939
Ed. Code 67386

Ed. Code 8850.5

Federal

42 USC 1751-1769j
42 USC 1758b

42 USC 1771-1793

Management Resources

California Department of Education Publication

California Department of Education Publication

Court Decision
CSBA Publication
CSBA Publication

Description

Distri lth ed . |
Sun protection
i id liopul L -

School breakfast and lunch programs
School meals

Instruction in personal and public health and safety

| ion f uati
Instruction in the dangers associated with fentanyl use

I ion in cardiopul )
wwmmgw.fl.

E from i . ligious belief

Description

School Lunch Program
Local wellness policy
Child Nutrition A

Description

Health Ed ion E for California Public S ls: Kind
Through Grade Twelve, 2019

Health Education C Standards for California Public S ls:
Kindergarten Through Grade Twelve, 2008
(2025 WL 1773627)

Mahmoud v. Taylor (2025) 606 U.S.

19



Management Resources

CSBA Publication

CSBA Publication

CSBA Publication

CSBA Publication
CSBA Publication

CSBA Publication

CSBA Publication

CSBA Publication

CSBA Publication
Human Rights Campaign Foundation Publication
Society of Health & Physical Educators Publication

US Department of Health and Human Services
Pub.

US Dept of Health and Human Services
Publication
Website
Website
Website
Website
Website
Website
Website
Website
Website
Website
Website
Website
Website
Website
Website

Cross References
0200
0415
0450
0450

Description
P ing C hic Health 11 . Brief. July 2018

The Impact of Marijuana Legalization on K-12: The Effect of Marijuana on
the Brain, November 2018

Why Schools Hold the Promise for Adolescent Mental Health, Governance
Brief, May 2019

Sun Safety in Schools, Policy Brief, July 2006

Promoting Oral Health for California's Students: New R New
. ities for Schools. Policy Brief. N 2008
Consid o 5’ Brief. A 2014 ’

American Sch H h A iation

Description

Goals For The School Distri
Equity
Comprehensive Safety Plan

20



Cross References Description

0500 Accountability

1220 Citizen Advisory Committees

1220 Citizen Advisory Committees

1240 Volunteer Assistance

1240 Volunteer Assistance

1325 Advertising And Promotion

1400 Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies And The Schools
1700 Relations Between Private Industry And The Schools
3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3513.4 Drug And Alcohol Free Schools

3514 Environmental Safety

3514 Environmental Safety

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan
3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan
3543 Transportation Safety And Emergencies
3550 Food Service/Child Nutrition Program

3550 Food Service/Child Nutrition Program

3554 Other Food Sales

3554 Other Food Sales

4131 Staff Development

5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5022 Student And Family Privacy Rights

5022 Student And Family Privacy Rights

5030 Student Wellness

5131 Conduct

5131.2 Bullying

5131.2 Bullying

5131.6 Alcohol And Other Drugs

5131.6 Alcohol And Other Drugs

5131.62 Tobacco

5131.62 Tobacco

5131.63 Steroids

5131.63 Steroids

5137 Positive School Climate

5138 Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation

5141 Health Care And Emergencies

5141 Health Care And Emergencies

5141.21 Administerineg Medication And Monitoring Health Conditi



Cross References
5141.21
5141.22
5141.22
5141.23
5141.23
5141.3
5141.3
5141.31
5141.31
5141.32
5141.4
51414
5141.5
5141.52
5141.52
5141.6
5141.6
5141.7
5142
5142
5142.2
5142.2
5145.3
5145.3
5145.6
5145.6-E(1)
5145.7
5145.7
5145.9
5146
6011
6020
6020
6141
6141
6141.2
6141.2
6142.1
6142.1
6142.5

Description

Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditi

Infectious Diseases
Infecti Di
Asthma Management
Asthma Management
Health Examinations
Health Examinations
I .

I o

22



Cross References
6142.7
6142.7
6143

6143

6144
6145.2
6145.2
6145.8
6146.1
6161.1
6161.1
6161.1-E(1)
6162.8
6162.8
6163.4
6163.4-E(1)
6164.2
6172

6172

6190

Description

Physical Ed ion And Activi

Physical Education And Activi

Courses Of Study

Courses Of Study

Controversial Issues

Athletic Competition
Assemblies And Special Events

Selection And Evaluation Of | ional Material

23



CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console

Regulation 6142.8: Comprehensive Health Education Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 11/01/2003 | Last Revised Date: 08/01/2025 | Last Reviewed Date: 08/01/2025

Content of Instruction

The district's health education program shall include instruction at the appropriate grade levels in the following
content areas:

Alcohol, tobacco, and other drugs

Human growth, development, and sexual health

Injury prevention and safety

Instruction related to injury prevention and safety may include, but is not limited to, first aid, protective
equipment such as helmets, violence prevention, topics related to bullying and harassment, emergency
procedures, and Internet safety.

Mental, emotional, and social health

Health education courses offered to middle and/or high school students shall include mental health instruction
that meets the requirements of Education Code 51925-51927, as specified in Administrative Regulation 6143
- Courses of Study.

Nutrition and physical activity

. Personal and community health

Instruction in personal and community health may include, but is not limited to, oral health, personal hygiene,
sun safety, vision and hearing protection, transmission of germs and communicable diseases, symptoms of
common health problems and chronic diseases, and the effect of behavior on the environment.

Within each of the above content areas, instruction shall be designed to assist students in developing:

1.

2.

5.

6.

An understanding of essential concepts related to enhancing health
The ability to analyze internal and external influences that affect health
The ability to access and analyze health information, products, and services

The ability to use interpersonal communication skills, decision-making skills, and goal-setting skills to enhance
health

The ability to practice behaviors that reduce risk and promote health

The ability to promote and support personal, family, and community health

High School Health Education

Whenever the Governing Board requires a course in health education for graduation from high school, the district's
high school health education course(s) shall include instruction in:

1.

Sexual harassment and violence, including, but not limited to, the affirmative consent standard as defined in
Education Code 67386 (Education Code 51225.36)

When delivering such instruction, teachers shall consult information related to sexual harassment and violence
in the Health Education Framework for California Public Schools. (Education Code 51225.36)

24



2. Compression-only cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR), which is based on national evidence-based emergency
cardiovascular care guidelines for the performance of compression-only CPR and includes instruction relative
to the psychomotor skills necessary to perform compression-only CPR (Education Code 51225.6)

3. Starting with the 2026-27 school year, the dangers associated with fentanyl use (Education Code 51225.38)

Parent/Guardian Notification and Opt-Out

At the beginning of each school year or at the time of a student's enrollment, parents/guardians shall be notified that
they may request in writing to opt their students out of participating in the following:

1. Anonymous, voluntary, and confidential tests, questionnaires, and surveys containing age-appropriate
questions about students' attitudes concerning or practices relating to sex (Education Code 51938, 51939)

2. Any instruction in health that conflicts with the student's religious training and beliefs, including personal moral
convictions (Education Code 51240)

3. Any instruction in sexual abuse and/or sexual assault awareness and prevention (Education Code 51900.6

4. Any instruction in comprehensive sexual health and human immunodeficiency virus (HIV) prevention
(Education Code 51938, 51939)

5. Any other instruction as permitted by law

Additionally, the district shall not administer any exam, survey, or questionnaire that contains questions about the
student's or the student's family's personal beliefs or practices in sex, family life, morality, or religion unless the
student's parent/guardian has given written permission. (Education Code 51513)

Involvement of Health Professionals

Health care professionals, health care service plans, health care providers, and other entities participating in a
voluntary initiative with the district are prohibited from communicating about a product or service in a way that is
intended to encourage persons to purchase or use the product or service. However, the following activities may be
allowed: (Education Code 51890)

1. Health care or health education information provided in a brochure or pamphlet that contains the logo or name
of a health care service plan or health care organization, if provided in coordination with the voluntary initiative

2. Outreach, application assistance, and enrollment activities relating to federal, state, or county-sponsored
health care insurance programs if the activities are conducted in compliance with the statutory, regulatory, and
programmatic guidelines applicable to those programs

Policy Reference Disclaimer:These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter
of the policy.

State Description

5 CCR 11800-11801 District health education plan

Ed. Code 35183.5 Sun protection

Ed. Code 49413 First aid and cardiopulmonary resuscitation training
Ed. Code 49430-49434 Pupil Nutrition, Health, and Achievement Act of 2001
Ed. Code 49490-49494 School breakfast and lunch programs

Ed. Code 49500-49505 School meals

Ed. Code 51202 nstruction in personal an ic health and saf

Ed. Code 51203 Instruction on alcohol, narcotics and dangerous drugs

25



State

Ed.
Ed.
Ed.

Ed.

Ed.

Ed.

Ed.
Ed.
Ed.
Ed.

Ed.

Ed.
Ed.
Ed.
Ed.
Ed.
Ed.
Ed.

Code 51210
Code 51210.8
Code 51220.5

Code 51225.36

Code 51225.38

Code 51225.6

Code 51240

Code 51260-51269
Code 51513

Code 51880-51881.5

Code 51890-51891

Code 51900.6
Code 51913

Code 51920

Code 51925-51929
Code 51930-51939
Code 67386

Code 8850.5

Federal

42 USC 1751-1769j
42 USC 1758b

42 USC 1771-1793

Management Resources

California Department of Education Publication

California Department of Education Publication

Court Decision

CSBA Publication
CSBA Publication
CSBA Publication

CSBA Publication

CSBA Publication

CSBA Publication
CSBA Publication

CSBA Publication

Description

Course of study for grades 1-6
Health education
P . ils: i .

mmxmmmmmw.fl.

Instruction in the dangers associated with fentanyl use

rriculum

mmmmwmmmmmw.fl.

Description
School Lunch Program
Local wellness policy
Child Nutrition A

Description

Mahmoud v. Taylor (2025) 606 U.S. (2025 WL 1773627)

26



Management Resources Description

CSBA Publication

CSBA Publication

CSBA Publication Considerations, Governance Brief, August 2014

Human Rights Campaign Foundation Publication California LGBTQ Youth Report, January 2019

Society of Health & Physical Educators Publication

US Department of Health and Human Services
Pub.

Our Epidemic of Loneliness and Isolation: The U.S. Surgeon General’s
Advi Health Eff £ Social C - c .

US Dept of Health and Human Services

Publication 2023

Website SHAPE America, Society of Health and Physical Educators
Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services
Website Human Rights Campaign Foundation

Website U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

Website American School Health Association

Website California Association of School Health Educators

Website California Department of Education, Health Education
Website California Subject Matter Project, Physical Education-Health Project
Website Center for Injury Prevention Policy and Practice

Website National Center for Health Education

Website National Hearing Conservation Association

Website Centers for Disease Control and Prevention

Website CSBA

Website California Department of Public Health

Website California Healthy Kids Resource Center

Cross References Description

0200 Goals For The School District

0415 Equity

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan

0500 Accountability

1220 Citizen Advisory Committees

1220 Citizen Advisory Committees

1240 Volunteer Assistance

1240 Volunteer Assistance

1325 Advertising And Promotion

1400 Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies And The Schools

1700 Relations Between Private Industry And The Schools



Cross References
3513.3
3513.3
3513.4
3514
3514
3516
3516
3543
3550
3550
3554
3554
4131
5020
5020
5022
5022
5030
5131
5131.2
5131.2
5131.6
5131.6
5131.62
5131.62
5131.63
5131.63
5137
5138
5141
5141
5141.21
5141.21
5141.22
5141.22
5141.23
5141.23
5141.3
5141.3
5141.31

Description

Tobacco-Free Schools

T -Fr h

Drug And Alcohol Free Schools
Environmental Safety

Environmental Safety
Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan
Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan
T ion Saf And E .

E Service/Child Nutrition P

28



Cross References
5141.31
5141.32
51414
5141.4
5141.5
5141.52
5141.52
5141.6
5141.6
5141.7
5142
5142
5142.2
5142.2
5145.3
5145.3
5145.6
5145.6-E(1)
5145.7
5145.7
5145.9
5146
6011
6020
6020
6141
6141
6141.2
6141.2
6142.1
6142.1
6142.5
6142.7
6142.7
6143
6143
6144
6145.2
6145.2
6145.8

Description

| L

Health Screening For School Entr
Child Al P ion And R .

Child Al P ion And R .
Mental Health

Suicide P .
Suicide Prevention

School Health Services
School Health Services

29



Cross References
6146.1
6161.1
6161.1
6161.1-E(1)
6162.8
6162.8
6163.4
6163.4-E(1)
6164.2
6172

6172

6190

Description

Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials
Research

Research

Student Use Of Technology
Student Use Of Technology

Gifted And Talented Student Program

30



Dacumign Ervedaps 10; 132CC180-4303-4804-R4BT-EF ADSDOER2FD

CaviFornia DEPARTMENT ToNY THURMOND
STATE SUPERMWTEMDENT OF

oF Epucation PUBLIC INSTRUCTION

1430 M STreeT, SacraMenTo, CA 95814-5901 = 914-319-0800 * WWW.CDE.CA.GOV

May 22, 2025

Dear Select County and District Superintendents and Charter School Administrators:

Kindergarten Through Grade Twelve High Speed Network
Consortium Letter of Agency

Please accept this invitation for your school district to join other California school
districts and county offices of education (COEs) in the statewide consortium led by the
Corporation for Education Network Initiatives in California (CENIC). Annually, this
consortium pursues E-Rate discount funding for its connections to the California
Research and Education Metwork (CalREMN). E-Rate is a program of the Federal
Communications Commission administered by the Universal Service Administrative
Company Schoals and Libraries Division. E-Rate provides 20 to 90 percent discounts
on approved telecommunications, internet access, and internal connection cosis to
eligible kindergarten through grade twelve (K—12) public schools and libraries, The K-
12 participation in CalREN is managed by the K-12 High Speed Netwoark, with Imperial
COE serving as the lead agency.

The California Department of Education encourages your participation in the E-Rate
consortium. There is no fee to join the consortium, and your participation will directly
contribute to an increase in funding for the statewide network. Participation in the E-
Rate consortium, however, will not affect your district's ability to apply for and obtain
individual federal E-Rate dollars for your district. The benefit is to all school districts and
COEs through the statewide network.

School districts are encouraged to sign a five-year Letter of Agency (LOA) for the period
of July 1, 2026, to June 30, 2031, By axecuting the five-year agreement, you will ba
joining hundreds of districts and COEs that have already filed a multi-year LOA to be in
the consortium. A multi-year LOA is the norm for cther statewide networks and reduces
the annual administrative workload for the consertium and its member districts and
COEs.

To participate in this statewide program, please complete and return the LOA by
October 31, 2025. The LOA is available on the California K-12 High Speed Network
Letter of Agency web page at hitps:/fwww k12hsn.org/e-rate-support/letter-agency. You
will find information about the Statewide CENIC E-Rate Consortium on the California K-
12 High Speed Network Frequently Asked Questions web page at

https/fwww k12hsn. org/e-rate-supportietter-agency/fags.




Docusign Ervelope 100 1320C160-4393-4804-84BF-EF ADEDOERRFD

May 22, 2025
Page 2

If you have any questions regarding this subject, please contact the California K-12
High Speed Network by email at loa@k12hsn.org or by phone at (760) 312-6158.

S et

Tony Thurmeond
State Superintendent of Public Instruction

Sinceraly,



Dacusign Emlops 100 13200 160-4303-4804-B4B7-EF ADSDOEBIFD

Letter of Agency

Please complete and return this Letter of Agency (LOA) via DocuSign.

If preferred, you may:

Mail ter OR  Email to:

K-12 High Speead MNetwork LOAGE k1 2hsn.ong
oo kmpesial County Office of Education

1388 Sparpar Road

El Centro, CA 92243

From: El Tejon Unified
County: Kam

This Letter of Agency (LOA) is o confirm participation in the Corporation for Education Metwork Initiatives
in Califormia (CEMIC) E-rate Consortium as an eligible member entity for E-rate discounts in 2026-27,
2027-28, 2028-29, 2028-30, and 2030-31 E-rate application vears. | authworize CEMIC (E-rate Entity Mo,
2254985), under confract with the Imperial County Office of Education (ICOE), to act on my behalf in matiers
related io the federal E-rate discount program bo secure digcounis on eligible telecommunications sendces,

| authorize CEMIC, as the consortium lead, to have rights under the USAC's E-rate Productivity Genter
{EPC) or any future iterations of E-rate application processing to act on behalf of my enlity in activilies
related fo the consortium, including but nat limited fo filimg, submitting and certifying forms.

| understand that in submilting E-rate forms that include us in the consortium, CENIC s making cerifications
for our school system, By signing this LOA, | make the following certifications on behalf of our entity:

(a} | cedify that our agency, school destrict, school system, or school has complied with all E-rale
program rules, and | acknowledge that failure to do so may result in denial of discount funding
andfor cancellation of funding commitments, | acknowledge that failure o comply with program
rules could result in civil or criminal prosecuticn by the appropriate law enforcement authorities,

(b} | certify that | will retain the required documents for at least ten years after the last day of service is
delivered. | certify that | will retain all documentis necessary to comply with the statute and
Commisaion rubes regarding the application for, receipt of, and delivery of senices, If audited, | will
make such records available to the Administrator. | acknowledge that | may be audited acconding
to the rules of participation in the schools and libraries program.

(e} | cerdify that | am authorized to sign this Letter of Agency and, to the best of my knowledge,
information, and belief, all informalion provided to the CEMIC E-rate Consortium for E-rate
submission is true.

| understand that participating im the CEMIC E-rale consortium does not affect my entity’s ability to apply for
and receive E-rale discounts on eligible services recenved directly by my entity

| understand that persons willfully making false statements on the E-rate forms or throwgh this LOA can be
punished by fine or forfeiture under the Communications Acl, 47 U.S.C. §5 502, S03(b), or fine or
imprisonment under Title 18 of the Unifed States Code, 18 US.C.



Dwocusign Ervelape 1D 132CC160-4303-4804-0487-EF ADSDOERZFD

LEA INFORMATION

El Tejon Unified

Privdad Marme of Sehool Systam (Dislngt, DOE, ROG)

1531680000000

Sehool System's 14-tigit County-District-Schood Number (CDS Numbar)

12033284

Schoot District FOC Registration Number (FOC RN
143871

USACE-rate Biled Entily Number (BEN)

(BE1) 24B-8247

Phone numbar for Schoal Systarm

SIGNER INFORMATION

[
| Sara Haflite W1V2025
Signatura of authorzed persan Drate Sigred

Sara Hafich 8-10-25
Printed name (first last) of authorized person Title or position of suthonzed signer
__CONTACT INFORMATION

Prinfed name (frsf fast) of contac! parsan, & difirant from e sigmar

Phang number for conlact parson Emadl for confact person



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
State of: California

This Memorandum of Understanding (this “MOU") is made and entered into on the 8th of
September 2025, by and between: El Tejon Middle School and Perseverance Educational
Consulting,.

El Tejon Middle School ( “First Party”) and Perseverance Educational Consulting ("Second
Party™). Both are known collectively as the “Parties”.

Background:
The First Party and the Second Party desire to enter into an agreement in which they will work

together to achieve the various aims and objectives relating to trauma-informed support for
students at El Tejon Middle School.

The First and Second Parties desire to enter into an agreement between them, setting out the
working arrangements that each of the two agrees are necessary to complete the Project.

Burpose & Scope

1. The purpose of this MOU is to provide the framework, the scope of work, terms
and conditions, and responsibilities of the Parties associated with their work on the
Project, as attached with more detailed information for the Project that the Parties have
agreed upon, if applicable. The abligations of the Parties will end on June 15, 2027.
@ As further outlined below, both parties will collaborate on the following:
a. Supporting students who experience trauma and other difficulties in
adjusting to classroom and school decorum.,

The Parties Obligations
3 The Parties desire and wish that this document will not create any form or
manner of a formal agreement, but rather an agreement between the Parties to work
together in such a manner that would promote a genuine atmosphere of collaboration in
support of an effective and efficient partnership and leadership meant to maintain,
safeguard, and sustain sound and optimal financial, managerial, and administrative
eommitment with regards to all matters related to the Project.

Responsibilities

1 The First Party shall undertake the following activities under this MOLU:
Provide a location for the second party to meet with and support students.
Provide needed information about students requiring support. Provide
compensation for services rendered. The First Party shall compensate the Second
Party for services rendered on Tuesdays and Thursdays during the academic year.
The amount shall be $17,500 per semester for those days of service.

2. The Second Party shall undertake the following activities under this MOL:
Provide support to all identified students. Support administration and staff with
student issues as they arise. Train staff as needed, coordinate with administration
to speak with parents/families to design support plans for students.



: The El Tejon records and information are hereby declared to
be confidential information, and the Advisor is prohibited from using the same or from
disclosing or publishing the data in full or partially for any purpose whatsoever (except to the
participating banks and utility companies) without the express permission of the El Tejon
administration.

Dispute Resolution

g The Parties to this MOU agree that if any dispute arises through any aspect of this
agreement, including, but not limited to, any matters, disputes, or claims, the Parties
shall confer in good faith to promptly resolve any dispute. If the Parties are unable to
regolve the igsue or dispute between them, then the matter shall be:
i Mediated in an attempt to resolve any issues between the Parties. The
parties should agree to resolve disputes in good faith through mutual
negotiations.

Governing Law
10. This MOU shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California.
Assignment
11. Neither Party may assign or transfer the responsibilities or agreement made herein
without the prior written consent of the non-assigning Party.

Amendment

12. This MOU may be amended from time to time by mutual agreement of the parties in
a written modification signed by both parties.

Terminati

13. This MOU may be terminated by mutnal written agreement of the Parties upon three

days” notice,

14. This MOU shall automatically terminate upon completion of all responsibilities as

stated in the “Purpose & Scope” section.

Understands

16. By signing this MOU, both Parties of this MOU mutually agree and understand that:
a. Each Party will take financial and legal responsibility for the actions of its
affiliates, officers, employees, independent contractors, agents, volunteers, and
representatives,
h. Each Party shall carry insurance at its sole expense to cover its activities
in connection with this MOU. Each Party shall also obtain and maintain
insurance for general liability, workers’ compensation, and business automobile
liability adequate to cover any potential liabilities.
c. Each Party agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the other to the
fullest extent permitted by law from and against all actions, demands, claims,
losses, liabilities, costs {including attorney’s costs and fees), and damages. Each
Party shall also be responsible for the proportionate cost of any damages arising



O

Notices

17. All notices, demands, requests, and other communications given hereander for
purposes other than termination shall be made in writing and shall be deemed given if:
. Delivered by hand; or
-3 Mailed by domestic registered or certified mail with prepaid postage, after
three days of business days from the date postmarked.
18. Any notices, demands, requests, and other communications returned to the sending
Party as non-delivered should be re-delivered or re-mailed to the forwarding address
affixed thereto. Such communications will be deemed delivered in the same way as those
that have not been returned to the sending Party.
1g. All written notices so given will be deemed effective upon receipt.

Severability

20. Any part or provision of this MOU that is found to be unenforceable, illegal, void, or
prohibited in any jurisdiction will be ineffective withont invalidating the remaining
provisions and parts of the MOU. In such a scenario, the Parties will use reasonable
efforts to employ and find an alternative way to achieve the same or substantially the
same result as contemplated by such part or provision.

from the fault of such Party, its officers, agents, employees, and independent

cunlraciors,

SIGNATURES

m&:ﬂt_ydmﬂwn mﬁj&* A-11-2 5
First P Printed Name Signature Date

B, Bavad Sandles

Dr. David Sandles g/8/25

Second Party Printed Name Signature Date



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
State of: California

This Memorandum of Understanding (this "“MOU") is made and entered into on the Sth of
September 2025, by and between: El Tejon Middle School and Perseverance Educational
Consulting,

El Tejon Middle School ( “First Party™) and Perseverance Educational Consulting (*Second
Party”). Both are known collectively as the "Parties”.

Background:

The First Party and the Second Party desire to enter into an agreement in which they will work
together to achieve the various aima and objectives relating to trauma-informed support for
students at El Tejon Middle School.

The First and Second Parties desire to enter into an agreement between them, setting out the
working arrangements that each of the two agrees are necessary to complete the Project.

Purpose & Scope

1. The purpose of this MOU is to provide the framework, the scope of work, terms
and conditions, and responsibilities of the Parties agsociated with their work on the
Project, as attached with more detailed information for the Project that the Parties have
agreed upon, if applicable. The obligations of the Parties will end on June 15, 2027.
2. As further outlined below, both parties will collaborate on the following:
a Supporting students who experience trauma and other difficulties in
adjusting to classroom and school decorum.

The Parties Obligations

q, The Parties desire and wish that this document will not create any form or
manner of a formal agreement, but rather an agreement between the Parties to work
together in such a manner that would promote a genuine atmosphere of collaboration in
support of an effective and efficient partnership and leadership meant to maintain,
safeguard, and sustain sound and optimal financial, managerial, and administrative
commitment with regards to all matters related to the Project.

. ibiliti

L. The First Party shall undertake the following activities under this MOU:
Provide a location for the second party to meet with and support students,
Provide needed information about students requiring support. Provide
compensation for services rendered. The First Party shall compensate the Second
Party for services rendered on Wednesdays during the academic year. The
amount shall be $8, 000 per semester for those days of service.

3, The Second Party shall undertake the following activities under this MOLT:
Provide support to all identified students. Support administration and staff with
student issues as they arise. Train staff as needed, coordinate with administration
to speak with parents/families, to design support plans for students.



: The El Tejon records and information are hereby declared to
be confidential information, and the Advisor is prohibited from using the same or from
disclosing or publishing the data in full or partially for any purpose whatsoever (except to the
participating banks and utility companies) without the express permission of the El Tejon
administration.

Di Resoluti
13 The Parties to this MOU agree that if any dispute arises through any aspect of this
agreement, including, but not limited to, any matters, disputes, or claims, the Parties
shall confer in good faith to promptly resolve any dispute, If the Parties are unable to
resolve the issue or dispute between them, then the matter shall be:
a. Mediated in an attempt to resolve any issues between the Parties. The
parties should agree to resolve disputes in good faith through mutual
negotiations.

Governing Law
16, This MOU shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California.

Assignment
11. Neither Party may assign or transfer the responsibilities or agreement made herein
without the prior written consent of the non-assigning Party.

Amendment

12. This MOU may be amended from time to time by mutual agreement of the parties in
a written modification signed by both parties.

Iermination
13. This MOU may be terminated by mutual written agreement of the Parties upon three
days’ notice.
14. This MOU shall automatically terminate upon completion of all responsibilities as
stated in the “Purpose & Scope” section.

Understanding

16. By signing this MOLU, both Parties of this MOU mutually agree and understand that:
a. Each Party will take financial and legal responsibility for the actions of its
affiliates, officers, employees, independent contractors, agents, volunteers, and
representatives.

b. Each Party shall carry insurance at its sole expense to cover its activities
in eonnection with this MOU, Each Party shall also obtain and maintain
insurance for general liability, workers' compensation, and business automaobile
liability adequate to cover any potential liabilities.

. Each Party agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the other to
the fullest extent permitted by law from and against all actions, demands, claims,
losses, liabilities, costs (ineluding attorney’s costs and fees), and damages. Each
Party shall also be responsible for the proportionate cost of any damages arising



P

Notices
17. All notices, demands, requests, and other communications given hereunder for
purposes other than termination shall be made in writing and shall be deemed given if:
i Delivered by hand; or
b. Mailed by domestic registered or certified mail with prepaid postage, after
three days of business days from the date postmarked.
18. Any notices, demands, requests, and other communications returned to the sending
Party as non-delivered should be re-delivered or re-mailed to the forwarding address
affixed thereto. Such communications will be deemed delivered in the same way as thoge

that have not been returned to the sending Party.
19. All written notices so given will be deemed effective upon receipt.

Severability

20, Any part or provision of this MOU that i found to be unenforceable, illegal, void, or
prohibited in any jurisdiction will be ineffective without invalidating the remaining
provisions and parts of the MOU, In such a scenario, the Parties will use reasonable
efforts to employ and find an alternative way to achieve the same or substantially the
same result as contemplated by such part or provision.

from the fault of such Party, its officers, agents, employees, and independent
CONLTACIOTS,

SIGNATURES
y Jehasion m%‘:—jﬂ? 19-13-a 5
First Farty Printed Name ture Date
) iﬂ-t. ﬂﬂﬂ Jandles
Dr. David Sandles 9/8/25

Second Party Printed Name Signature Date



MKCSOS

Kermn County Superintendent of Schools
Office of John &, Menoiburg, Boll — Advecois For Childvan

September 12, 2025
El Tejon Unified Schoal District

Fo Box 876
Lebec, Ca 93243

RE: SPECIAL EDUCATION SERVICES CONTRACT NUMBER 26261075
Dear Sara Haflich,
Submitted for your signature is the above reference contracts! agreements’ amendments.

* Please e-sign or have the appropriate authorized person e-sign the enclosed agreament.
* Please respond and return the executed agreement no later than 10/13/2025.

For quesiions or concerns regarding this agreement please contact, Sonia Rodriguez at 861-636-
4783, or sorodriguezi@kern.org.

Sincearaly,

Michael Gumapac
District Fiscal Analyst
Division of Fiscal Support

JGMMG:gr
Enc.

1300 TTh Streat, CITY CEMTRE « Bakersfield, CA 93301-4533 . (561 636-4000 - FAX [661) 636-4130 - kern.on



District & 38

Recitals

KCS05 Agt # 26 - 261075

OFFICE OF JOHN G. MENDIBURL
KERM COUNTY SUPERINTENMDENT OF SCHOOLS
Advocales for Children

AGREEMENT BETWEEM
KERN COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
DIVISION OF SPECIAL EDUCATION AND
KERN COUNTY CONSORTIUM SELPA PARTICIPATING DISTRICTS
2025 - 2026

A EL TEJON SCHOOL DISTRICT (heseinafter referrad 1o as SCHOOL NSTRICT) is required by law
to provide special education senices to eligible distict pupils and to be a member of a Special
Education Local Plan Agency. Pursuant to law, SCHOOL DISTRICT is a participating district in
the Kern Gounty Gonsortium for Special Education (SELPA).

B. The KCS0S Daision of Special Education agrees (o provide special education services to SELPA
membar district pupils.

. The purpose of this Agreament is to delineate the funclions and responsibifities of the SCHOOL
DISTRICT and KGSOS when the KCS50S5 Division of Special Education is a provider of special
education senvices to SCHOOL DISTRICT s pugils.

Terms

By their authorized signatures, balow, the parties mutually agrea as follows.

The inifial term of this Agreemeant is July 1, 2025 to June 30, 2026. This Agresmant shall
renew annually as long as SCHOOL DISTRICT (the District) and KCS0S are participants
in the SELPA and provided that this Agreemant is consistent with the SELPA's Local Plan.

KCSOS Division of Special Education agrees to conduct special education programs and
classes for pupils legally eiigible for those programs and services. Sarvices will be
consistent with each pupil's Individualized Education Program. Ralated saraces may also
ba provided by KC505 when idantified in tha [EP.

Fat C to Part B Available Assessment Services: Should a Distrct's pupd who Is
transificning cwt of the Early Start (Fart C) program require a8 Part C to Part B assessmant
and the District wishes to use the Assessment and Suppord Team availabla through
KCS0S Division of Special Education, the District shall refer the pupil through the SELPA's
Search and Serve Process — See Appendix B for defails of the Part C to Part B Procedure.

Funding

A ADA Revenue
Districts will continue o receive all of the ADA revenue generated by "Disirict”
sludenis educaled in the KCS0S5 Special Education Programs, (There is no
Revanue Limid Transfer to KCS0S in existence with the LOFF model.)

B. Program Allowance and Reimbursement
The District agrees lo pay KC30S5 on a “straight bill back™ per pupil basis for

programs and services provided to District’s puplls by the Division of Spechal
Education. Cost par pupil to the District shall be computed according to the formuta

WO Spec Educatson Fage |
KCE0S Rel ¥ 0700114



sat forth in Appendix A — Program.  This amount is due and payable in 10 equal
transfars, beginning in September of each year.

C. Special Circymsiances

If an IEP Team specifies additional andfor extracrdinary services for a pupil coverad
by this Agreement, and if these services require an expenditure of funds significantly
greater than normally required by other students in the program provided by
KCS08's Division of Spacial Education, a separate agreement between KCS035 and
tive District shall be drawn accordingly within ten (10) working days of the IEP Team
meeating,
D. Part C to Part B Assessment or an Iniial Preschool Assessment Funding

For the 2025-2026 school year, Disfricts will pay the KCS035 Division of Special
Education $4,250.00 for any Part C to Part B assessment or an initial preschocl
assessment,

A District will recelve an imvoice in July 2028 for the number of assessments that
have bean completed for thelr specific District.

E.  Coordination of Curriculum
The parties agrea that it is in the best inferests of the pupils served under this

Agreement to provide a coordinated system of cumiculum development,
implementation and monitoring, and they agree to cooperate in this regard.

ACCEPTED:

Date of Board Approval:
EL TEJON JOHN G. MENDIBURU, Ed. D.
SCHOOL DISTRICT KERN COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS

E-SIGNED by Sara Haflich E JED by Michael Gumapac

By 10-03 08:47:04 PDT By 0 -09-12 16:15:58 PDT
Signatory Mame: Sara Haflich Signatory Mame: Michaal Gumapac
Title: Superintendent Tithe: District Fiscal Analyst
Address: PO Box 878 Address: 1300 170 Sireet, Bakersfield, CA 53301
Lebec, CA 93243 Acecl Code: 02-400-6500-0-8710.00-5001-00:00-00-0000-000
Deate: Data:

MOU Spee Education Page 2

KCS0S Rel ¥ 0701 14



APPENDIX A - PROGRAM

The Kern County Superintendent of Schoals (KCS03) Division of Special Education’s final billing
costs shall reflect two separate program expenditure calculations representing the following programs and
services:
A Special Day Class - Saveraly Disablad/Low Incidence,

B. Designated Instructional Senvices,

The final calculated net expenditure amount for each of the two program services shall be divided
by the average of the total KCS0S Division of Special Education’s pupl enrollment in these program
services for the year, This produces a dollar cost per student for each of the two programs and services.

The dollar cost per student for each of the programs and services shall be multiplied by the
number of students enrolled from each school district, The tofal cost per school district will be the sum of
the program and sarvice(s) costs (A & B abowa).

By May 31 of the preceding year, the KCS035 Division of Special Education will provide to each
school district an estimate of the following year's program and senvice costs, which can be used for district
budgeting purposes, These estimates will be the basis for the preliminary transfers from the district and
will reflect tha following:

»  HKCS035 Division of Special Education's budget for the bill back year
»  Digtrict enroliment, which will be based on the preceding March 31* count
with the following adjustments:
anticipated program transfer
axiting 8® grade students
studants matricudating into existing district programs
KCS0S estimate of antering kindergarienars.

A Gk

After fiscal year end, a calculation of the final bill back amounts will be made using the net expenditures. for
the yvear and the final student paricipation counts. Final student participation counts reflect the average of
the four-times-a-year student verfication process; these werfications are based on guarters ending
September, December, March and June. This final amount will be comparad to aach districl's estimated
amount transferred, and a correcting transfar will then ba made toffrom each digirict.  This correction will
be made as 5000 as possible after the closing of the KCS0S' books al each year and.

MOU Spec Education Page 3
KCS0S Ref 0 070114



APPENDIX B - PART C TO PART B ASSESSMENT AND INITIAL PRESCHOOL ASSESSMENT
FUNDING

Shoubd a Distict's pupidl who s transitioning out of the Early Start (Part C) Program require a Parf
C fo Part B assessment, and inftial preschocl assessment, and the District wishes 1o use the Assessment
and Support Team available through KCSO0S Division of Special Education, the District shall refar the pupil
through the SELPA's Search and Serve Process.

KCS0S Division of Special Education agress to conduct Part C to Pan B assesaments or an initial
preschood agsessment using the appropriate personnel based on a pupil's suspected disability as noted in
the referral. Assessments will be completed within the State-mandated timaling prior to the pupil's third
birthday should the referral be received at least two (2) months prior to the bifhday, Referrals received
after that time will be approached on a case-by-case basis,

District Parsonnal will be responsible for facilitating the Indhvidualized Education Program (1LE.P.)
meetings held as the result of the Part C to Part B assessments or an initial preschool assessmaent. KCS0S
Assassment and Support Team parsonned will complate the paperwork appropriabe to thedr portion of the
Presant Levels of Performance, any Proposed Goals & Objectives, any Accommodations/Modifications,
and any other needs for an individual pupi. Should District Persennel not be available for the LEP,,
arrangements will be made in advance 1o ingure the proper operation of the mesting and that the District's
services are appropriately documented.

The KCS0S Director responsibhe for the Assessment and Support Team shall documeant
referrals based on the District of Residenca, A running total will ke available to Districts
throughout the school year.

MOU Spec Education Page 4
KCS0S Ref # 070114






MKCSOS

Kern County Superintendent of Schools
Ofice of John 6. MendiBur, Ed.D.— Advociles For Chiidren

Seplember 16, 2025
El Tejon Unified

Po Bax 878
Lebec, Ca 53243

RE: EL TEJON ENHANCED FIREWALL SERVICE AGREEMENT 25-28 CONTRACT
NUMBER 26261707

Dear Sara Haflich,
Submitted for your signature is the above reference contracts! agreements/ amendments.

* Please a-sign or have the appropriate authorized person e-sign the enclosed agreement.
* Plaase respond and return the executed agreament no [ater than 1001 7/2026.

For questions or concerns regarding this agreement please contact, Chris Martin at 661-636-4209,
or chmartingkern. org.

Sinceretly,

Michael Gumapac
District Fizcal Analyst
Division of Fizcal Support

JGMMG:gr
Ene.

1300 17th Street, CITY CENTRE « Bakersfield, CA 933014533 . [B61) 636-4000 - FAX [B67 636-4130 « kem.org



e sy

S
57 ooy, = n A R ST LR TR A Pl Ml e =i L e T ==k s ]

RKCSOS

Kern County Superintendent of Schools

Enhanced Firewall Service Agreement

Technology Service Information

Service Type: 26
District: El Tejon
Begin Date: 10/29/2025
Contact Name: hManuel Gonzakes
Contact Phone: | |B561-248-6247
Contact Email: | mgonzales@al-tejon k1. caus

Customer Number:

KCS05 505 Number: 40513

KCSOS Agt Number; | 25261707

Prepared by: | Click or tap here to enter text

Date: Click or tap to enter a date.

Page 1of 8



B

History

Version: | 2.0

Date: 9/12/2015

Authored By: Chris Martin

Comments: Updated format; no changes to details,

Table of Contents

5 |~ g e et ke A A SR e e e iy gy B R ey |
AV BTU B 111 vrrms s vemmrn e s rmsars sy smremn g o semra s ansn e s s s semra g mrms
R TNE TV i o o o g i

SIITIERUNES ... .ccocis iamte s e i e s e

R N N

Attachments ...

Qverview

Project Overviaw! Click ar tap here to enter text

District Support: 661-636-4770 M e 2ofs |

i L T

Enhancemeant Firewall Service Agreement = EC506 505 #40513
s et bom with a




Agreement

OFFICE OF JOHN &, MENDIBURU, Ed.D
KERN COUNTY SUPERINTEMDENT OF SCHOOLS

Advocates for Children

Agreement Parties;

KCS05 SERVICE PROVIDER AGREEMENT
[Technology Services)

This Service Provider Agreement (“Agreement”) is between THE KERN
COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS, a California local education
agency [ KCS05 ), and the local educational agency / school district,
[“LEA"), described in the signature block below.

Recitals:

This Agreement £ based on the following facts and understandings of the
parties:

A, The KC305 Operational Support Division [/ Technology Services
Department is qualified and experienced in providing local
educational agencies with technology services,

B. The KC50S Technology Support Services Department Is uniguely
positioned to support the scope of work outlined within this
Agreement, through the relationships that have been established
with our staff and our first- hand knowledge and experience
working within their unique community, and the extensive
understanding of the needs of school district technology needs

. The LEA has requested and KC305 has agreed to provide certain
technalogy support services.,

D. This Agreement is for professional services and expert advice and is
therefore exempt from public bidding pursuant to Government Code
section 53060

E. This Agreement |5 permitted by Education Code section 45103.1 as it
is for services which cannot presently be performed by the LEA's
employees due to the highly specialized nature of the expert
knowledge and experience needed.

F. This Agreement is intended to be the entire written agreement
between the parties related to the services and/or products to be
provided during the referenced term.

District Support: 661-636-4770________ TR _,__!_____,__,___.,.,_.

Enhancemeant Firewall Service Agreemeant = KC506 515 #40513

1tion with a




Terms:

Based upon the Recitals and the promises exchanged, the parties agree as
Tollows:

1

2

3.

4,

Scope of Services. The nature and scope of services under this
Agreement are set forth in Attachment A and are incorporated by
reference Into this Agreement.

Term. The initial term of this Agreement shall begin effective
10/29/2025 and shall end on 10/28/2028 The parties may extend
the Agreement beyond its initial term as mutually agreed in
writing.

Price. KCS05 shall provide all labor, equipment, materials, and
supplies to furnish the services called for under this Agreement in
exchange for payment in the amount of 510,536.00.

The SUPERINTENDENT is authorized to initiate budget transfers
from the DISTRICT to cover the annual fees at the beginning of
each fiscal year this Agreement remains in effect totaling
$3,512.00 per year. Account Code: Sara Haflich

A, Annual Fee
Term: () 1year B 3Iyears [ 5years
B. Ome-time installation fee: 5400.00 [580/year)
C. Annual Backup Equipment Fee: $824.00
D. annual Device Fee- 51 64800
E. Annual Support Fee: 5960.00

Additional Provisions. The attached additional provisions are part of
thiz Agreement and fully incorporated by reference.

Enhancement Firewall Service Agreement = EC50G 505 #40513

™ Page 4 of 8 Ty

ithom with 3




Additional Provisions of this Agreement

A, Early Termination, Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time, with ar without
cause, When terminating without cause, the terminating party must first provide advance
written notice to the other party no less than 60 calendar days prior to the date of

termination
B. Warranty. Services shall be provided in accordance with the professional standards,

training, and skill typical of professionals who provide similar services.

C Walver of Implied Warranties. Except for any express warranty under this Agreement, the
parties disclaim any and all other warranties including the implied warranty of
merchantability and implied warranty of fitness for a particular purpose.

D, Limitation on Liability, In no event shall KC505 be liable for any direct or indirect, special,
incidental, consequential ar punitive damages however caused and under any theory of
liability, whether in contract, tort [including negligence and strict liability) or otherwise,
arising out of this Agreement, even if advised of the possibility of such damages, and
notwithstanding any failure of purpase of any limited remedy,

Except for claims based on KCSO%'s willful malfeasance, the maximum aggregate liability of
K505 under any theory of law [including breach of contract, tort, and strict liability) shall
not exceed the total amount pre-paid by LEA.

E Force Majeure. & party is not liable for failing or delaying perfarmance of its obligations
under this Agreement due to events that are beyond the party's reasonable control and
occurring without its fault or negligence, for example acts of God such as epidemics or
pandemics (nationally, statewide, or locally declared) tornadoes, lightning, earthquakes,
hurricanes, floods, or other natural disasters (collectively "Force Majeure”) provided that
the party has promptly notified the other party in writing of the occurrence of the Force
Majeure.

F. Confidentiality. KCS0S shall at all times protect the confidentiality of all matters for which
it provides services or to which it has access under this Agreement including, but not limited
to, any records pertaining to pupils or employees. KC305 shall not disclose or discuss the
facts of any such matter with any person other than LEA's authorized representatives
without prior written consent of LEA, a court order, or judicial subpoena. KC305 shall notify
LEA immediately of any subpoena or court order seeking information covered by this
Agresment.

G. Aydit. KCS0S agrees that the LEA, California State Auditor, or any other appropriate state
or federal oversight agency, or their designated representative(s), shall have the right to
review and copy any records and supporting documentation pertaining to the performance

District Support: 661-636-4770 A T B pagesofy [HE—

AR L SRR R S Tl ey

Enhancement Firewall Service Agreement — KCS05 S5LS f40513 ; .
e — TR




- KCSOS

of this Agreement, KC305 agress to maintain such reconds for possible audit for a minimmum
af three [3) vears after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is
stipulated, KCS05 agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal
business hours and to allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have
infermation related to such records.

H Hold Harmless and Indemnification. Each party agrees to defend, hold harmless, and
indemnify the other party from and against any and all bodily injury, personal injury and
property damage claims or causes of action that may occur as the resuft of the negligence
of its personnel in conjunction with the subject matter of this Agreement.

l Status of Parties. The parties agree that in performing the services specified in this
Agreement, KC505 shall act as independent contractor. Except as specified in this
Agreement, KC505 shall determine the means and methods for carrying out the work to
achieve the result required by LEA. KC505 shall be free to contract for similar services to
be performed while under contract with LEA, KCS505 personnel are not entitled to
participate in any pension plan, insurance, bonus, or similar benefit LEA provides for its
employess.

J. Pupil Safety. KC305 puarantees that none of its personnel providing services under this
Agreement has not been convicted of, or entered a plea of nolo contendere to, charges of
any sex offense as defined in Education Code section 44010 or to a felony that would
disqualify them from employment pursuant to Education Code section 44237,

K Nop-Discrimination Clayse. During the performance of this Agreement, no party shall
unlawfully discriminate, harass or allow harassment, against any person because of sex,
sexual orientation, gender, gender identity race, color, ancestry, immigration status,
religious creed, national origin, disability, medical condition, and age.

L. Child Abuse Reporting Requirements. Both parties warrant that they are informed of the
obligation to report child abuse and child neglect under Californla law Including, but not
limited to Penal Code section 11164, and following, and have signed statements as set forth
in Penal Code section 11166.5 ta the effect that they have knowledge of the provisions of
Penal Code section 11166 (reporting duty and time) and will comply with thase provisions.

M. Miscellaneous Provisions. These terms constitute the final, complete, and exclusive
statemeant of the terms of the agreement between the parties pertaining to providing the
subject services and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous understandings or
agreements of the parties. No party has been induced to enter into this Agreement by, nor
is any party relying on, any representation or warranty outside those expressly set forth in
this Agreement. The provisions of this Agreement may be modified only by the signed
written mutual agreement of the parties. No madification shall be binding urless it is in
writing and signed by the party against whom enforcement of the modification is sought.
The rights and obligations of the parties and the interpretation and performance of this

District Support: EEl-EEE--‘-‘I??D________}___mT S ——— r

Enhancament Firewall Service Agreement — KCS05 515 40513 7 a
: ; e ILIGR WILH 3




Agreement shall be governed by the laws of California, excluding any statute which directs
the application of the laws of another jurisdiction.

EL TEJOM UNIFIED SCHOOL CISTRICT JOHN G, MENDIBEURL, Ed.D.
LEA KERN COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
E-SIGMNED by Sara Haflich E- EIE-NED by Michael Gumapac
| | o
o 00-18 13:03:57 PDT 09-16 12:41:53 POT

By W By
Signatory Name: 5ara Haflich signatory Name: Michael Gumapac
Title: Superntendant Tutle: District Fiscal Anabyst
Address: PO Box 876 Addrass: 1300 17" Streat, Bakersfield, CA 93301

Lebec, CA 53243 Acct Code: 01-306-0000-0-867 7 .00-0000-0000-00-0000-000

01-305-0000-0-8677.00-0000-7 700-00-0000-000

Diate: Crate:

District Support: 661-636-4770

pmerssssnaisesnel Page 7 of 8 b LA
ety BNy r P N LY | ||_.':"_|.;1

Enhancement Firewall Serdce Agreement — BCS05 505 #40513

SE——— L {Te Ty R I




District Support: 661-636-4770

Attachment A

1. Scope of Services [Check applicable boxfes) ko indicate services desired.)
B A Enhanced Firewall Service:
Device Range: 1.0GE-1.5GB
Contract Range: 1.0GA-1.5G8
2l B. Eguipment and Installation are incorporated Into the contracted amount
. Iinstabled Firewall model will be based on district bandwidth as folbows:
o 1.0GH - 1.5G8: Fortigate 206G

ECS05 agrees to provide comprehensive Enhanced Firewall services to the LEA, intluding but not limited
to the fallowing:

. Enhanced Firewall Service

. ManageMonitor

. Adwvanced Malware Protection
. Application Controd

. Zero day Threat Protection

D LIRL/DHS Filtering

- DLE Security

= Attack Surface Mitigation

2. Service Leveals
ECS05 agreas to maintain servioe levels consiskent with industry standards and best practices. Bespanse
times for support requests shall be as follows:

. Critical Issues: Immediate respanse, with resalution within 4 hours.
. Lrgent Isswes: Response within 2 hours, with resolution within 3 hours,
. General Support Requests: Response within 24 howrs, with resolution by end of weekly visit

KCS05"s price s contimgent upon

. All areas affected by the scope of work are accessible during normal wiorking hours B:00am to
5:00PHA

" All areas affected by the scope of work are free and clear of any hazardows materizls and/or
conditions.

" Any changes not contained in the scope of work will be dacumeénted in writing and agreed by
both LEA and ECS0G.

= KCS0S IT Services does request keys and codes to access buildings to perform maintenance,

Service Exclusions:

" Ay repair that would require a 3rd party contracior

. Ay work that would be considered a project and agreed upen by both parties,

. Ay replacement for technologies that need replacement

. Onboarding will be free and not deduct from total hours.

] Onboarding will include inventory of all devices, network equipment, and systems.
L Cmboarding will also Inchude Installation of antivirus,/ DS,

Page B of & T

Enhancement Firewall Service Agreement = KC505 505 #40513
T e J T nt'nn'ﬁ'lrh.ﬂ







RKCSOS

Kem County Superintendent of Schools
Oiffce of John &, Mendibury, £l 0, — Advoomles For Ciwianes

September 22, 2025
El Tejon Unified School District

Po Box BTG
Lebec, Ca 53243

RE: EL TEJON UNIFIED SD-COUNTY LEVEL EDUCATIONAL SVC K-8 STUDENTS
CONTRACT NUMBER 26264418

Dear Sara Haflich,
Submitted for your signature is the above reference contracts’ agreemeants’ ameandmeants.

* Please e-sign or have the appropriate authorized person e-sign the enclosed agreement
* Please respond and return the executed agreement no later than 10/23/2025.

For questions or concemns regarding this agreement please contact, Debra Plank at 651-636-4345,
or deplank@kern.org.

Sincerely,

Michael Gumapac
District Fiscal Analyst
Division of Fiscal Suppart

JGM MG gr
Ene.

300 17th Strest, CITY CEMTRE - Bakersfeld, CA 933014533 « (661) 6364000 « FAX (661) 636-4130 - kerrong



District No. 88 KCS0S Agt # 26-264418

Office of John G. Mendiburu
Kern County Superintendent of Schools
Advacafes for Children

Memorandum of Understanding
County Level Educational Services for K-8 Students
El Tejon Unified School District

The Kern County Superintendent of Schools Office and the El Tejon Unified School District
have enjoyed an excellent working relationship for decades. The Schooel District has the need for an
educational placement for those students in kindergarten and grades 1-6 who have been expelled,
require an altemative to expulsion or are serously at-risk of being expelled. The Kern County
Superintendent of Schools Office operates an elementary community school, but receives inadequate
funding from the State of California. The El Tejon Unified School District would like to have a
county-level alternative education placement available for all three types of students listed above.
Based on this background, the following agreement is establishied by the two agencies:

1. Beginning on July 1, 2025 and continuing through the remainder of the 2026-2027 school year,
thie El Tejon Unified School District will pay to the Kern County Superintendent of Schools
Office an amount equal to $49.00 per student day of enrcliment for any student who is a) enrolied
in kindergarten or grades 1 through 8, b) expallad by the district board or refarred by the district to
the community schoal, and ¢) is enralied in classroom instruction.

2. Beginning on July 1, 2025 and continuing through the remainder of the 2026-2027 school year,
the Kern County Superintendent of Schaals Office will accept both expelled and district referred K-
& students from the School District.

3. Following the conclusion of the contracted school year representatives of the School Districts and
the Kern County Superintendent of Schools Office will meet, if necessary, o evaluate cosis
associated with operation of the program and establish a "per student day of enrollment” rate for
the subsequent school year.

4. This agreement shall remain in effact through the 2026-2027 school year and charges associated
with this agreemant shall be billed at the conclusion of tha school year. SUPERINTENDENT is
authorzed to transfer the amounts owing under this %mamanl from the following DISTRICT
Account Code  01-6500-0-7142,00-5001-9200-0 00-0000 :
SUPERINTEMDENT may transfer amounts owing for the annual fees following the end of each
fiscal year this Agreement remains in effect.

El Tejon Unified JOHN G. MENDIBURU, Ed.D.

SCHOOL DISTRICT KERN COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
IGNED by Sara Haflich GNED by Michael Gumapac

By 8-23 09:30:50 POT By -08-22 15:27.55 POT

Signatory Mame: Sara Haflich Signatery Mame: Michael Gumapa

Title: Superintendent Title: District Fiscal Analyst

Address: PO Box 878 Address: 1300 17™ Streat, Bakersfield, CA 83301

Lebec, CA 83243

Acct Code; 01-001-0000-0-87 10.00-0000-0000-00-2420-000

Date: Date:

Ca Lavel Ed Sves for K-8 Students
KCS03 Ral #18529 Paga 1 0of 1



088 EL TEJON UNIFIED Jage57 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PRELIST APY500 L.00.24 09/09/25 09:40 PAGE 0

Batch status: A All
From batch: 0018
To batch: 0018
Include Revolving Cash: Y
Include Address: N
Include Object Desc: N

Include Vendor TIN: Y



088 EL TEJON UNIFIED

Jage57 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PRELIST APY500 L.00.24 09/09/25 09:40 PAGE 1

TOMPS

EE ES E-Term E-ExtRef

Lig Amt Net Amount

BATCH: 0018 September 2, 2025 << Open >>
FUND 01 GENERAL FUND
Vendor/Addr Remit name Tax ID num Deposit type ABA num Account num
Reqg Reference Date Description FD-RESC-Y-OBJT.SO-GOAL-FUNC-STE-T2-TY3-TYP4
880993/00 A Book Company
260100 PO-260100 09/03/2025 6615-250831-5951 1 01-6300-0-4200.00-1110-1000-007-00-000-1021
260100 PO-260100 09/03/2025 26262778-2025829 1 01-6300-0-4200.00-1110-1000-007-00-000-1021
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 1,866.10 *
880851/00 Agile Occupational Medicine 872679604
PV-260159 09/04/2025 EM051772 01-0000-0-5800.00-0000-7200-010-00-000-0000
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 200.00 *

008351/00 Amazon Capital Services

260018 PO-260018
260020 PO-260020
260020 PO-260020
260021 PO-260021
260022 PO-260022
260024 PO-260024
260025 PO-260025
260025 PO-260025
260025 P0O-260025
260027 PO-260027
260029 P0O-260029
260031 PO-260031
260032 PO-260032
260032 PO-260032
260036 P0O-260036
260047 PO-260047
260048 P0O-260048
260052 PO-260052
260052 PO-260052
260052 PO-260052
260054 PO-260054
260054 PO-260054
260055 PO-260055
260057 PO-260057
260057 PO-260057
260061 PO-260061
260063 PO-260063
260063 PO-260063
260083 PO-260083

PV-260153

09/03/2025
09/02/2025
09/03/2025
09/03/2025
09/02/2025
09/03/2025
09/02/2025
09/03/2025
09/03/2025
09/02/2025
09/02/2025
09/03/2025
09/03/2025
09/03/2025
09/03/2025
09/03/2025
09/03/2025
09/02/2025
09/03/2025
09/03/2025
09/03/2025
09/03/2025
09/02/2025
09/03/2025
09/03/2025
09/02/2025
09/03/2025
09/03/2025
09/03/2025
09/03/2025

1G1P-6LWF-3W6V
14CL-NPTJ-PYYL
1JYC-W9CC-3XD1
1Y6V-1T3Q-3TN9
1KPC-GFXQ-3N77
1GP9-3TVC-3VDQ
1FGT-NQD6 - 1WKK
1NLD-HJFX-41PL_ChangingStat
1ML6-4H37-3K1R
1LVV-QQDG-36D1
1G1P-6LWF-361V
139R-Y7VT-1JLM
19L1-RFPQ-3JCP
1PYY-YFTQ-43GV
16LC-DY67-YTG3
19JM-DCLV-49GG
1MGV-TXPY-3V4W
116X-LT79-37K4
1CWJ-M4W4 -3LT4
1QCN-96PQ-1773
1PGM-VC4G-41PY
1X6H-Y4P4-3GXM
1XHV-Q91N-3L6C
139F-VT69-13GJ
1GFW-7RT6-3VDR-COTTONBATTIN
1DVY-TRXP-YK1P
16LC-DY67-YW7G
1IN7K-KH9Q-17PH
1LVV-QQDG-3VJY
1ML6-4H37-31K9

PN R RRE R PR RRRRRRE R R R R R R R R R R R R

01-6300-0-4100.00-1110-1000-001-00-000-0000
01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-8100-010-00-000-0000
01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-8100-010-00-000-0000
01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-3600-010-00-000-0000
01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-7700-010-00-000-0000
01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-3140-010-00-000-0000
01-6500-0-4300.00-5770-1120-010-00-000-0000
01-6500-0-4300.00-5770-1120-010-00-000-0000
01-6500-0-4300.00-5770-1120-010-00-000-0000
01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-2700-002-00-000-0000
01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-2700-007-00-000-0000
01-1100-0-4300.00-1110-1000-001-00-000-0000
01-1100-0-4300.00-1110-1000-007-00-000-0000
01-1100-0-4300.00-1110-1000-007-00-000-0000
01-0044-0-4300.00-1110-1000-007-00-000-1007
01-0044-0-4300.00-1110-1000-010-00-000-3012
01-0044-0-4300.00-1110-1000-002-00-000-4003
01-2600-0-4300.00-1110-1000-001-00-000-0000
01-2600-0-4300.00-1110-1000-001-00-000-0000
01-2600-0-4300.00-1110-1000-001-00-000-0000
01-7220-0-4300.00-3800-1000-007-00-000-0000
01-7220-0-4300.00-3800-1000-007-00-000-0000
01-6387-0-4300.00-3800-1000-007-00-000-0000
01-6387-0-4300.00-3800-1000-001-00-000-0000
01-6387-0-4300.00-3800-1000-001-00-000-0000
01-6500-0-4300.00-5770-2700-010-00-000-0000
01-6770-1-4300.00-1190-1000-001-00-000-0000
01-6770-1-4300.00-1190-1000-002-00-000-0000
01-6500-0-4300.00-5770-3120-010-00-000-0000
01-6385-0-4300.00-3800-1000-001-00-000-0000

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 16,925.66 *

EEEFEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE

WYY R Y Y Y Y R R Y R Y Y Y Y Y Y 0 0 T g g rg g

1,487.25 1,487.25
378.85 378.85
1,866.10

200.00

200.00

272.30 272.30
554.20 554.20
19.46 19.46
844.53 844.53
422.97 422.97
364.67 364.67
302.41 302.41
330.64 330.64
289.90 289.90
413.40 413.40
164.40 164.40
618.83 618.83
272.58 272.58
17.30 17.30
30.30 30.30
424.53 424.53
89.13 89.13
1,000.00 2,746.84
0.00 396.06
0.00 953.28
3,272.03 3,272.03
511.49 511.49
87.89 87.89
917.51 917.51
0.00 -190.91
201.31 201.31
746.10 746.10
19.97 34.64
270.17 270.17
1,547.70

16,925.66



088 EL TEJON UNIFIED

Vendor/Addr Remit name
Reqg Reference

J48657 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PRELIST APY500
BATCH: 0018 September 2, 2025 << Open >>
FUND 01 GENERAL FUND
Tax ID num Deposit type ABA num Account num
Date Description FD-RESC-Y-OBJT.SO-GOAL-FUNC-STE-T2-TY3-TYP4

TOMPS

Lig Amt

L.00.24 09/09/25 09:40 PAGE 2

EE ES E-Term E-ExtRef

Net Amount

880697/00

PV-

008038/00

260017 PO-
260017 PO-

006170/00

PV~
PV-
PV~
PV-

880762/00

PV-

000042/00

260064 PO-
260065 PO-

000044/00

PV-

000058/00

PV-

Beale Feed Store 000000000

260169 09/05/2025 532_ChknFood50#

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT

Brady Industries 942289369
260017 09/03/2025 10565034
260017 09/03/2025 10565035

Canelli Plumbing

260158
260160
260161
260162

09/04/2025 4437PreparingBathroomsforSp
09/04/2025 4361_ KinderBrushRemoval
09/04/2025 4435_TreeRemovalFPS
09/04/2025 4362_FMHS FloatValveReplace

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT

Credentialed School Nurse 934725675

260152 09/03/2025 228_August Diabetic Service

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT

FRAZIER PARK LUMBER & ACE 922121267

260064 09/05/2025 Statement 8/31/2025 Job 0
260065 09/05/2025 Statement 8/31/25 job 1

FRAZIER PARK UTILITY 000000000

260173 09/05/2025 177 9/2/2025

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT

Kern County Supt of Schools 000000000

260164 09/04/2025 MyJourneyGriefFac.Training

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT

01-3550-0-4300.00-3800-1000-007-00-000-0000
29.98 *

99 EFT

1 01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-8100-010-00-000-0000
1 01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-8100-010-00-000-0000
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT

294.53 *

01-8150-0-5600.00-0000-8100-002-00-000-0000
01-8150-0-5600.00-0000-8100-002-00-000-0000
01-8150-0-5600.00-0000-8100-002-00-000-0000
01-8150-0-5600.00-0000-8100-007-00-000-0000
10,035.00 *

01-6500-0-5800.00-5001-3140-010-00-000-0000
2,000.00 *

1 01-8150-0-4300.00-0000-8100-010-00-000-0000
2 01-7010-0-4300.00-3800-1000-007-00-000-0000
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT

2,136.00 *

01-0000-0-5500.04-0000-8100-002-00-000-0000
354.03 *

01-6332-0-5200.00-1110-1000-001-00-000-0000
350.00 *

2z

EEEN

NY

L]

85.53
209.00

1,959.31
176.69

29.98
29.98

85.53
209.00
294.53

1,220.00
2,900.00
1,395.00
4,520.00

10,035.00

2,000.00
2,000.00

1,959.31
176.69
2,136.00

354.03
354.03

350.00
350.00



088 EL TEJON UNIFIED

Vendor/Addr Remit name

Reqg Reference

Date Description

J48657

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PRELIST
0018 September 2,
GENERAL FUND

BATCH:
FUND : 01

Tax ID num Deposit type
FD-RESC-Y-OBJT.

APY500
2025

ABA num Account num
SO-GOAL-FUNC-STE-T2-TY3-TYP4

TOMPS

1.00.24 09/09/25 09:40 PAGE 3
<< Open >>

EE ES E-Term E-ExtRef

008041/00

260034 PO-260034 09/03/2025 BILLING STATEMENT 8/31/2025 1 01-0000-0-4300.

000089/00

PV-

000094/00

260015 PO-

000099/00

PV-
PV-
PV-
PV~

000100/00

PV-260157 09/03/2025 146 816 7500 6_7/25-8/26

000214/00

260068
260068
260068
260068
260068
260068
260073

PO-
PO-
PO-
PO-
PO-
PO-
PO-

Lebec Parts, LLC/CQ of Lebec

MOUNTAINSIDE DISPOSAL

260155 09/03/2025 N4855308604

SCHWEBEL PETROLEUM CO, INC

260015 09/05/2025 311090

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON

260172 09/05/2025 700224978410_8/1/25 - 9/1/2 01-0000-0-5500.
260172 09/05/2025 700558405297_8/1/25 - 9/1/2 01-0000-0-5500.
260172 09/05/2025 700567450246_8/1/25 - 9/1/2 01-0000-0-5500.
260172 09/05/2025 700573116157_8/1/25 - 9/1/2 01-0000-0-5500.

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS CO

SOUTHWEST SCHOOL SUPPLY 000000000
260068 09/02/2025 6040743853 1 01-1100-0-4300.
260068 09/03/2025 DOC NO. 6040095692 1 01-1100-0-4300.
260068 09/03/2025 DOC NO. 6040095688 1 01-1100-0-4300.
260068 09/03/2025 DOC NO. 6040095689 1 01-1100-0-4300.
260068 09/03/2025 DOC NO. 6040169749 1 01-1100-0-4300.
260068 09/03/2025 DOC NO. 6040169741 1 01-1100-0-4300.
260073 09/02/2025 6040816286 1 01-0000-0-4300.

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT

000000000

01-0000-0-5500.

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT

952962284

1 01-0000-0-4300.

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT

000000000

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT

000000000

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT

01-0000-0-5500.

00-0000-3600-010-00-000-0000
248.50 *

05-0000-8100-010-00-000-0000
92.31 *

00-0000-3600-010-00-000-0000
2,335.04 *

01-0000-8100-007-00-000-0000
01-0000-8100-007-00-000-0000
01-0000-8100-007-00-000-0000
01-0000-8100-007-00-000-0000
7,851.38 *

02-0000-8100-010-00-000-0000
24.60 *

00-1110-1000-002-00-000-0000
00-1110-1000-002-00-000-0000
00-1110-1000-002-00-000-0000
00-1110-1000-002-00-000-0000
00-1110-1000-002-00-000-0000
00-1110-1000-002-00-000-0000
00-0000-2700-007-00-000-0000
390.14 *

L 2222

2228588

Lig Amt Net Amount
248.50 248.50
248.50

92.31

92.31

2,335.04 2,335.04
2,335.04

1,135.40

1,009.25

2,436.82

3,269.91

7,851.38

24.60

24.60

6.88 6.88
23.71 23.71
205.72 205.72
25.64 25.64
0.66 0.66
29.00 29.00
98.53 98.53
390.14



088 EL TEJON UNIFIED Jage57

Vendor/Addr Remit name

Reqg Reference Date Description
000075/00 THE MOUNTAIN ENTERPRISE 000000000
PV-260156 09/03/2025 Acct#: 1171-BacktoSchoolAds

008223/00

PV-

880884/00

PV-
PV~

002387/00

260094 PO-

004796/00

PV~

BATCH:
FUND

TOTAL

TTF Holdings Lockbox 261251927

260168 09/05/2025 21259199

Terminix Processing Center

260154 09/03/2025 463076620_8/22/25
260167 09/04/2025 463074329_8/22/25

WORTHINGTON DIRECT INC

260094 09/04/2025 INV425568-ELT002

Winsupply

260165 09/04/2025 553551 01

TOTAL

TOTAL

TOTAL

TOTAL

TOTAL
TOTAL
TOTAL

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PRELIST
0018 September 2,
01 GENERAL FUND

Tax ID num Deposit type

APY500

ABA num  Account

1.00.24 09/09/25 09:40 PAGE 4
<< Open >>

num

FD-RESC-Y-OBJT.SO-GOAL-FUNC-STE-T2-TY3-TYP4 TIMPS

PAYMENT AMOUNT

2,543.06 *

01-0000-0-5800.00-0000-7200-010-00-000-0000 NN

01-6500-0-5800.00-5770-3150-010-00-000-0000 NN

PAYMENT AMOUNT

40.59 *

01-0000-0-5500.07-0000-8100-007-00-000-0000 NN
01-0000-0-5500.07-0000-8100-001-00-000-0000 NN

PAYMENT AMOUNT

354.00 *

1 01-4127-0-4300.00-1110-1000-007-00-000-0000 NN F

PAYMENT AMOUNT

99 EFT

253.74 *

01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-8100-010-00-000-0000 NN

PAYMENT AMOUNT

FUND CHECKS
FUND EFT
FUND PAYMENT

849.73 *

48,030.13 **
1,144.26 **
49,174.39 **

Lig Amt

253.74

EE ES E-Term E-ExtRef

Net Amount

2,543.06
2,543.06

40.59
40.59

182.00
172.00
354.00

253.74
253.74

849.73
849.73

48,030.13
1,144.26
49,174.39



088 EL TEJON UNIFIED Jage57

Vendor/Addr Remit name
Reqg Reference Date Description

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PRELIST

BATCH
FUND

Tax ID num Deposit type

APY500

L.00.24 09/09/25 09:40 PAGE 5

008351/00 Amazon Capital Services

260026 PO-260026 09/03/2025 1KPC-GFXQ-466P

003535/00 JORDANO'S

PV-260163 09/04/2025 7253880

003389/00 TK Elevator Corporation

PV-260171 09/05/2025 3008836527

TOTAL

TOTAL

000000000

TOTAL

TOTAL

: 0018 September 2, << Open >>
13 CAFETERIA

ABA num Account num EE ES E-Term E-ExtRef
FD-RESC-Y-OBJT.SO-GOAL-FUNC-STE-T2-TY3-TYP4 TIMPS Lig Amt Net Amount
1 13-5310-0-4300.00-0000-3700-010-00-000-0000 NN P 299.64 299.64
PAYMENT AMOUNT 299.64 * 299.64
13-5310-0-4700.00-0000-3700-010-00-000-0000 NN 1,206.43
PAYMENT AMOUNT 1,206.43 * 1,206.43
13-5310-0-5800.00-0000-3700-010-00-000-0000 NN 98.39
PAYMENT AMOUNT 98.39 * 98.39
FUND PAYMENT 1,604.46 ** 1,604.46



088 EL TEJON UNIFIED Jage57

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PRELIST

BATCH: 0018 September 2, 2025

FUND

Vendor/Addr Remit name
Reqg Reference Date Description

008106/00 Mangini Associates Inc.

PV-260166 09/04/2025 15773_TK Classroom
TOTAL

TOTAL

TOTAL
TOTAL
TOTAL

TOTAL
TOTAL
TOTAL

TOTAL
TOTAL
TOTAL

Number of checks to be printed: 23, not counting
Number of EFT generated:

Tax ID num Deposit type

35 SCHOOL FACILITIES FUND

ABA num

APY500
<< Open >>

Account num

L.00.24 09/09/25 09:40 PAGE 6

FD-RESC-Y-OBJT.SO-GOAL-FUNC-STE-T2-TY3-TYP4 TIMPS

35-0000-0-5800.00-0000-8500-002-00-000-0000 NN

PAYMENT AMOUNT

FUND PAYMENT

BATCH CHECKS
BATCH EFT
BATCH PAYMENT

DISTRICT CHECKS
DISTRICT EFT
DISTRICT PAYMENT

FOR ALL DISTRICTS CHK:
FOR ALL DISTRICTS EFT:
FOR ALL DISTRICTS:

voids due to stub overflows.

4,744.55

4,744 .55

54,379.14
1,144.26
55,523.40

54,379.14
1,144.26
55,523.40

54,379.14
1,144.26
55,523.40

*

e

dkk

e

ok k

*k ok k

ok k

*k ok k

ok k

*k ok k

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

EE ES E-Term E-ExtRef

Lig Amt Net Amount

4,744.55
4,744.55

4,744.55

54,379.14
1,144.26
55,523.40

54,379.14
1,144.26
55,523.40

54,379.14
1,144.26
55,523.40

54,379.14
1,144.26



088 EL TEJON UNIFIED J52044 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PRELIST APY500 L.00.24 09/12/25 12:24 PAGE 0

Batch status: A All
From batch: 0019
To batch: 0019
Include Revolving Cash: Y
Include Address: N
Include Object Desc: N

Include Vendor TIN: Y



088 EL TEJON UNIFIED J52044

Vendor/Addr Remit name
Reqg Reference Date Description

880851/00

PV-

003390/00

PV-
PV~

002521/00

PV~
PV-
PV~

008281/00

PV-260187 09/12/2025 REIMBURS_GasAthletics

880762/00

PV-260192 09/12/2025 229_Site visit forTraining8

002461/00

260077 PO-

000058/00

PV-

Agile Occupational Medicine

260191 09/12/2025 EM052255

BOYS & GIRLS CLUBS OF BAKERS

260194 09/12/2025 3ETASES2526 (FPS)
260194 09/12/2025 3ETASES2526 (ETS)

CAROLYN CHAPMAN

260189 09/12/2025 REIMBURS_OPENAI
260189 09/12/2025 REIMBURS_S&S
260189 09/12/2025 REIMBURS_S&S

CRISTINA OROSCO

Credentialed School Nurse

Jim's Towing Service

260077 09/12/2025 54209

Kern County Supt of Schools

260188 09/12/2025 Project GLAD

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PRELIST
BATCH: 0019 September 8, 2025
FUND : 01 GENERAL FUND

Tax ID num Deposit type AB.

APY500

A num  Account

1.00.24 09/12/25 12:24 PAGE 1
<< Open >>

num

FD-RESC-Y-OBJT.SO-GOAL-FUNC-STE-T2-TY3-TYP4 TIMPS

872679604

01-0000-0-5800.00-0000-7200-010-00-000-0000 NN

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT

200.00 *

01-6010-0-5100.00-1110-4000-002-00-000-0000 NN
01-6010-0-5100.00-1110-4000-001-00-000-0000 NN

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT

7,307.57 *

01-7220-0-4300.00-3800-1000-007-00-000-0000 NN
01-7220-0-4300.00-3800-1000-007-00-000-0000 NN
01-7220-0-4300.00-3800-1000-007-00-000-0000 NN

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT

000000000

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT

934725675

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT

680580310 99 EFT

836.67 *

85.00 *

525.00 *

01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-3600-010-00-000-0000 NN

01-6500-0-5800.00-5001-3140-010-00-000-0000 NY

1 01-0000-0-5600.00-0000-3600-010-00-000-0000 NY P

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT

000000000

540.00 *

01-7435-0-5200.00-1110-1000-001-00-000-1010 NN

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT

1,100.00 *

Lig Amt

540.00

EE ES E-Term E-ExtRef

Net Amount

200.00
200.00

3,653.79
3,653.78
7,307.57

600.00
230.00

6.67
836.67

85.00
85.00

525.00
525.00

540.00
540.00

1,100.00
1,100.00



088 EL TEJON UNIFIED

J52044 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PRELIST APY500 L.00.24 09/12/25 12:24 PAGE 2

TOMPS

22288

EE ES E-Term E-ExtRef

Net Amount

7,245.95
7,245.95

287.93
287.93
2,099.47
110.00
1,285.00
4,070.33

1,223.85
1,223.85

BATCH: 0019 September 8, 2025 << Open >>
FUND 01 GENERAL FUND
Vendor/Addr Remit name Tax ID num Deposit type ABA num Account num
Reqg Reference Date Description FD-RESC-Y-OBJT.SO-GOAL-FUNC-STE-T2-TY3-TYP4
008295/00 Labster, Inc. 814817248
PV-260198 09/12/2025 INV5212 01-6300-0-4300.00-1110-1000-007-00-000-0000
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 7,245.95 *
000089/00 MOUNTAINSIDE DISPOSAL 000000000
PV-260176 09/08/2025 N4855310665 August 2025 01-0000-0-5500.05-0000-8100-010-00-000-0000
PV-260176 09/08/2025 N4855310641 August 2025 01-0000-0-5500.05-0000-8100-010-00-000-0000
PV-260177 09/08/2025 N4855310730 August 2025 01-0000-0-5500.05-0000-8100-010-00-000-0000
PV-260178 09/08/2025 N4855310642 August 2025 01-0000-0-5500.05-0000-8100-010-00-000-0000
PV-260178 09/08/2025 N4855310692 August 2025 01-0000-0-5500.05-0000-8100-010-00-000-0000
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 4,070.33 *
008732/00 Martin's Garage
PV-260190 09/12/2025 16396_REPAIRS AG TRUCK 01-0000-0-5600.00-0000-3600-010-00-000-0000
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 1,223.85 *
008294/00 NIELSEN MERKSAMER

PV-260181 09/09/2025 293713

000079/00

PV-
PV~
PV-
PV~
PV-

008239/00

PV-

PG&E

260183 09/10/2025
260184 09/10/2025
260185 09/10/2025
260185 09/10/2025
260186 09/10/2025

Robert Stowell

260182 09/09/2025

01-0000-0-5800.00-0000-7100-010-00-000-0000

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 141.00 *

000000000

7161651461-9 8/5/25-9/3/25
6828318149-0 8/5/25-9/3/25
67449684821-6 8/5/25-9/3/2
6786651485-3 8/5/25-9/3/25
0047046680-6 8/5/25-8/31/2

01-0000-0-5500.01-0000-8100-010-00-000-0000
01-0000-0-5500.01-0000-8100-001-00-000-0000
01-0000-0-5500.01-0000-8100-010-00-000-0000
01-0000-0-5500.01-0000-8100-010-00-000-0000
01-0000-0-5500.01-0000-8100-001-00-000-0000

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 1,649.61 *

770565426

FPS BathroomRepair

01-8150-0-5800.00-0000-8100-002-00-000-0000

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 1,105.00 *

EEERE

NY

141.00
141.00

255.43
112.07
2.23
620.34
659.54
1,649.61

1,105.00
1,105.00



088 EL TEJON UNIFIED

Vendor/Addr Remit name

Reqg Reference

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PRELIST
BATCH: 0019 September 8, 2025
FUND : 01 GENERAL FUND

Tax ID num Deposit type AB.

FD-RESC-Y-OBJT.SO-GOAL-FUNC-STE-T2-TY3-TYP4

APY500

A num  Account

1.00.24 09/12/25 12:24 PAGE 3
<< Open >>

num

TOMPS

EE ES E-Term E-ExtRef

Lig Amt

Net Amount

000094/00

260015 PO-

000099/00

PV-260174 09/08/2025 700571913660
PV-260174 09/08/2025 700225033980

880861/00

260102 PO-260102 09/12/2025 157979381-001_BULKFILLSAND
260103 P0O-260103 09/12/2025 157979381-001PLANTINGSOILMI 1 01-6387-0-4300.00-3800-1000-007-00-000-0000

002699/00

PV-
PV~

008223/00

PV~

J52044
Date Description
SCHWEBEL PETROLEUM CO, INC

260015 09/12/2025 311365

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON

SiteOne Landscape Supply,

Skookum Water Company

260175 09/08/2025 25 - 630
260180 09/08/2025 25 - 628

TTF Holdings Lockbox

260193 09/12/2025 21263688

LLC

952962284

1 01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-3600-010-00-000-0000

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT
000000000
8/4/25-9/2/25

8/1/25-9/1/25
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT

36448550

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT

262256204

01-0000-0-5800.00-0000-8100-007-00-000-0000
01-0000-0-5800.00-0000-8100-001-00-000-0000

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT

261251927

01-6500-0-5800.00-5770-3150-010-00-000-0000

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT

TOTAL FUND CHECKS
TOTAL FUND EFT
TOTAL FUND PAYMENT

1,791.61 *

01-0000-0-5500.01-0000-8100-002-00-000-0000
01-0000-0-5500.01-0000-8100-001-00-000-0000

19,331.40 *

1 01-6387-0-5800.00-3800-1000-007-00-000-0000

3,288.25 *

1,596.00 *

27.06 *

51,524.30 **
540.00 **
52,064.30 **

NN

P 1,791.61

L]

1,751.74
F 1,536.51

1,791.61
1,791.61

5,834.99
13,496.41
19,331.40

1,751.74
1,536.51
3,288.25

1,075.00
521.00
1,596.00

27.06
27.06

51,524.30
540.00
52,064.30



088 EL TEJON UNIFIED J52044
Vendor/Addr Remit name
Reqg Reference Date Description

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PRELIST

BATCH
FUND

Tax ID num

APY500

: 0019 September 8, 2025 << Open >>
13 CAFETERIA
Deposit type ABA num Account num

FD-RESC-Y-OBJT

.S0-GOAL-FUNC-STE-T2-TY3-TYP4

TOMPS

L.00.24 09/12/25 12:24 PAGE 4

EE ES E-Term E-ExtRef

Lig Amt Net Amount

002202/00 Imperial Dade

PV-260179 09/08/2025 38864966
003535/00 JORDANO'S

PV-260196 09/12/2025 7257656
000404/00 SYSCO FOOD SERVICES OF VENTURA

PV-260197 09/12/2025 479152845
008247/00 Total School Solutions

PV-260195 09/12/2025 18-4636

205963953

TOTAL

TOTAL

TOTAL

TOTAL

TOTAL
TOTAL
TOTAL

99 EFT

13-5310-0-4300
PAYMENT AMOUNT

13-5310-0-4700
PAYMENT AMOUNT

13-5310-0-4700
PAYMENT AMOUNT

13-5310-0-5800
PAYMENT AMOUNT

FUND CHECKS
FUND EFT
FUND PAYMENT

.00-0000-3700-010-00-000-0000
2,281.31 *

.00-0000-3700-010-00-000-0000
1,094.31 *

.00-0000-3700-010-00-000-0000
1,637.48 *

.00-0000-3700-010-00-000-0000
7,762.50 *

10,494.29 **
2,281.31 **
12,775.60 **

NN

NN

NN

NN

2,281.31
2,281.31

1,094.31
1,094.31

1,637.48
1,637.48

7,762.50
7,762.50

10,494.29
2,281.31
12,775.60



088 EL TEJON UNIFIED J52044

FUND

Vendor/Addr Remit name
Reqg Reference Date Description

880983/00 Well Rehabilitation Services 462600645

260012 PO-260012 09/08/2025 31807
TOTAL

TOTAL

TOTAL
TOTAL
TOTAL

TOTAL
TOTAL
TOTAL

TOTAL
TOTAL
TOTAL

Number of checks to be printed: 21, not counting
Number of EFT generated:

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PRELIST
BATCH: 0019 September 8, 2025
21 BUILDING FUND - BOND PROCEEDS

Tax ID num Deposit type

ABA num

APY500

Account num

1.00.24 09/12/25 12:24 PAGE 5
<< Open >>

EE ES E-Term E-ExtRef

FD-RESC-Y-OBJT.SO-GOAL-FUNC-STE-T2-TY3-TYP4 TIMPS

1 21-0000-0-5800.00-0000-8500-010-00-000-0000 NN F

PAYMENT AMOUNT

FUND PAYMENT

BATCH CHECKS
BATCH EFT
BATCH PAYMENT

DISTRICT CHECKS
DISTRICT EFT
DISTRICT PAYMENT

FOR ALL DISTRICTS CHK:
FOR ALL DISTRICTS EFT:

FOR ALL DISTRICTS:

36,618.75

36,618.75

98,637.34
2,821.31
101,458.65

98,637.34
2,821.31
101,458.65

98,637.34
2,821.31
101,458.65

voids due to stub overflows.

*

e

dkk

e

ok k

*k ok k

ok k

*k ok k

ok k

*k ok k

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

Lig Amt

36,618.75

Net Amount

36,618.75
36,618.75

36,618.75

98,637.34
2,821.31
101,458.65

98,637.34
2,821.31
101,458.65

98,637.34
2,821.31
101,458.65

98,637.34
2,821.31



088 EL TEJON UNIFIED J56509 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PRELIST APY500 L.00.24 09/19/25 09:51 PAGE 0

Batch status: A All
From batch: 0020
To batch: 0020
Include Revolving Cash: Y
Include Address: N
Include Object Desc: N

Include Vendor TIN: Y



088 EL TEJON UNIFIED J56509
Vendor/Addr Remit name
Reqg Reference Date Description

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PRELIST

APY500

BATCH: 0020 September 15, 2025 << Open >>
FUND 01 GENERAL FUND
Tax ID num Deposit type ABA num Account num

FD-RESC-Y-OBJT.SO-GOAL-FUNC-STE-T2-TY3-TYP4

TOMPS

L.00.24 09/19/25 09:51 PAGE 1

EE ES E-Term E-ExtRef
Lig Amt

Net Amount

880851/00 Agile Occupational Medicine

PV-260217 09/18/2025 EM052840
006542/00 All-Tech Fire & Security Inc.

PV-260215 09/18/2025 3195_CleaningSmol
880994/00 Annie Saboundjian

PV-260202 09/15/2025 REIMBURS_Mileage
008038/00 Brady Industries
260017
260017

260017
260017

P0O-260017
P0O-260017
P0O-260017
P0O-260017

09/18/2025
09/18/2025
09/18/2025
09/18/2025

10632267
10632270
10632273
10621991

880860/00 Celine Skibicki
PV-260213 09/16/2025 MILEAGE_August 2

880871/00 Circle M Truck Repair

872679604

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT

000000000

keDetectors

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT

TOTAL

942289369

e

1
TOTAL

025
TOTAL

464723541

PV-260218 09/18/2025 32150 _BUS 17 REPAIRS

880894/00 Family Leadership, Inc.2 Busin
PV-260214 09/18/2025 10-1731

PV-260214 09/18/2025 10-1731

TOTAL

770537759

TOTAL

PAYMENT AMOUNT

PAYMENT AMOUNT

PAYMENT AMOUNT

PAYMENT AMOUNT

PAYMENT AMOUNT

01-0000-0-5800.00-0000-7200-010-00-000-0000

380.00 *

01-0000-0-5800.00-0000-8100-002-00-000-0000

902.00 *

01-6500-0-5200.00-5770-3600-010-00-000-0000

11.62 *

99 EFT

01-0000-0-4300.
01-0000-0-4300.
01-0000-0-4300.
01-0000-0-4300.

00-0000-8100-010-00-000-0000

00-0000-8100-010-00-000-0000

00-0000-8100-010-00-000-0000

00-0000-8100-010-00-000-0000
845.93 *

01-6500-0-5200.00-5770-3600-010-00-000-0000
48.93 *

01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-3600-010-00-000-0000
1,637.75 *

01-6332-0-5200.00-1110-1000-001-00-000-0000
01-6332-0-5200.00-1110-3130-007-00-000-0000
11,237.50 *

2222

104.51
206.87
203.26
331.29

380.00
380.00

902.00
902.00

11.62
11.62

104.51
206.87
203.26
331.29
845.93

48.93
48.93

1,637.75
1,637.75

5,618.75
5,618.75
11,237.50



088 EL TEJON UNIFIED J56509
Vendor/Addr Remit name
Reqg Reference Date Description

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PRELIST
0020 September 15, 2025

BATCH:
FUND

Tax ID num Deposit type

APY500

01 GENERAL FUND

ABA num Account num
FD-RESC-Y-OBJT.SO-GOAL-FUNC-STE-T2-TY3-TYP4

TOMPS

Lig Amt

1.00.24 09/19/25 09:51 PAGE 2
<< Open >>

EE ES E-Term E-ExtRef
Net Amount

880732/00 Gibbs Truck Centers

PV-260201 09/15/2025 413033B

008225/00  Johnny McNatt

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT

PV-260219 09/18/2025 REIMBURS_GAS 9/17/25

002298/00 KERN PLUMBING AND BACKFLOW
PV-260220 09/18/2025 17376

PV-260220 09/18/2025 17375
PV-260220 09/18/2025 17374

000058/00 Kern County Supt of Schools

PV-260204 09/15/2025 600469 TRAINING FOR A.GARCI
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT

008200/00 Linger, Peterson & Shrum

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT

000000000

811342570

PV-260203 09/15/2025 AUDIT SERVICES 2024-25

008354/00 Pearson Asessment

260107 P0O-260107 09/15/2025 29874600
880705/00 Perseverance Educational Con.

PV-260210 09/16/2025 102025
PV-260210 09/16/2025 112025

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT

410850527

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT

01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-3600-010-00-000-0000
96.66 *

01-0000-0-5200.00-0000-3600-010-00-000-0000
50.00 *

01-8150-0-5600.00-0000-8100-001-00-000-0000
01-8150-0-5600.00-0000-8100-001-00-000-0000
01-8150-0-5600.00-0000-8100-001-00-000-0000
1,015.00 *

01-0000-0-5800.00-0000-3600-010-00-000-0000
1,425.00 *

01-0000-0-5800.00-0000-7200-010-00-000-0000
2,490.00 *

1 01-6500-0-4300.00-5770-3120-010-00-000-0000
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT

105.81 *

01-6332-0-5800.00-1110-1000-001-00-000-0000
01-6332-0-5800.00-1110-1000-007-00-000-0000
25,500.00 *

EREE

105.81

96.66
96.66

50.00
50.00

255.00
340.00
420.00
1,015.00

1,425.00
1,425.00

2,490.00
2,490.00

105.81
105.81

17,500.00
8,000.00
25,500.00



088 EL TEJON UNIFIED J56509
Vendor/Addr Remit name
Reqg Reference Date Description

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PRELIST
BATCH: 0020 September 15, 2025

FUND

APY500

01 GENERAL FUND

Tax ID num Deposit type
FD-RESC-Y-OBJT.

ABA num Account num
SO-GOAL-FUNC-STE-T2-TY3-TYP4

TOMPS

Lig Amt

1.00.24 09/19/25 09:51 PAGE 3
<< Open >>

EE ES E-Term E-ExtRef

Net Amount

002157/00 RAYMOND'S TROPHY & AWARDS

260115 PO-260115 09/15/2025 153891
002607/00  RENAISSANCE LEARNING INC.
260112 PO-260112 09/15/2025 INV5605831
000094/00  SCHWEBEL PETROLEUM CO, INC
260015 PO-260015 09/18/2025 311624
008223/00  TTF Holdings Lockbox
PV-260221 09/18/2025 21268855
008028/00  Turnitin, LLC
260098 PO-260098 09/16/2025 IN-TII-65291

001710/00 VERIZON WIRELESS

PV-260199 09/15/2025 242356947-00001

008270/00 XIT Solutions

260080 PO-260080 09/19/2025 #INV207266

000000000

TOTAL

TOTAL

952962284

TOTAL

261251927

TOTAL

834430932

TOTAL

000000000

TOTAL

954492720

TOTAL

TOTAL
TOTAL
TOTAL

1 01-0000-0-4300.

PAYMENT AMOUNT

1 01-1100-0-5800.

PAYMENT AMOUNT

1 01-0000-0-4300.

PAYMENT AMOUNT

01-6500-0-5800.

PAYMENT AMOUNT

1 01-6300-0-4100.

PAYMENT AMOUNT

01-0000-0-5500.

PAYMENT AMOUNT

1 01-0044-0-4300.

PAYMENT AMOUNT

FUND CHECKS
FUND EFT
FUND PAYMENT

00-0000-7200-010-00-000-0000
21.72 *

00-1110-1000-001-00-000-0000
10,005.00 *

00-0000-3600-010-00-000-0000
2,710.40 *

00-5770-3150-010-00-000-0000
184.50 *

00-1110-1000-007-00-000-1021
2,465.87 *

03-0000-8100-010-00-000-0000
1,084.07 *

00-0000-7700-010-00-000-1018
39,757.96 *

101,129.79 **
845.93 **
101,975.72 **

NY

21.72

10,005.00

2,710.40

2,465.87

39,757.96

21.72
21.72

10,005.00
10,005.00

2,710.40
2,710.40

184.50
184.50

2,465.87
2,465.87

1,084.07
1,084.07

39,757.96
39,757.96

101,129.79
845.93
101,975.72



088 EL TEJON UNIFIED J56509

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PRELIST

BATCH: 0020 September 15, 2025

FUND

Vendor/Addr Remit name
Reqg Reference Date Description

003535/00 JORDANO'S
PV-260216 09/18/2025 7261405
TOTAL
000404/00 SYSCO FOOD SERVICES OF VENTURA
PV-260200 09/15/2025 479160598
TOTAL

TOTAL

TOTAL
TOTAL
TOTAL

TOTAL
TOTAL
TOTAL

TOTAL
TOTAL
TOTAL

Number of checks to be printed: 22, not counting
Number of EFT generated:

Tax ID num Deposit type

13 CAFETERIA

ABA num

APY500
<< Open >>

Account num

L.00.24 09/19/25 09:51 PAGE 4

FD-RESC-Y-OBJT.SO-GOAL-FUNC-STE-T2-TY3-TYP4 TIMPS Lig Amt

13-5310-0-4700.00-0000-3700-010-00-000-0000 NN

PAYMENT AMOUNT

686.80

*

13-5310-0-4700.00-0000-3700-010-00-000-0000 NN

PAYMENT AMOUNT 1,746.31
FUND PAYMENT 2,433.11
BATCH CHECKS 103,562.90
BATCH EFT 845.93
BATCH PAYMENT 104,408.83
DISTRICT CHECKS 103,562.90
DISTRICT EFT 845.93
DISTRICT PAYMENT 104,408.83
FOR ALL DISTRICTS CHK: 103,562.90
FOR ALL DISTRICTS EFT: 845.93
FOR ALL DISTRICTS: 104,408.83

voids due to stub overflows.

*

e

dkk

e

ok k

*k ok k

ok k

*k ok k

ok k

*k ok k

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

EE ES E-Term E-ExtRef

Net Amount

686.80
686.80

1,746.31
1,746.31

2,433.11

103,562.90
845.93
104,408.83

103,562.90
845.93
104,408.83

103,562.90
845.93
104,408.83

103,562.90
845.93



088 EL TEJON UNIFIED J64556 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PRELIST APY500 L.00.24 10/03/25 10:34 PAGE 0
Prelist Batch 21

Batch status: A All
From batch: 0021
To batch: 0021
Include Revolving Cash: Y
Include Address: N
Include Object Desc: N

Include Vendor TIN: Y



088 EL TEJON UNIFIED

Prelist Batch 21

Vendor/Addr Remit name

Req Reference

Date

J64556
BATCH:
FUND

Tax ID num Deposit type

Description

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PRELIST
0021 August 2025 Cal-Card

APY500
: 01 GENERAL FUND

ABA num Account num
FD-RESC-Y-OBJT.SO-GOAL-FUNC-STE-T2-TY3-TYP4

L.00.24 10/03/25 10:34 PAGE 1
<< Open >>

EE ES E-Term E-ExtRef

TIMPS Lig Amt Net Amount

003092/00

PV-260205

PV-260205

PV-260205

PV-260205

PV-260205

PV-260205

PV-260205

PV-260205

PV-260205

PV-260205

PV-260207

PV-260207

PV-260207

PV-260207

PV-260208

PV-260208

PV-260208

PV-260208

PV-260209

PV-260209

PV-260209

PV-260209

PV-260209

US BANK

09/16/2025
09/16/2025
09/16/2025
09/16/2025
09/16/2025
09/16/2025
09/16/2025
09/16/2025
09/16/2025
09/16/2025
09/16/2025
09/16/2025
09/16/2025
09/16/2025
09/16/2025
09/16/2025
09/16/2025
09/16/2025
09/16/2025
09/16/2025
09/16/2025
09/16/2025

09/16/2025

000000000
Zoom_Annual Subscrp.

SSC_HR_Network_Caverhill

Primo_water_ service

Primo_water_service

Primo_water_service

Primo_water_ service

USPS Postage Cert.

Mail
Primo_water_service

Management_Training_Johnsto

Primo_water_service

Printer_Ink_ Bundles_Monitor

Printer_Ink Bundles_Monitor

Raptor_One_Year

Apple.Com_SpED

Office_Staff Supplies

Student_Recong.LCAP1.7

Classroom_Supplies

Pizza_Welcome_Back

Helmets_ ASB

Pacifc_Battleship ASB

Helmets_ ASB

Fuel_Service

FFA_State_Confer March 26

01-0000-0-5800.00-0000-7700-010-00-000-0000

01-0000-0-5800.00-0000-7200-010-00-000-0000

01-0000-0-4300.04-0000-8100-010-00-000-0000

01-0000-0-4300.04-0000-8100-010-00-000-0000

01-0000-0-4300.04-0000-8100-010-00-000-0000

01-0000-0-4300.04-0000-8100-010-00-000-0000

01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-7200-010-00-000-0000

01-0000-0-4300.04-0000-8100-010-00-000-0000

01-7435-0-5200.00-0000-7200-010-00-000-0000

01-0000-0-4300.04-0000-8100-010-00-000-0000

01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-7200-010-00-000-0000

01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-7200-010-00-000-0000

01-0000-0-5800.00-0000-7700-010-00-000-0000

01-6500-0-4300.00-5770-1120-010-00-000-0000

01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-2700-002-00-000-0000

01-0044-0-4300.00-1110-1000-002-00-000-1007

01-1100-0-4300.00-1110-1000-002-00-000-0000

01-0044-0-4300.00-1110-1000-002-00-000-3012

01-0000-0-4300.00-1110-1000-000-00-000-0000

01-0000-0-4300.00-1110-1000-000-00-000-0000

01-0000-0-4300.00-1110-1000-000-00-000-0000

01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-3600-010-00-000-0000

01-7010-0-5200.00-3800-1000-007-00-000-0000

5,400.00

195.00

227.62

311.40

20.52

381.42

11.26

307.25

975.00

150.33

194.84

,565.22

2,085.00

12.99

174.42

155.48

250.69

143.65

549.78

520.00

329.88

125.92

2 2 2 2 8 2 28 8 28 2 2 % 2 2 % 8 2 &8 % 2 8 8 %

2,324.77



088 EL TEJON UNIFIED J64556 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PRELIST APY500 L.00.24 10/03/25 10:34 PAGE 2
Prelist Batch 21 BATCH: 0021 August 2025 Cal-Card << Open >>
FUND : 01 GENERAL FUND
Vendor/Addr Remit name Tax ID num Deposit type ABA num Account num EE ES E-Term E-ExtRef
Req Reference Date Description FD-RESC-Y-OBJT.SO-GOAL-FUNC-STE-T2-TY3-TYP4 TO9MPS Lig Amt Net Amount
003092 (conTINUED)
PV-260209 09/16/2025 Welcome_Back BBQ 3.12 01-0044-0-4300.00-1110-1000-007-00-000-3012 NN 94.11
PV-260209 09/16/2025 ;OotballiuniformsiASB 01-0000-0-4300.00-1110-1000-000-00-000-0000 NN 640.00
PV-260209 09/16/2025 éPENAI *CHATGPT SUBSCR 01-0044-0-4300.00-1110-1000-007-00-000-3008 NN 20.00
PV-260211 09/16/2025 &SPS Postage Cert. Mail 01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-7200-010-00-000-0000 NN 31.44
PV-260211 09/16/2025 &ath_PD_Supplies 01-0044-0-4300.00-1110-1000-010-00-000-1010 NN 9.29
PV-260211 09/16/2025 &athiPDisnaCks 01-0044-0-4300.00-1110-1000-010-00-000-1010 NN 28.61
PV-260211 09/16/2025 ;ath_PD_Lunch 01-0044-0-4300.00-1110-1000-010-00-000-1010 NN 98.05
PV-260211 09/16/2025 &ath_PD_Drinks 01-0044-0-4300.00-1110-1000-010-00-000-1010 NN 27.26
PV-260211 09/16/2025 &ath_PD_LunCh 01-0044-0-4300.00-1110-1000-010-00-000-1010 NN 121.24
PV-260211 09/16/2025 ;LS_PD_LunCh 01-0044-0-4300.00-1110-1000-010-00-000-1010 NN 59.80
PV-260211 09/16/2025 éLA_PD_LunCh 01-0044-0-4300.00-1110-2700-010-00-000-2009 NN 48.19
PV-260211 09/16/2025 éLAiPDiBreakfast 01-0044-0-4300.00-1110-2700-010-00-000-2009 NN 22.39
PV-260211 09/16/2025 éLA_PD_LunCh 01-0044-0-4300.00-1110-2700-010-00-000-2009 NN 138.58
PV-260211 09/16/2025 éLA_PD_LunCh 01-0044-0-4300.00-1110-2700-010-00-000-2009 NN 165.62
PV-260211 09/16/2025 %elcomeiBackiBreakfast 01-0044-0-4300.00-0000-2700-010-00-000-3012 NN 31.29
PV-260211 09/16/2025 ganagement_Training_Haflich 01-7435-0-5200.00-0000-7200-010-00-000-0000 NN 975.00
PV-260212 09/16/2025 %axing_supplies 01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-8100-010-00-000-0000 NN 32.48
PV-260212 09/16/2025 %axingisupplies 01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-8100-010-00-000-0000 NN 1,242.75
PV-260212 09/16/2025 éLOP_Kitchen 01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-8100-010-00-000-0000 NN 36.74
PV-260212 09/16/2025 éLOP_Kitchen 01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-8100-010-00-000-0000 NN 337.74
PV-260212 09/16/2025 éLOPiKitchen 01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-8100-010-00-000-0000 NN 134.23
PV-260212 09/16/2025 éLOPiKitchen 01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-8100-010-00-000-0000 NN 115.45
PV-260212 09/16/2025 éLOP_Kitchen 01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-8100-010-00-000-0000 NN 132.60



088 EL TEJON UNIFIED J64556 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PRELIST APY500 L.00.24 10/03/25 10:34 PAGE 3
Prelist Batch 21 BATCH: 0021 August 2025 Cal-Card << Open >>

FUND : 01 GENERAL FUND
Vendor/Addr Remit name Tax ID num Deposit type ABA num Account num EE ES E-Term E-ExtRef
Req Reference Date Description FD-RESC-Y-OBJT.SO-GOAL-FUNC-STE-T2-TY3-TYP4 TO9MPS Lig Amt Net Amount

003092 (CONTINUED)

PV-260212 09/16/2025 Manage Training Giancanelli 01-0000-0-5200.00-0000-8100-010-00-000-0000 NN 975.00
PV-260212 09/16/2025 ;OpyiPaperiDistriCt 01-0000-0-4300.00-1110-1000-010-00-000-0000 NN 1,986.71
PV-260267 10/03/2025 ;OstageiBoysicamp 01-2600-0-4300.00-1110-1000-001-00-000-0000 NN 114.68
PV-260267 10/03/2025 éay—Camp-Breakfate 01-2600-0-4300.00-1110-1000-001-00-000-0000 NN 90.53
PV-260267 10/03/2025 ;O_Backpacks_EHCY 01-5630-0-4300.00-1110-1000-010-00-000-0000 NN 238.15
PV-260267 10/03/2025 éay—camp—Breakfate 01-2600-0-4300.00-1110-1000-001-00-000-0000 NN 23.00
PV-260267 10/03/2025 éinner_Parenting_Partners 01-6332-0-5200.00-1110-1000-001-00-000-0000 NN 61.21
PV-260267 10/03/2025 éinner_Parenting_Partners 01-6332-0-5200.00-1110-1000-007-00-000-0000 NN 61.22
PV-260267 10/03/2025 ;FA_Membership 01-6387-0-5800.00-3800-1000-001-00-000-0000 NN 140.00
PV-260267 10/03/2025 ;FA_Membership 01-6387-0-5800.00-3800-1000-001-00-000-0000 NN 140.00
PV-260267 10/03/2025 éLOP_Furniture 01-2600-0-4400.00-1110-1000-001-00-000-0000 NN 409.02
PV-260267 10/03/2025 QZSiclothingiEHCY 01-5630-0-4300.00-1110-1000-001-00-000-0000 NN 2,885.79
PV-260267 10/03/2025 éhoes_EHCY 01-5630-0-4300.00-1110-1000-001-00-000-0000 NN 81.18
PV-260267 10/03/2025 ;D_Community_schools 01-6332-0-5200.00-1110-1000-001-00-000-0000 NN 15.27
PV-260267 10/03/2025 ;D7COmmunityischools 01-6332-0-5200.00-1110-1000-007-00-000-0000 NN 15.27
PV-260267 10/03/2025 éLOP_Furniture 01-2600-0-4400.00-1110-1000-001-00-000-0000 NN 1,370.79
PV-260267 10/03/2025 éLOP_Furniture 01-2600-0-4400.00-1110-1000-001-00-000-0000 NN 1,494.21
PV-260267 10/03/2025 QZSiclothingiEHCY 01-5630-0-4300.00-1110-1000-010-00-000-0000 NN 740.00
PV-260267 10/03/2025 greakfast_STEAM_EHCY 01-5630-0-5200.00-1110-1000-010-00-000-0000 NN 101.55
PV-260267 10/03/2025 éreakfast_STEAM_EHCY 01-5630-0-5200.00-1110-1000-010-00-000-0000 NN 137.96
PV-260267 10/03/2025 ;VIDiPDiLunCh 01-6387-0-5200.00-3800-1000-001-00-000-1020 NN 36.65
PV-260267 10/03/2025 ;VIDiPDiDinner 01-6387-0-5200.00-3800-1000-001-00-000-1020 NN 75.00
PV-260267 10/03/2025 ;upplies_MSFG 01-6385-0-4300.00-3800-1000-001-00-000-0000 NN 153.01



088 EL TEJON UNIFIED
Prelist Batch 21

Vendor/Addr Remit name

Req Reference

Date

APY500

ABA num Account num

L.00.24 10/03/25 10:34 PAGE 4
<< Open >>

EE ES E-Term E-ExtRef

FD-RESC-Y-OBJT.SO-GOAL-FUNC-STE-T2-TY3-TYP4

J64556 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PRELIST
BATCH: 0021 August 2025 Cal-Card
FUND : 01 GENERAL FUND
Tax ID num Deposit type
Description

TOMPS

Lig Amt Net Amount

003092

(CONTINUED)
PV-260267 10/03/2025
PV-260267 10/03/2025
PV-260267 10/03/2025
PV-260267 10/03/2025
PV-260267 10/03/2025
PV-260267 10/03/2025
PV-260267 10/03/2025
PV-260267 10/03/2025
PV-260267 10/03/2025
PV-260267 10/03/2025
PV-260267 10/03/2025
PV-260267 10/03/2025
PV-260267 10/03/2025
PV-260267 10/03/2025
PV-260267 10/03/2025
PV-260267 10/03/2025
PV-260267 10/03/2025
PV-260267 10/03/2025
PV-260267 10/03/2025
PV-260267 10/03/2025
PV-260267 10/03/2025
PV-260267 10/03/2025

PV-260267 10/03/2025

CTE_Supplies_Photos

AVID_PD_Dinner

AVID_ Meals

AVID Meals

AVID_Clothing_EHCY

AVID_PD_Dinner

ELOP_Furniture

Parking_CTE

EHCY_Community_ Closet

AVID_PD_Dinner

Leadership_Con_FFA

AVID_Confr Hotel

AVID_ Confr Hotel

AVID_ Confr Hotel

AVID_PD_Parking

AVID_PD Dinner

Shoes EHCY

Shoes_EHCY

B2S_Clothes_EHCY

AVID Meals

Planboo_1_year

Planboo_1_year

Planboo_1_year

01-6387-0-4300.00-3800-1000-001-00-000-0000

01-6387-0-5200.00-3800-1000-001-00-000-1020

01-6387-0-5200.00-3800-1000-001-00-000-1020

01-6387-0-5200.00-3800-1000-001-00-000-1020

01-5630-0-4300.00-1110-1000-010-00-000-0000

01-6387-0-5200.00-3800-1000-001-00-000-1020

01-2600-0-4400.00-1110-1000-001-00-000-0000

01-6387-0-5200.00-3800-1000-001-00-000-1020

01-5630-0-4300.00-1110-1000-010-00-000-0000

01-6387-0-5200.00-3800-1000-001-00-000-1020

01-6387-0-5200.00-3800-1000-001-00-000-1010

01-6387-0-5200.00-3800-1000-001-00-000-1020

01-6387-0-5200.00-3800-1000-001-00-000-1020

01-6387-0-5200.00-3800-1000-001-00-000-1020

01-6387-0-5200.00-3800-1000-001-00-000-1020

01-6387-0-5200.00-3800-1000-001-00-000-1020

01-5630-0-4300.00-1110-1000-010-00-000-0000

01-5630-0-4300.00-1110-1000-010-00-000-0000

01-5630-0-4300.00-1110-1000-010-00-000-0000

01-6387-0-5200.00-3800-1000-001-00-000-1020

01-0000-0-5800.00-1110-1000-001-00-000-0000

01-0000-0-5800.00-1110-1000-001-00-000-0000

01-0000-0-5800.00-1110-1000-001-00-000-0000

2 2 2 2 8 2 28 8 28 2 2 % 2 2 % 8 2 &8 % 2 8 8 %

129.30

129.43

92.25

36.64

382.51

145.54

294.78

30.00

109.37

82.57

669.00

2,553.42

2,261.66

2,067.75

25.00

150.00

32.45

61.68

378.76

48.71

20.00

20.00

20.00



088 EL TEJON UNIFIED

Prelist Batch 21

Vendor/Addr Remit name

Req Reference

Date

J64556

BATCH:
FUND

Tax ID num Deposit type

Description

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PRELIST
0021 August 2025 Cal-Card

APY500
: 01 GENERAL FUND

ABA num Account num
FD-RESC-Y-OBJT.SO-GOAL-FUNC-STE-T2-TY3-TYP4

L.00.24 10/03/25 10:34 PAGE 5
<< Open >>

EE ES E-Term E-ExtRef

TIMPS Lig Amt Net Amount

003092

PV-260267

PV-260267

PV-260267

PV-260267

PV-260267

PV-260267

PV-260267

PV-260267

PV-260267

PV-260267

PV-260267

PV-260267

PV-260267

PV-260267

PV-260267

PV-260267

PV-260267

PV-260267

PV-260267

PV-260267

PV-260267

PV-260267

PV-260267

(CONTINUED)

10/03/2025
10/03/2025
10/03/2025
10/03/2025
10/03/2025
10/03/2025
10/03/2025
10/03/2025
10/03/2025
10/03/2025
10/03/2025
10/03/2025
10/03/2025
10/03/2025
10/03/2025
10/03/2025
10/03/2025
10/03/2025
10/03/2025
10/03/2025
10/03/2025
10/03/2025

10/03/2025

Supplies ELOP

B2S_Clothes_EHCY

ELOP_Furniture

4_Days_Parking AVID

ELOP_Furniture

Color_Copy_ Paper

PBIS_Supplies

Cell_Phone_Lock

Binders_AVID

B2S_Clothes_EHCY

ELOP_Furniture

Animal_Feed

OPENAI *CHATGPT SUBSCR

Intuit Quickbooks

PD_Distrtict_Wide

Shoes EHCY

Shoes EHCY

B2S_Clothes_EHCY

Math_Books_Curr.

ELOP_Supplies_Snacks

Lunch_EHCY_Students

FFA_Officers_Retreat

CATA Confre. Lodging

01-2600-0-4300.00-1110-1000-001-00-000-0000

01-6387-0-5200.00-3800-1000-001-00-000-1020

01-2600-0-4400.00-1110-1000-001-00-000-0000

01-6387-0-5200.00-3800-1000-001-00-000-1020

01-2600-0-4400.00-1110-1000-001-00-000-0000

01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-2700-001-00-000-0000

01-0044-0-4300.00-1110-1000-001-00-000-3012

01-0000-0-4300.00-1110-1000-001-00-000-0000

01-6387-0-4300.00-3800-1000-001-00-000-1020

01-5630-0-4300.00-1110-1000-001-00-000-0000

01-2600-0-4400.00-1110-1000-001-00-000-0000

01-7010-0-4300.00-3800-1000-001-00-000-0000

01-0044-0-4300.00-1110-1000-001-00-000-3002

01-0000-0-5800.00-0000-7200-010-00-000-0000

01-0044-0-4300.00-1110-1000-010-00-000-1010

01-5630-0-4300.00-1110-1000-001-00-000-0000

01-5630-0-4300.00-1110-1000-001-00-000-0000

01-5630-0-4300.00-1110-1000-001-00-000-0000

01-6300-0-4100.00-1110-1000-001-00-000-0000

01-2600-0-4300.00-1110-1000-001-00-000-0000

01-5630-0-4300.00-1110-1000-001-00-000-0000

01-7010-0-5200.00-3800-1000-001-00-000-0000

01-6387-0-5200.00-3800-1000-001-00-000-1010

302.63

137.89

207.58

100.00

504.63

161.32

161.97

55.01

222.13

116.70

946.31

100.00

20.00

75.00

35.10

311.74

256.35

341.97

660.77

585.48

47.55

151.39

2 2 2 2 8 2 28 8 28 2 2 % 2 2 % 8 2 &8 % 2 8 8 %

1,075.17



088 EL TEJON UNIFIED

Prelist Batch 21

Vendor/Addr Remit name

Req Reference

Date

J64556

BATCH:

: 01 GENERAL FUND

Tax ID num Deposit type

Description

FD-RESC-Y-OBJT.

ABA num Account num
SO-GOAL-FUNC-STE-T2-TY3-TYP4

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PRELIST APY500 L.00.24 10/03/25 10:34 PAGE 6

0021 August 2025 Cal-Card << Open >>

EE ES E-Term E-ExtRef
TIMPS Lig Amt Net Amount

003092 (CONTINUED)

PV-260267

PV-260267

PV-260267

PV-260267

PV-260267

PV-260267

PV-260267

PV-260267

PV-260267

PV-260267

PV-260267

PV-260267

PV-260267

10/03/2025
10/03/2025
10/03/2025
10/03/2025
10/03/2025
10/03/2025
10/03/2025
10/03/2025
10/03/2025
10/03/2025
10/03/2025
10/03/2025

10/03/2025

CATA Confre. Lodging

FFA_Officers_Retreat

EHCY_School_Supplies

Key_ Fob_Locator

FCMAT_Training_Lodging

CATA_Confre. Lodging

FFA_Affilation Fee

ELOP_Snacks_Supplies

ELOP_Snacks_Supplies

FFA_Officers_Retreat

Weilding_Supplies_ELOP

Weilding_ Supplies_ELOP

Animal_Feed

01-6387-0-5200.

01-7010-0-5200.

01-5630-0-4300.

01-2600-0-4300.

01-7435-0-5200.

01-6387-0-5200.

01-6387-0-5800.

01-2600-0-4300.

01-2600-0-4300.

01-7010-0-5200.

01-2600-0-4300.

01-2600-0-4300.

01-6387-0-4300.

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT

TOTAL FUND

PAYMENT

00-3800-1000-001-00-000-1010

00-3800-1000-001-00-000-0000

00-1110-1000-001-00-000-0000

00-1110-1000-001-00-000-0000

00-1110-1000-001-00-000-1010

00-3800-1000-001-00-000-1010

00-3800-1000-001-00-000-0000

00-1110-1000-001-00-000-0000

00-1110-1000-007-00-000-0000

00-3800-1000-001-00-000-0000

00-1110-1000-001-00-000-0000

00-1110-1000-001-00-000-0000

00-3800-1000-001-00-000-0000

52,664.66 *

52,664.66 **

654.25

274.35

31.54

140.71

246.28

277.91

218.00

483.65

483.66

73.47

786.41

70.15

2 2 2 2 28 28 2 8% 8 2 2 8 %

305.27

52,664.66

52,664.66



088 EL TEJON UNIFIED J64556 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PRELIST APY500 L.00.24 10/03/25 10:34 PAGE 7

Prelist Batch 21 BATCH: 0021 August 2025 Cal-Card << Open >>
FUND 13 CAFETERIA
Vendor/Addr Remit name Tax ID num Deposit type ABA num Account num EE ES E-Term E-ExtRef
Req Reference Date Description FD-RESC-Y-OBJT.SO-GOAL-FUNC-STE-T2-TY3-TYP4 TO9MPS Lig Amt Net Amount
003092/00 US BANK 000000000
PV-260206 09/16/2025 Management Training Hattorf 13-5310-0-5200.00-0000-3700-010-00-000-0000 NN 975.00
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 975.00 * 975.00
TOTAL FUND PAYMENT 975.00 ** 975.00
TOTAL BATCH PAYMENT 53,639.66 *** 0.00 53,639.66
TOTAL DISTRICT PAYMENT 53,639.66 **x* 0.00 53,639.66
TOTAL FOR ALL DISTRICTS: 53,639.66 **x* 0.00 53,639.66
Number of checks to be printed: 2, not counting voids due to stub overflows. 53,639.66



088 EL TEJON UNIFIED J59606 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PRELIST APY500 L.00.24 09/25/25 10:35 PAGE 0

Batch status: A All
From batch: 0022
To batch: 0022
Include Revolving Cash: Y
Include Address: N
Include Object Desc: N

Include Vendor TIN: Y



088 EL TEJON UNIFIED

Vendor/Addr Remit name
Reqg Reference

003441/00

PV-
PV-
PV-
PV~
PV-

003150/00

260110 PO-
260110 PO-

003202/00

880994/00

PV~

003390/00

PV~
PV-

880697/00

PV~

880806/00

Lig Amt

4,355.78
0.00

L.00.24 09/25/25 10:35 PAGE 1

EE ES E-Term E-ExtRef

Net Amount

44.59
60.00
60.00
60.00
247.80
472.39

4,355.78
4,355.78
8,711.56

419.61
419.61

50.00
50.00

2,828.73
2,828.73
5,657.46

59.96
59.96

J59606 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PRELIST APY500
BATCH: 0022 September 22, 2025 << Open >>
FUND 01 GENERAL FUND
Tax ID num Deposit type ABA num Account num
Date Description FD-RESC-Y-OBJT.SO-GOAL-FUNC-STE-T2-TY3-TYP4 TIMPS
ALEXANDRA CRANE
260227 09/22/2025 MEALS_9/3/25_AcademyPlannin 01-7220-0-5200.00-3800-1000-007-00-000-0000 NN
260227 09/22/2025 Meals_9/4/2025AcademyPlanni 01-7220-0-5200.00-3800-1000-007-00-000-0000 NN
260227 09/22/2025 Meals_9/5/2025AcademyPlanni 01-7220-0-5200.00-3800-1000-007-00-000-0000 NN
260227 09/22/2025 Meals_9/6/2025AcademyPlanni 01-7220-0-5200.00-3800-1000-007-00-000-0000 NN
260229 09/23/2025 REIMBURS_MILEAGE_ACADEMY 01-7220-0-5200.00-3800-1000-007-00-000-0000 NN
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 472.39 *
APPLIED TECHNOLOGY GROUP INC
260110 09/24/2025 S - INV106030 1 01-6387-0-4300.00-3800-1000-001-00-000-0000 NN F
260110 09/24/2025 S - INV106030 2 01-6387-0-4300.00-3800-1000-007-00-000-0000 NN F
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 8,711.56 *
AT&T
PV-260226 09/22/2025 000024063513_8/13/25-9/12/2 01-0000-0-5500.03-0000-8100-010-00-000-0000 NN
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 419.61 *
Annie Saboundjian
260237 09/24/2025 REIMBURS_Workshop 01-6500-0-5800.00-5770-1120-010-00-000-0000 NN
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 50.00 *
BOYS & GIRLS CLUBS OF BAKERS
260239 09/25/2025 4ETASES2526 (FPS) 01-6010-0-5100.00-1110-4000-002-00-000-0000 NN
260239 09/25/2025 4ETASES2526 (ETS) 01-6010-0-5100.00-1110-4000-001-00-000-0000 NN
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 5,657.46 *
Beale Feed Store 000000000
260230 09/23/2025 540_ChickenFood50# 01-3550-0-4300.00-3800-1000-007-00-000-0000 NN
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 59.96 *
Biology Products
260231 09/23/2025 9671_DoubleFetalPigPAIL 01-1100-0-4300.00-1110-1000-001-00-000-0000 NN

PV~

TOTAL

PAYMENT AMOUNT

325.38 *

325.38
325.38



088 EL TEJON UNIFIED J59606 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PRELIST APY500 L.00.24 09/25/25 10:35 PAGE 2

BATCH: 0022 September 22, 2025 << Open >>
FUND : 01 GENERAL FUND
Vendor/Addr Remit name Tax ID num Deposit type ABA num Account num EE ES E-Term E-ExtRef
Reqg Reference Date Description FD-RESC-Y-OBJT.SO-GOAL-FUNC-STE-T2-TY3-TYP4 TO9MPS Lig Amt Net Amount
008038/00 Brady Industries 942289369 99 EFT
260017 PO-260017 09/22/2025 10645096 1 01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-8100-010-00-000-0000 NN P 168.72 168.72
260017 PO-260017 09/22/2025 10645098 1 01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-8100-010-00-000-0000 NN P 689.55 689.55
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 858.27 * 858.27
008313/00 Diana Holt
PV-260233 09/24/2025 MILEAGE_PAKCS MTG9/17/25 01-0000-0-5200.00-0000-7200-010-00-000-0000 NN 53.76
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 53.76 * 53.76
002421/00 Interquest Detection Canines 813354707
PV-260225 09/22/2025 1401 01-0000-0-5800.00-1110-8300-007-00-000-0000 NY 500.00
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 500.00 * 500.00
008121/00 Laurie Oliver
PV-260222 09/22/2025 REIMBURS_Hay9/13/2025 01-6387-0-4300.00-3800-1000-001-00-000-0000 NN 211.90
PV-260223 09/22/2025 REIMBURS_FznMice/FishFoodCT 01-6387-0-4300.00-3800-1000-001-00-000-0000 NN 80.03
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 291.93 * 291.93
001648/00 MARY HON
PV-260228 09/22/2025 REIMBURS_MILEAGE_FairTicket 01-2600-0-5800.00-1110-4000-002-00-000-1019 NN 32.55
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 32.55 * 32.55
002958/00 SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY OF ED
PV-260224 09/22/2025 250711-EDJOIN 1YR SUBSCRIPT 01-0000-0-5800.00-0000-7200-010-00-000-0000 NN 800.00
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 800.00 * 800.00
000094/00 SCHWEBEL PETROLEUM CO, INC 952962284
260015 PO-260015 09/24/2025 311849 1 01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-3600-010-00-000-0000 NN P 2,901.57 2,901.57
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 2,901.57 * 2,901.57
TOTAL FUND CHECKS 20,276.17 ** 20,276.17
TOTAL FUND EFT 858.27 ** 858.27

TOTAL FUND PAYMENT 21,134.44 ** 21,134.44



088 EL TEJON UNIFIED J59606
Vendor/Addr Remit name
Reqg Reference Date Description

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PRELIST

BATCH
FUND

Tax ID num

: 0022 September 22, 2025
13 CAFETERIA
Deposit type ABA num

APY500
<< Open >>

Account num
FD-RESC-Y-OBJT.SO-GOAL-FUNC-STE-T2-TY3-TYP4 TIMPS

L.00.24 09/25/25 10:35 PAGE 3

Lig Amt

EE ES E-Term E-ExtRef

Net Amount

880932/00 J&E Restaurant Supply Inc

PV-260238 09/24/2025 433716
003535/00 JORDANO'S

PV-260234 09/24/2025 7265198
000404/00 SYSCO FOOD SERVICES OF VENTURA

PV-260232 09/23/2025 479168501

Number of checks to be printed:

16,
Number of EFT generated: 1

330313791

TOTAL

TOTAL

TOTAL

TOTAL

TOTAL
TOTAL
TOTAL

TOTAL
TOTAL
TOTAL

TOTAL
TOTAL
TOTAL

not counting

13-5310-0-4300.00-0000-3700-010-00-000-0000 NN

PAYMENT AMOUNT

256.34

*

13-5310-0-4700.00-0000-3700-010-00-000-0000 NN

PAYMENT AMOUNT

856.30

*

13-5310-0-4700.00-0000-3700-010-00-000-0000 NN

PAYMENT AMOUNT

FUND PAYMENT

BATCH CHECKS
BATCH EFT
BATCH PAYMENT

DISTRICT CHECKS
DISTRICT EFT
DISTRICT PAYMENT

FOR ALL DISTRICTS CHK:
FOR ALL DISTRICTS EFT:
FOR ALL DISTRICTS:

voids due to stub overflows.

1,814.58

2,927.22

23,203.39
858.27
24,061.66

23,203.39
858.27
24,061.66

23,203.39
858.27
24,061.66

*

e

dkk

e

ok k

*k ok k

ok k

*k ok k

ok k

*k ok k

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

256.34
256.34

856.30
856.30

1,814.58
1,814.58

2,927.22

23,203.39
858.27
24,061.66

23,203.39
858.27
24,061.66

23,203.39
858.27
24,061.66

23,203.39
858.27



088 EL TEJON UNIFIED J59629 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PRELIST APY500 L.00.24 09/25/25 10:50 PAGE 0

Batch status: A All
From batch: 0023
To batch: 0023
Include Revolving Cash: Y
Include Address: N
Include Object Desc: N

Include Vendor TIN: Y



088 EL TEJON UNIFIED J59629

Vendor/Addr Remit name
Reqg Reference Date Description

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PRELIST
BATCH: 0023 Vestis paper Checks

FUND

Tax ID num Deposit type

APY500

<< Open >>

L.00.24 09/25/25 10:50 PAGE 1

01 GENERAL FUND
ABA num Account num
FD-RESC-Y-OBJT.SO-GOAL-FUNC-STE-T2-TY3-TYP4 TIMPS Lig Amt

*Override Depo

EE ES E-Term E-ExtRef

Net Amount

001466/00 Vestis Group, Inc.

PV-260235 09/24/2025 2601757238
PV-260236 09/24/2025 2601757240

Number of checks to be printed: 1,

232816365

TOTAL

TOTAL

TOTAL

TOTAL

TOTAL

not counting

01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-3600-010-00-000-0000 NN
01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-8100-010-00-000-0000 NN

PAYMENT AMOUNT

FUND PAYMENT

BATCH PAYMENT

DISTRICT PAYMENT

FOR ALL DISTRICTS:

voids due to stub overflows.

810.30

810.30

810.30

810.30

810.30

*

*k ok k

ok k

309.14
501.16
810.30

810.30

810.30

810.30

810.30

810.30



088 EL TEJON UNIFIED J63898 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PRELIST APY500 L.00.24 10/02/25 14:28 PAGE 0

Batch status: A All
From batch: 0024
To batch: 0024
Include Revolving Cash: Y
Include Address: N
Include Object Desc: N

Include Vendor TIN: Y



088 EL TEJON UNIFIED J63898
Vendor/Addr Remit name
Reqg Reference Date Description

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PRELIST

APY500

BATCH: 0024 September 29, 2025 << Open >>
FUND 01 GENERAL FUND
Tax ID num Deposit type ABA num Account num

FD-RESC-Y-OBJT.SO-GOAL-FUNC-STE-T2-TY3-TYP4

TOMPS

Lig Amt

L.00.24 10/02/25 14:28 PAGE 1

EE ES E-Term E-ExtRef

Net Amount

002219/00 AARDVARK CLAY & SUPPLY
260105 P0O-260105 09/30/2025 S29797
260120 PO-260120 09/30/2025 529797

008351/00 Amazon Capital Services
260020
260021
260022
260023
260024
260025
260029
260030
260030
260032
260036
260037
260038
260046
260046
260047
260047
260048
260051
260052
260054
260054
260055
260082
260083

P0O-260020
P0O-260021
P0O-260022
P0O-260023
P0O-260024
P0O-260025
P0O-260029
PO-260030
P0O-260030
PO-260032
P0O-260036
P0O-260037
P0O-260038
PO-260046
P0O-260046
PO-260047
P0O-260047
P0O-260048
PO-260051
P0O-260052
PO-260054
PO-260054
PO-260055
P0O-260082
P0O-260083
PV-260266

10/01/2025
09/30/2025
09/30/2025
09/30/2025
09/30/2025
10/01/2025
10/01/2025
09/30/2025
09/30/2025
09/30/2025
09/30/2025
09/30/2025
09/30/2025
09/30/2025
09/30/2025
09/30/2025
09/30/2025
09/30/2025
09/30/2025
09/30/2025
09/30/2025
09/30/2025
10/01/2025
09/30/2025
09/30/2025
10/02/2025

1LQG-DWM6 - 3HLS
1JGY-LNWK-36KL
1D3F-MDGF-31LK
17GQ-R9J6-1VV3
1FCH-T6T3-1TQ4
1FCH-T6T3-3MNG
1FDM-LJYY-3RWG
1LQG-DWM6 - 1WPM
1DKK-HHYC-3MH9
1XQL-441C-33MC
17VM-VLTN-3JMD
1MCW-344Y-34GV
1LQG-DWM6-31JV
1LLH-Y4QK-367G
1QFH-3L93-3LJM
1QCN-JKF6-1XJ6
1QH1-HTP3-1YKH
1J1P-HQ9J-3L4P
1Y7Q-NMRK-33QK
1Y3J-PMQ9-3V1Y
16WF-GOMW-31JQ
1X3N-QKYY-3MT9
1LLH-Y4QK-3N6Y
1QCN-JKF6-1W9P
1VLM-TY1W-3HDX
1JXK-4NRH-3ND6

880682/00 American Business Machines

PV-260250 09/30/2025 829523_9/26/25

1
1

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT

e e N e e S S S S S S

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT

01-6387-0-4300.00-3800-1000-007-00-000-0000
01-6387-0-4300.00-3800-1000-007-00-000-0000
3,310.76 *

01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-8100-010-00-000-0000
01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-3600-010-00-000-0000
01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-7700-010-00-000-0000
01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-7200-010-00-000-0000
01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-3140-010-00-000-0000
01-6500-0-4300.00-5770-1120-010-00-000-0000
01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-2700-007-00-000-0000
01-1100-0-4300.00-1110-1000-002-00-000-0000
01-1100-0-4300.00-1110-1000-002-00-000-0000
01-1100-0-4300.00-1110-1000-007-00-000-0000
01-0044-0-4300.00-1110-1000-007-00-000-1007
01-0044-0-4300.00-0000-2700-010-00-000-1007
01-0044-0-4300.00-1110-1000-002-00-000-2005
01-0044-0-4300.00-1110-1000-007-00-000-3012
01-0044-0-4300.00-1110-1000-007-00-000-3012
01-0044-0-4300.00-1110-1000-010-00-000-3012
01-0044-0-4300.00-1110-1000-010-00-000-3012
01-0044-0-4300.00-1110-1000-002-00-000-4003
01-2600-0-4300.00-1110-1000-002-00-000-0000
01-2600-0-4300.00-1110-1000-001-00-000-0000
01-7220-0-4300.00-3800-1000-007-00-000-0000
01-7220-0-4300.00-3800-1000-007-00-000-0000
01-6387-0-4300.00-3800-1000-007-00-000-0000
01-4127-0-4300.00-1470-4200-007-00-000-0000
01-6500-0-4300.00-5770-3120-010-00-000-0000
01-4127-0-4300.00-1110-1000-001-00-000-0000
15,471.40 *

01-0000-0-5500.03-0000-8100-010-00-000-0000
3,523.94 *

EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE

R

"WYY R Y Y Y Y Y R Y Y Y Y Y Y g

2,500.00
810.76

2,069.12
307.58
1,006.78
249.24
508.92
1,201.70
356.58
149.51
114.65
710.12
43.16
288.80
129.88
34.00
345.56
24.52
50.95
9.73
25.39
0.00
3,270.37
0.00
572.15
1,275.22
140.42

2,500.00
810.76
3,310.76

2,069.12
307.58
1,006.78
249.24
508.92
1,201.70
356.58
149.51
114.65
1,347.88
43.16
288.80
129.88
34.00
345.56
24.52
188.78
9.73
25.39
1,085.81
3,270.37
-84.80
572.15
1,275.22
140.42
810.45
15,471.40

3,523.94
3,523.94



L.00.24 10/02/25 14:28 PAGE 2

TOMPS

EE ES E-Term E-ExtRef
Lig Amt Net Amount

11.62
11.62
23.24

25.41
25.41

551.65 551.65
551.65

107.10
60.00
60.00
60.00
60.00

347.10

5,160.70
310.00
5,470.70

443.90
186.50

088 EL TEJON UNIFIED J63898 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PRELIST APY500
BATCH: 0024 September 29, << Open >>
FUND : 01 GENERAL FUND
Vendor/Addr Remit name Tax ID num Deposit type ABA num Account num
Reqg Reference Date Description FD-RESC-Y-OBJT.SO-GOAL-FUNC-STE-T2-TY3-TYP4
880997/00 Ana Pacheco
PV-260253 10/01/2025 MILEAGE_ELPAC Training9/23/ 01-7435-0-5200.00-1110-1000-002-00-000-1010 NN
PV-260254 10/01/2025 MILEAGE_ELPACTraining9/9/25 01-7435-0-5200.00-1110-1000-002-00-000-1010 NN
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 23.24 *
880994/00 Annie Saboundjian
PV-260258 10/01/2025 REIMBURS_MILEAGE9/2025 01-6500-0-5200.00-5770-3600-010-00-000-0000 NN
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 25.41 *
008038/00 Brady Industries 942289369 99 EFT
260017 PO-260017 09/29/2025 10677667 1 01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-8100-010-00-000-0000 NN
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 551.65 *
002521/00 CAROLYN CHAPMAN
PV-260243 09/29/2025 MILEAGE_9/3-9/6 01-7220-0-5200.00-3800-1000-007-00-000-1010 NN
PV-260244 09/29/2025 MEALS_9/3/2025 01-7220-0-5200.00-3800-1000-007-00-000-1010 NN
PV-260244 09/29/2025 MEALS_9/4/2025 01-7220-0-5200.00-3800-1000-007-00-000-1010 NN
PV-260244 09/29/2025 MEALS_9/5/2025 01-7220-0-5200.00-3800-1000-007-00-000-1010 NN
PV-260244 09/29/2025 MEALS_9/6/2025 01-7220-0-5200.00-3800-1000-007-00-000-1010 NN
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 347.10 *
006170/00 Canelli Plumbing
PV-260260 10/02/2025 4474_FMHS REPAIR9/25/25 01-8150-0-5600.00-0000-8100-007-00-000-0000 NN
PV-260261 10/02/2025 4473_ETSSnakeDrainCafe9/25/ 01-8150-0-5600.00-0000-8100-001-00-000-0000 NN
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 5,470.70 *
880871/00 Circle M Truck Repair 464723541
PV-260255 10/01/2025 32283 _CARBTest #19 01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-3600-010-00-000-0000 NN
PV-260255 10/01/2025 32284 CARBTest #20 01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-3600-010-00-000-0000 NN
PV-260255 10/01/2025 3285_CARBTest #01 01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-3600-010-00-000-0000 NN

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT

816.90 *

186.50
816.90



088 EL TEJON UNIFIED J63898

Vendor/Addr Remit name
Reqg Reference Date Description

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PRELIST APY500 L.00.24 10/02/25 14:28 PAGE

BATCH: 0024 September 29, 2025 << Open >>
FUND : 01 GENERAL FUND
Tax ID num Deposit type ABA num Account num

FD-RESC-Y-OBJT.SO-GOAL-FUNC-STE-T2-TY3-TYP4

TOMPS

3

EE ES E-Term E-ExtRef
Net Amount

002152/00 EWING IRRIGATION PRODUCTS

000000000 99 EFT

PV-260246 09/29/2025 27688846 01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-8100-002-00-000-0000
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 524.23 *
880987/00 Epic Kids Inc 392220573
260087 P0O-260087 10/01/2025 INV-250930-0018732 1 01-1100-0-4300.00-1110-1000-002-00-000-0000
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 2,400.00 *
000421/00 HEINEMANN ED BOOKS INC 000000000
PV-260245 09/29/2025 956393884 _ETSOnlineResource 01-6300-0-4200.00-1110-1000-001-00-000-0000
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 5,071.50 *
000233/00 JIM BURKE FORD 000000000
PV-260241 09/29/2025 784225 Van 42 Repairs 01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-3600-010-00-000-0000
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 1,228.69 *
880790/00 Jackie Ryan 609229392
PV-260265 10/02/2025 REIMBURS_MILEAGE9/17/2025 01-6332-0-5200.00-1110-3130-007-00-000-0000
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 69.86 *
003507/00 Jeffrey H Johnston 000000000
PV-260240 09/29/2025 REIMBURS_ELOP Cooking 01-2600-0-4300.00-1110-1000-001-00-000-0000
PV-260240 09/29/2025 REIMBURS_ELOP Cooking 01-2600-0-4300.00-1110-1000-007-00-000-0000
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 601.00 *

008041/00 Lebec Parts, LLC/CQ of Lebec

260034 P0O-260034 10/02/2025 BILLING STATEMENT 9/30/25 1 01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-3600-010-00-000-0000

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 108.59 *

NN

NY

NN

524.23
524.23

2,400.00
2,400.00

5,071.50
5,071.50

1,228.69
1,228.69

69.86
69.86

300.50
300.50
601.00

108.59
108.59



088 EL TEJON UNIFIED

000200/00

002975/00

J63898 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PRELIST APY500 L.00.24 10/02/25 14:28 PAGE 4

TOMPS

NY

NY
NY

Lig Amt

EE ES E-Term E-ExtRef

Net Amount

947.31
947.31

540.00
540.00
1,080.00

BATCH: 0024 September 29, 2025 << Open >>
FUND 01 GENERAL FUND
Vendor/Addr Remit name Tax ID num Deposit type ABA num Account num
Reqg Reference Date Description FD-RESC-Y-OBJT.SO-GOAL-FUNC-STE-T2-TY3-TYP4
MCKENNEY'S ATIR CONDITIONING 953865780
PV-260247 09/29/2025 130977 01-0000-0-5600.00-0000-8100-010-00-000-0000
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 947.31 *
SANTANA'S PUMPING 510562499
PV-260251 09/30/2025 T16332_6/12/25 01-0000-0-5800.00-0000-8100-007-00-000-0000
PV-260256 10/01/2025 T16349_8/7/25 01-0000-0-5800.00-0000-8100-007-00-000-0000
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 1,080.00 *
SCHWEBEL PETROLEUM CO, INC 952962284

000094/00

000100/00

000214/00

260068 PO-
260068 PO-
260068 PO-
260069 PO-
260073 PO-

260015 PO-260015 10/01/2025 312097_DSL XHAUST FLD 1 01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-3600-010-00-000-0000
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 237.55 *
SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS CO 000000000
PV-260259 10/01/2025 146 816 7500 6_8/26-9/25/25 01-0000-0-5500.02-0000-8100-010-00-000-0000
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 23.62 *
SOUTHWEST SCHOOL SUPPLY 000000000
260068 09/30/2025 6043462995 1 01-1100-0-4300.00-1110-1000-002-00-000-0000
260068 09/30/2025 6043462993 1 01-1100-0-4300.00-1110-1000-002-00-000-0000
260068 10/02/2025 DOC NO. 6043805631 1 01-1100-0-4300.00-1110-1000-002-00-000-0000
260069 09/30/2025 6043462994 1 01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-2700-002-00-000-0000
260073 10/02/2025 DOC NO. 6070743854 1 01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-2700-007-00-000-0000
260074 10/02/2025 DOC NO. 6042899279 2 01-6770-1-4300.00-1190-1000-002-00-000-0000

260074 PO-
260074 PO-

008022/00

PV-
PV-

260074 10/02/2025

T-Mobile

260248 09/29/2025
260248 09/29/2025

DOC NO. 6043462992

2

01-6770-1-4300.00-1190-1000-002-00-000-0000

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 670.29 *

984951571_8/21-9/20
970534223_8/21-9/20

01-0000-0-5500.03-0000-8100-010-00-000-0000
01-0000-0-5900.00-1110-1000-010-00-000-0000

TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 719.96 *

2222838

2z

237.55

15.01
112.95
174.00
223.08

20.66

0.00

11.88

237.55
237.55

23.62
23.62

15.01
112.95
174.00
223.08

20.66
112.71

11.88
670.29

339.96
380.00
719.96



088 EL TEJON UNIFIED J63898 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PRELIST APY500 L.00.24 10/02/25 14:28 PAGE 5

BATCH: 0024 September 29, 2025 << Open >>
FUND : 01 GENERAL FUND
Vendor/Addr Remit name Tax ID num Deposit type ABA num Account num EE ES E-Term E-ExtRef
Reqg Reference Date Description FD-RESC-Y-OBJT.SO-GOAL-FUNC-STE-T2-TY3-TYP4 TO9MPS Lig Amt Net Amount
000075/00 THE MOUNTAIN ENTERPRISE 000000000
PV-260263 10/02/2025 Statement 9/1-9/30/25 01-0000-0-5800.00-0000-7200-010-00-000-0000 NN 364.84
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 364.84 * 364.84
880884/00 Terminix Processing Center
PV-260249 09/29/2025 14813702_09/16/2025 01-0000-0-5500.07-0000-8100-001-00-000-0000 NN 172.00
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 172.00 * 172.00
TOTAL FUND CHECKS 42,684.66 ** 42,684.66
TOTAL FUND EFT 1,075.88 ** 1,075.88
TOTAL FUND PAYMENT 43,760.54 ** 43,760.54



088 EL TEJON UNIFIED J63898 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PRELIST APY500 L.00.24 10/02/25 14:28 PAGE 6
BATCH: 0024 September 29, 2025 << Open >>
FUND 13 CAFETERIA
Vendor/Addr Remit name Tax ID num Deposit type ABA num Account num EE ES E-Term E-ExtRef
Reqg Reference Date Description FD-RESC-Y-OBJT.SO-GOAL-FUNC-STE-T2-TY3-TYP4 TO9MPS Lig Amt Net Amount
000532/00 A.V.H.S.D./PINCO 000000000
PV-260262 10/02/2025 3020135 13-5310-0-4700.00-0000-3700-010-00-000-0000 NN 2,154.19
PV-260262 10/02/2025 3019654 13-5310-0-4700.00-0000-3700-010-00-000-0000 NN 187.64
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 2,341.83 * 2,341.83
003535/00 JORDANO'S
PV-260252 10/01/2025 7269474 13-5310-0-4700.00-0000-3700-010-00-000-0000 NN 2,127.15
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 2,127.15 * 2,127.15
800423/00 MAS Inc.
PV-260257 10/01/2025 303931_FMHS FreezerRepair 13-5310-0-5600.00-0000-3700-010-00-000-0000 NN 530.85
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 530.85 * 530.85
000404/00 SYSCO FOOD SERVICES OF VENTURA
PV-260242 09/29/2025 479176326 13-5310-0-4700.00-0000-3700-010-00-000-0000 NN 2,339.57
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 2,339.57 * 2,339.57
003389/00 TK Elevator Corporation 000000000
PV-260264 10/02/2025 3008922945 13-5310-0-5800.00-0000-3700-010-00-000-0000 NN 98.39
TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT 98.39 * 98.39
TOTAL FUND PAYMENT 7,437.79 ** 7,437.79
TOTAL BATCH CHECKS 50,122.45 *** 0.00 50,122.45
TOTAL BATCH EFT 1,075.88 *** 0.00 1,075.88
TOTAL BATCH PAYMENT 51,198.33 *** 0.00 51,198.33
TOTAL DISTRICT CHECKS 50,122.45 **** 0.00 50,122.45
TOTAL DISTRICT EFT 1,075.88 **** 0.00 1,075.88
TOTAL DISTRICT PAYMENT 51,198.33 **x* 0.00 51,198.33
TOTAL FOR ALL DISTRICTS CHK: 50,122.45 **** 0.00 50,122.45
TOTAL FOR ALL DISTRICTS EFT: 1,075.88 **** 0.00 1,075.88
TOTAL FOR ALL DISTRICTS: 51,198.33 **** 0.00 51,198.33
Number of checks to be printed: 27, not counting voids due to stub overflows. 50,122.45
Number of EFT generated: 2 1,075.88



